





For Questions and Gold Coast Health Plan Information, Please Call 1-888-301-1228 | www.goldcoasthealthplan.org



Table of Contents

Page

29

30

SECTION 1: INTRODUCTION	9
Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP) Mission Statement	9
Organization of the Provider Manual	9
Provider Web Portal	9
Other Resources on GCHP's Website	9
SECTION 2: GLOSSARY OF TERMS	10

SECTION 3: PROVIDER APPLICATION, CREDENTIALING AND CONTRACTING

AND CONTRACTING	21
Join Our Network	21
New Provider Orientations	21
Credentialing and Recredential Process	21
Initial Credentialing	23
Additional Requirements: California Children's Services (CCS),	
Comprehensive Perinatal Services Program (CPSP), HIV/AIDS	24
Credentialing Resources	24
Policies and Procedures	24
Medi-Cal Enrollment	24
Gemini Diversified Service (GDS)	24
Facility Site Review (FSR) for Primary Care Office Locations	24
FSR for Street Medicine	24
Notification of Adverse Actions Taken Against You or Your Staff	25
Appealing Adverse Decisions by the Credentials / Peer Review Committee (C/PRC)	25
Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility or Voluntary Exclusion	25
Fraud, Waste and Abuse Reporting Program	26
Provider Contract Termination	26
Continuity of Care	27
SECTION 4: CALIFORNIA STATE PROGRAMS	28
Coordination of Care	28
California Children's Services (CCS)	28

Comprehensive Perinatal Services Program (CPSP)

California Immunization Registry (CAIR2)

Members with Developmental Disabilities or Developmental Delay	30
Community-Based Adult Services (CBAS)	31
Vision Services	31
Palliative Care Benefit - MyGoldCare Program	32
Carved-Out Services and Limited Benefits	33
Audiology	33
Hearing Aids	33
Behavioral Health Care	34
Chiropractic	35
Acupuncture	35

36

SECTION 5 - MEDI-CAL ELIGIBILITY

Categories of Medi-Cal Eligibility: Aid Codes	36
Types of Medi-Cal: Levels of Benefits	36
Full-Scope Medi-Cal	36
Restricted-Scope or Restricted Medi-Cal	36
Share of Cost (SOC)	36
Administrative vs. Regular Member	37
Eligibility, Enrollment and Member ID Cards	37
Selection of a Primary Care Provider (PCP)	37
How to Verify Eligibility	38
Member ID Card	38
Out-of-Area Medi-Cal Beneficiaries	38
Benefits	39

SECTION 6: MEMBER RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES	40
Member Rights	40
Member Responsibilities	41

SECTION 7: RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PRIMARY CARE PROVIDER (PCP) AND SPECIALIST PROVIDER (SPC)

PROVIDER (PCP) AND SPECIALIST PROVIDER (SPC)	42
Primary Care Provider (PCP) Responsibilities	42
Telehealth Services	43
Routine Appointments	43
Physical Examinations	43
Initial Health Appointment (IHA)	44
Preventive Care	45
Provider Request for Member Reassignment	45
Primary Care Providers (PCPs)	45
Specialists (SPC)	45
Administrative Members	46
Specialist Responsibilities	46
Routine Appointments	47

First Prenatal Visit	47
Primary Care and Specialty Care Provider Responsibilities	47
24/7 Availability	47
Language Assistance Services	48
Medical Records	48
Access to and Copies of Records	49
Reporting Encounter Data	49
Encounter Data Validation	50
Confidentiality of Information	50
Member Procedures / Rights for Emergency Care	50
Transportation from Provider Office to Hospital	50
Non-Emergency Medical Transportation (NEMT) Requests	51
Who Qualifies for the Medi-Cal NEMT Benefit	51
How the NEMT Benefit Works	51
How to Request NEMT Services for a Member	51
What to Include on the NEMT Form	51
Non-Medical Transportation (NMT) Requests	52

SECTION 8: QUALITY IMPROVEMENT AND HEALTH EQUITY TRANSFORMATION (QIHET) PROGRAM

TRANSFORMATION (QIHET) PROGRAM	53
Quality Improvement and Health Equity Transformation (QIHET) Program Goals	54
Quality Improvement and Health Equity Committee (QIHEC)	54
Managed Care Accountability Set (MCAS)	55
Provider MCAS Report Cards	56
Facility Site Review (FSR)	56
Performance Improvement Projects (PIP)	56
Performance Improvement Methodology	57
Member Incentives	57
Provider Preventable Conditions (PPC)	57
Delegation	58
Annual Audit	58
Audit Process	58
Reporting Requirements	58
Non-Compliance	59
Potential Quality Issues (PQI)	59
Quality Incentive Provider Pool (QIPP)	59
SECTION 9: CARE MANAGEMENT PROGRAM	61
Care Management Program	61
Care Management Process	61
Types of Care Management	61
Care Management Program Goals	63

Referrals to GCHP Care Management	63
24-Hour Advice Nurse Line	63
SECTION 10: POPULATION HEALTH MANAGEMENT	64
Population Health	64
SECTION 11: CALIFORNIA ADVANCING AND INNOVATING	65
MEDI-CAL (CaIAIM) What is CaIAIM?	65
Enhanced Care Management (ECM)	65
Community Supports (CS)	65
Services Offered	65
Doula Services	66
Community Healthcare Workers (CHW)	66
	00
SECTION 12: SERVICES REQUIRING PRIOR AUTHORIZATION	67
Medical Services Requiring Prior Authorization	67
Self-Referral: No Authorization Required	68
Emergency Admissions	68
Post Stabilization Services	68
Administrative Members	69
Family Planning and Sensitive Services: No Prior Authorization Required	69
How to Submit a Request for Prior Authorization	69
Member Requests	70
Routine Pre-Service Requests	70
Expedited / Urgent Requests	70
Out-of-Area and Out-of-Plan Referrals	71
Specialist Referrals	71
Post-Service Retroactive Authorization Requests	71
Authorization Request for Ancillary Services	72
Physician Administered Drugs (PADs) or Medical Drug Benefit	72
Non-Emergency Medical Transportation (NEMT) Services	72
Hospital Inpatient Services	73
Transitional Care Services	73
Hospital Observation	73
Nursing Facilities	73
Nursing Facilities Authorizations	74
Nursing Facility Admission Notification	74
Other Health Coverage (OHC)	74
Reauthorization Request	74
Long-Term Care (LTC) Facilities	74
Short-Term Skilled Nursing Care	75
Intermediate Care	75

Sub-Acute Level of Care	75
Bed Hold Days	75
Hospice Care	76
Serious and Complex Medical Conditions	76
Standing Referrals to an HIV/AIDS Specialist	76
Obtaining a Second Opinion	77
Status of Authorization Requests	77
Deferrals and Denials	77
Assistance with Referral Consultation Requests	77

78

84

SECTION 13: CLAIMS AND BILLING

Electronic Data Interchange (EDI)78Paper Claim Submission79Clinical Submission Categories79Claims Processing80Claim Return for Additional Information80Timely Filing Requirements80
Clinical Submission Categories79Claims Processing80Claim Return for Additional Information80Timely Filing Requirements80
Claims Processing80Claim Return for Additional Information80Timely Filing Requirements80
Claim Return for Additional Information80Timely Filing Requirements80
Timely Filing Requirements 80
Claims Payment 80
Child Health Disability Prevention (CHDP) Claims Submission81
Claims Submission by Fax 82
Pharmacy Claims 82
Claim Forms Used by Different Types of Providers 82

SECTION 14: COORDINATION OF BENEFITS Dual Coverage by Medicare and Medi-Cal (Medi / Medi)

Dual Coverage by Medicare and Medi-Cal (Medi / Medi)	84
Medicare / Medi-Cal (Medi / Medi) Crossover Claim Process	85
Share of Cost (SOC)	86
Examples of SOC: Medi-Cal + Medicare	86
GCHP Members with Veterans Benefits	86

SECTION 15: MEMBER SERVICES87Member Services Staff87

SECTION 16: LANGUAGE ASSISTANCE SERVICES	88
Overview of Cultural and Linguistic Services	88
Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS)	88
Language Assistance Services	89
Cancellation Policy	89
Telephone Interpreting Services	89
In-Person Interpreting Services	89
Sign Language Interpreting Services	89
How to Access Sign Language Interpreter Services	90

Requesting Interpreter Services	90
Translation of Documents	90
 Alternative Formats 	90
 Plain Language – 6th Grade Reading Level or Below 	90
Cultural and Linguistic Resources	90
Bilingial Fluency Assessments	92
Provider Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Training	92

SECTION 17: HEALTH EDUCATION 94

Overview of Services	94
Health Education Contract Requirements for GCHP Providers	94
Bright Futures Preventative Care Screening Guidelines	94
Staying Healthy Assessment (SHA)	94
Health Promotion, Disease-Prevention Programs and Health Education Classes	94
 Asthma Education 	94
 Breastfeeding Support 	95
 Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) 	95
 Chronic Disease Self-Management Program (CDSMP) 	95
 Diabetes Education 	95
 Diabetes Prevention Program 	95
 Healthwise Digital Health Education Member Engagement Tool 	95
• MyPlate	95
Prenatal / Post-Partum Care	95
Rethink Your Drink	95
 Tobacco Cessation and Vaping 	95
Urgent Care Brochure	95
 Weight Management and Physical Activity 	95
 Well-Child Visit and Immunization Flyers 	95
Health Navigator Program	96
Women's Health	96
Health Promotion Materials	96
Materials on Other Topics or In Different Languages	97
Health Education Trainings for Providers	97
Provider Order Form: Health Education Materials	97
SECTION 18· PHARMACY	QQ

SECTION 18: PHARIMACY 99 Medi-Cal Rx 99

SECTION 19: OUTPATIENT CLINICAL LABORATORY AND OUTPATIENT IMAGING SERVICES

Clinical Laboratory Services — Lab Specimens and Drawing Stations100Outpatient Imaging Centers100

100

Lab Tests Performed in Provider's Office	100
List of Laboratory Codes and Descriptions	101

SECTION 20: RESOLUTION OF DISPUTES AND GRIEVANCES	103
Provider Dispute Resolution (PDR) Process	103
Provider Grievances	104
Provider Responsibilities	105
Member Grievances	105
Member Discrimination Grievances	105
Member Rights in the GCHP Grievance Process	105
Member Appeals	106
Deemed Exhaustion	107
Expedited Review	107
State Hearing	107

SECTION 21: FRAUD, WASTE AND ABUSE IDENTIFICATION POLICY AND PROCEDURES

POLICY AND PROCEDURES	109
Purpose	109
Policy	109
Definitions	109
Procedure	110
 Training of GCHP Staff and Provider Network 	110
 Identification of Fraud, Waste or Abuse 	110
 Reporting of Fraud, Waste or Abuse 	111
 Investigation and Research 	111
Monitoring	112
References	112

SECTION 22: FORMS AND RESOURCES	113
Claims	113
Health Services	113
Member Services	113
Provider Relations	113
Quality Improvement	114

115
115
118
122
124

INDEX	126

SECTION 1: INTRODUCTION

Gold Coast Health Plan Mission Statement

"To improve the health of our members through the provision of high quality care and services."

Welcome to Gold Coast Health Plan

Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP) is a County Organized Health System (COHS) that administers the Medi-Cal program in Ventura County. The COHS is governed by the Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission (VCMMCC). The commission is comprised of 11 members representing providers, clinics, hospitals, service agencies, elected officials and the public. There are two collaborative groups that report to the commission: the Provider Advisory Committee (PAC) and the Consumer Advisory Committee (CAC). The commission meets monthly to review local concerns about health care issues, receive advisory input, and revise GCHP policies, as appropriate. GCHP's policies are responsive to local input due to the Plan's local governance and operations.

Organization of the Provider Manual

This Provider Manual describes the operational policies and procedures of GCHP. The covered topics are included in the Table of Contents at the beginning of the Provider Manual and in the Index of Topics at the end. You also may access this Provider Manual online by visiting GCHP's **website**. For your convenience, a list of forms you may need can be found in Section 22 of this manual (they are also available on GCHP's website). The manual will be updated and revised periodically as needed to reflect the Provider Operations Bulletin (POB), which is bi-monthly. Revisions and updates will be incorporated into the online version of the manual.

Provider Web Portal

Providers may access the GCHP Provider Web Portal to verify the eligibility of GCHP members, check the status of a claim, and submit prior authorizations (PA). Providers must call Provider Services and provide the Tax ID number associated to the group / entity to receive an invitation to sign-up for the portal. To start using these services, go to the **Provider Web Portal** and complete the registration process. For assistance, please contact the GCHP's Provider Services Department at 1-888-301-1228 or email **ProviderPortal@goldchp.org**.

Other Resources on GCHP's Website

Visit GCHP's website to access resources and tools, such as:

- **Printable Provider Directory:** The Provider Directory, which includes Primary Care Providers (PCP), Specialist Physicians, and other Non-PCP providers, is available in Spanish and in Large Font (English and Spanish). These directories are provided in PDF format to download and print at your convenience.
- Online Provider Search Tool: Use our online provider search tool to find up-to-date information for in-network providers, including: PCPs, Specialists, Facilities, Enhanced Care Management (ECM), Community Supports (CS), Doulas, and Community Health Workers (CHW).
- Drug Formulary: Information regarding the Drug Formulary can be found on the Medi-Cal Rx website at https://medi-calrx.dhcs.ca.gov/home/.
- Forms and Documents: GCHP's various forms are available.

If you have ideas or suggestions for ways GCHP can improve its service to providers or members, please email them to **ProviderRelations@goldchp.org**.

SECTION 2: GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Administrative Day: Any day in an acute care facility for which inpatient care is not required due to medical necessity or the physical condition of the member and the member is awaiting placement in a nursing home, subacute facility or other lower level of care as approved by Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP).

Administrative Members: The following are considered Administrative Members:

- Share of Cost (SOC): A member who has Medi-Cal with an SOC requirement, which is the amount they must pay for health care before Medi-Cal starts to pay. SOC is a set amount based on how much money a member makes. Members only need to meet the SOC in the months health care services are received.
- Long-Term Care (LTC): A member who is residing in a skilled- or intermediate-care nursing facility and has been assigned an LTC aid code.
- Out of Area: A member who lives outside of GCHP's service area but whose Medi-Cal case remains in Ventura County.
- Other Health Coverage: A member who has other health insurance that is primary to their Medi-Cal coverage. This includes members with both Medi-Cal and Medicare, as well as members with both Medi-Cal and commercial insurance. Medi-Cal is the payer of last resort; therefore, GCHP members with other health coverage must access care through their primary insurance.
- Members who are enrolled under special aid categories, such as the Breast and Cervical Cancer Treatment Program (BCCTP).
- Hospice: A member who has been assigned a Medi-Cal Hospice Restricted Services Code.

Administrative members are not required to select a primary care provider (PCP). The GCHP member identification (ID) card will indicate if the member is Administrative. These members can see any PCP that is contracted with GCHP.

Adverse Benefit Determination: The denial, deferral or limited authorization of a requested covered service, including: determinations on the level of service / care; denials of medical necessity; reduction, suspension, or termination of a previously authorized service; the denial, in whole or part, of payment for a service; failure to provide timely services, as defined by the state, for a resident in a rural area; the denial of a member's ability to exercise the right to obtain services out of GCHP's network; and the denial of a member's request to dispute a financial liability, including cost sharing, deductibles, and other financial liabilities.

Aid Code: A classification to identify the types of services for which a Medi-Cal member is eligible.

Appeal: A review by GCHP of an adverse benefit determination.

Assigned Members: Medi-Cal members who have been assigned to, or who have chosen, a PCP or clinic for their medical care.

Attending Physician: a) Any physician who is acting in the provision of emergency services to meet the medical needs of the Medi-Cal member, b) Any physician who is, through referral from the member's PCP, actively engaged in the treatment or evaluation of a Medi-Cal member's condition, and c) Any physician designated by the medical director, or designee, to provide services for GCHP members.

Auto Assignment: This is the process used by GCHP for assigning members automatically to a particular PCP (physician or clinic) by a pre-determined process. It only occurs when the member has been unable to complete the selection process within the 30 days allowed upon initial enrollment. The auto assignment is based on the zip code of the member's residence, location of PCP office, past history with a specific PCP, mother-child and family link, available capacity in the provider's practice to accept new GCHP

members, preferred language, and other factors. If the member is not satisfied with the auto assignment, the member can contact GCHP and select a new PCP. The new selection is effective on the first of the month following the date of the selection. If the member completes the PCP selection in a timely manner, there will be no auto assignment.

California Children's Services (CCS): A public health program that ensures the delivery of specialized diagnostic, treatment, and therapy services to financially and medically eligible children under the age of 21 who have CCS-eligible conditions, as defined in Title 22, California Code of Regulations (CCR), Section 41800.

California Immunization Registry (CAIR2): The California Immunization Registry (CAIR2) is a secure, confidential statewide computerized immunization information system for California residents. The registry is accessed online to help providers and other authorized users track patient immunization records, reduce missed opportunities, and help fully immunize Californians of all ages.

California Advancing and Innovating Medi-Cal (CalAIM): A state Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) initiative to improve the quality of life and health outcomes of Medi-Cal members by implementing delivery system, program and payment reforms across the Medi-Cal program.

Capitation Payment: The prepaid monthly amount that GCHP pays to PCPs (or a group of PCPs) based on assigned membership and treatment of capitated primary care services for the scope of services incorporated into the PCP Medical Services Agreement (as defined in Attachment C).

Care Management: A collaborative process that assesses, develops, plans, implements, coordinates, monitors, and evaluates the options and services needed to meet a member's health and human service needs and is characterized by advocacy, communication, and resource management. Care Management includes:

- Care Coordination and Non-Complex Case Management: Short-term interventions for members with potential risks due to barriers or gaps in services, poor transitional care, and/or co-morbid medical issues that require brief care management interventions. Care Coordination is focused on improving the link between members and providers to reduce inefficiencies that present as risks for higher utilization.
- Complex Case Management: A collaborative process that provides intensive, personalized case
 management services and goal setting for members who have complex medical needs and require
 a wide variety of resources to manage their health and improve their quality of life.

Case Rate: An all-inclusive payment paid by GCHP to a participating provider for a defined set of covered services that are delivered to a member for medical or surgical management of the case in question (e.g., heart transplant cases).

Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS): An operating division of the Department of Health and Human Services (HHS), which is the federal agency that administers and oversees the nation's major health programs, including Medicare and Medicaid.

Chief Medical Officer (CMO): The medical director of GCHP or their designee; a physician licensed to practice medicine in the state who is employed by GCHP to monitor quality improvement and to implement the quality improvement activities of GCHP.

Claim Form: Form UB-04 is used by participating hospitals, Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHC), Long Term Care facilities, Nursing Facility Level A (NF-A) and Nursing Facility Level B (NF-B) services and other facilities to report to GCHP the provision of covered services to Medi-Cal members, to request payment for services or to report encounter data. Claim form CMS-1500 is primarily used by participating

physicians to report to GCHP the provision of covered services to Medi-Cal members, to request payment for services or to report encounter data.

Clean Claim: A claim in which all information necessary to determine payer liability for the adjudicating of the claim is present (Health and Safety Code Section 1371).

Community-Based Adult Services (CBAS): An outpatient, facility-based service program that delivers skilled nursing care, social services, therapies, personal care, family / caregiver training and support, meals, and provides transportation to / from the facility-based service to eligible Medi-Cal beneficiaries.

Community Health Worker (CHW): A skilled and trained individual who is able to render clinically appropriate Medi-Cal covered benefits and services and is an enrolled Medi-Cal provider.

Community Supports (CS): Substitute services or settings to those required under the California Medicaid State Plan that GCHP may select and offer to members pursuant to 42 CFR section 438.3(e)(2) when the substitute service or setting is medically appropriate and more cost-effective than the service or setting listed in the California Medicaid State Plan.

Comprehensive Perinatal Services Program (CPSP): A program that provides a wide range of services for pregnant women, from conception through 60 days postpartum. In addition to standard obstetrical services, women receive enhanced services in the areas of nutrition, psychosocial behavior and health education. This approach is shown to reduce both low birth weight rates and overall health care costs in women and infants.

Concurrent Review: A part of a utilization management program in which health care is reviewed by GCHP as it is provided. Reviewers are usually nurses and monitor the appropriateness of care, the care setting and the progress of the discharge plan. The ongoing review is directed by GCHP to ensure the member receives the appropriate level of care at the right time and at a reasonable cost while maintaining the effectiveness and quality of care. Concurrent Review may be done on-site at a hospital's facilities, by phone, by fax or via secured e-mail. GCHP also conducts Concurrent Review in accordance with evidence-based criteria to determine if the services provided by a hospital are in accordance with the Member Handbook.

Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers and Systems (CAHPS®): CAHPS® are survey tools developed by the Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality (AHRQ) that ask patients to report on their experiences with a range of health care services at multiple levels of the delivery system. The state Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) uses CAHPS® surveys to periodically assesses the perceptions and experiences of Medi-Cal Managed Care (MCMC) beneficiaries as part of its process for evaluating the quality of health care services provided by Medi-Cal Managed Care Plans (MCPs) to MCMC beneficiaries.

Contract Year: The 12-month period following the effective date of the service agreement between a specific participating provider and GCHP.

Contracting Providers: A medical group, independent practice association, or other entity that delivers, furnishes, or otherwise arranges for or provides health care services for GCHP members under a contract, but does not include an individual or a plan.

Council for Affordable Quality Healthcare (CAQH) ProView: A nationally recognized central repository for providers to use to self-report professional and practice information to payers, hospitals, large provider groups and health systems.

County Organized Health System (COHS): A managed care health plan serving Medi-Cal members in a designated county. The COHS known as Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP) only serves Ventura County.

Covered Billed Charges: The amount charged by a provider for services that are covered Medi-Cal benefits. This amount may be different from the total billed charges, as some of the billed charges may be for non-covered services. GCHP will deduct the total amount of charges for non-covered services from the total billed amount to determine the Covered Billed Charges.

Covered Services: All medically necessary services to which members are entitled from GCHP, as set forth in the Member Handbook, including primary care, referral specialist, medical, hospital, preventive, ancillary, emergency, and health education services.

Crossover Claim: A claim for a member who is eligible for both traditional Medicare and Medi-Cal, where traditional Medicare pays a portion of the claim and Medi-Cal is billed for any remaining deductible and/ or coinsurance. These members are often referred to as "Medi-Medi" or dually eligible members. These members are classified as Administrative Members. California law limits Medi-Cal reimbursement for a crossover claim to an amount that when combined with the Medicare payment should not exceed the maximum allowed under GCHP's contract with the provider. (Refer to Welfare and Institutions Code, Section 14109.5.)

Cultural and Linguistic Services: GCHP is committed to delivering culturally and linguistically appropriate health care services to its diverse membership. The goal of Cultural and Linguistic Services is to ensure that all GCHP network providers receive training on cultural competency, diversity, equity, and inclusion (DEI). Training materials are on the GCHP **website** for providers to review.

Delegated Provider: A contracted GCHP provider to whom certain services and processes have been delegated for oversight.

Department of Health Care Services (DHCS): A state regulatory organization that finances and administers a number of individual health care service delivery programs, including the California Medical Assistance Program (Medi-Cal). Its mission is to protect and promote the health status of Californians through the financing and delivery of individual health care services.

Doula: A doula provides person-centered, culturally competent care that supports the racial, ethnic, linguistic, and cultural diversity of members while adhering to evidence-based best practices. Doula services are aimed at preventing perinatal complications and improving health outcomes for birthing parents and infants.

eApply: A secure web-based module that gives practitioners, groups, and facilities the tools to apply, attest and update their Credentialing information online.

Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnostic, and Treatment (EPSDT) Benefit (also known as Medi-Cal for Kids & Teens): The EPSDT benefit provides comprehensive and preventive health services for children under 21 years of age who are enrolled in Medi-Cal. EPSDT is key to ensuring that children and adolescents receive appropriate services, including routine physicals, well-child exams, immunizations, and screenings, such as developmental, dental, hearing, vision, and lead screenings.

Eligible Beneficiary: Any Medi-Cal beneficiary assigned to GCHP who receives Medi-Cal benefits under the terms of one of the specific aid codes set forth in the Medi-Cal agreement. The member must be certified as eligible for Medi-Cal by the county agency responsible for determining the initial and continuing eligibility of persons for GCHP's service area.

Emergency Medical Condition: A medical condition that is manifested by acute symptoms of sufficient severity, including severe pain, such that a prudent layperson who possesses an average knowledge of health and medicine could reasonably expect the absence of immediate medical attention to result in: a) Placing the health of the individual (or, in the case of a pregnant woman, the health of the woman and/or her unborn child) in serious jeopardy; b) Serious impairment to bodily functions; or c) Serious dysfunction of any bodily organ or part.

Emergency Services: Those health services needed to evaluate or stabilize an emergency medical or psychiatric condition.

Encounter Data: Captures the interaction between a patient and a provider who delivers services to the patient. It includes detailed information about the individual services rendered by a provider contracted with a managed care entity.

Encounter Data Validation (EDV): The state Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) contracts with Health Services Advisory Group, Inc. (HSAG), an External Quality Review Organization (EQRO), to conduct an Encounter Data Validation (EDV) study that evaluates the completeness and accuracy of encounter data submitted to DHCS.

Enhanced Care Management (ECM): ECM is a foundational component of California Advancing and Innovating Medi-Cal (CalAIM) and is intended to increase coordination between medical and behavioral health services / systems, create infrastructure to support multi-system coordination and care delivery, and address homelessness / unstable housing of eligible members. ECM providers deliver comprehensive care management, care coordination, health promotion, comprehensive transitional care, individual and family support services, and referrals to community social supports.

Enrollment: The process by which the Ventura County Human Services Agency (HSA) determines the Medi-Cal benefit eligibility of an individual. The agency then communicates the eligibility status to GCHP.

Excluded Services: Services that are non-covered or carved-out for which GCHP is not responsible and for which it does not receive a capitation payment from the state Department of Health Care Services (DHCS).

Expedited Review: A case that may involve an imminent and serious threat to the health of a member, including, but not limited to, severe pain or potential loss of life, limb or major bodily function, to be resolved or decided on within 72 hours from the time of receipt of the request. If this is an Expedited Grievance, it might not involve the appeal of an Adverse Benefit Determination; however, it can be urgent or expedited in nature.

External Quality Review Organization (EQRO): External Quality Review Organization (EQRO), formerly referred to as an outside auditing firm.

Facility Site Review: GCHP conducts Facility Site Reviews (FSR) for new PCPs at the time of initial credentialing, and then triennially, as a requirement for participation in the state Medi-Cal Managed Care Program regardless of the status of other accreditation and/or certifications. An FSR will be conducted using the state Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) Medi-Cal Managed Care Division (MMCD) Site Review Survey Tool and Medical Record Survey Tool. GCHP will conduct Physical Accessibility Reviews (PARS) at PCP sites, in addition to sites for providers of ancillary services and Community-Based Adult Services (CBAS), which serve a high volume of Seniors and Persons with Disabilities (SPD) beneficiaries, using DHCS tools.

Fee-For-Service Payment (FFS): The lowest allowable Medi-Cal payment that is permitted by the state Department of Health Care Services (DHCS). This rate is the lower of the following rates applicable at the time the services were rendered by the provider: a) The usual charge made to the general public by the provider; b) The maximum FFS rate determined by DHCS for the service under the Medi-Cal Program; or c) The rate agreed to by the provider. All covered services that are authorized and compensated by GCHP pursuant to its written service agreement will be compensated by GCHP at the lowest allowable FFS rate unless otherwise identified in a special attachment to the signed agreement.

Fiscal Year of Plan: The 12 calendar months for which GCHP prepares and submits its financial reports. GCHP's fiscal year starts July 1 and ends June 30.

GCHP Managed Member: An eligible Medi-Cal beneficiary who is enrolled with GCHP and is not required to select a PCP (e.g., certain foster care children).

Gemini Diversified Services (GDS): The Credentials Verification Organization (CVO) that has contracted with GCHP to verify primary source documentation of credentials for all provider applicants wanting to join GCHP's network to serve Medi-Cal beneficiaries in Ventura County.

GCHP Direct Member: An eligible Medi-Cal beneficiary who is enrolled with GCHP and is assigned to a PCP. These members will have an aid code of L1, M1 or 7U.

Governmental Agencies: The state Department of Health Care Services (DHCS), Department of Managed Health Care (DMHC), Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS), U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ), and California Attorney General and/or any other agency that has jurisdiction over GCHP or Medi-Cal (Medicaid).

Grievance: An expression of dissatisfaction about any matter other than an Adverse Benefit Determination. Grievances may include, but are not limited to, the quality of care or services provided, interpersonal relationships such as rudeness of a provider or employee, and a member's right to dispute an extension of time proposed by GCHP to make an authorization decision.

Health Care Effectiveness Data and Information Set (HEDIS®): HEDIS® is a set of standardized performance measures that are developed and maintained by the National Committee for Quality Assurance (NCQA). HEDIS® measures are used by health plans to monitor and track quality metrics and compare rates to national and regional benchmarks.

Health Care Program for Children in Foster Care (HCPCFC): The Health Care Program for Children in Foster Care (HCPCFC) is embedded in local Child Welfare Departments providing Public Health Nurse consultation, oversight, and management of the medical, dental, behavioral, and developmental needs of youth in out-of-home placement. The program functions as a part of local Child Welfare Departments, bridging the unique social drivers of health (SDoH) experienced by this population, health outcomes, and providers of health services.

Health Information Form (HIF) / Member Evaluation Tool (MET): A screening tool sent to newly enrolled GCHP members to identify those who may need expedited services.

Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA): HIPAA was enacted in 1996 by Congress to protect health insurance coverage for workers and their families under certain conditions related to employment. This law also covers issues of privacy over the collection, use, handling and disclosure of confidential patient records called Private Health Information (PHI).

Health Services Advisory Group (HSAG): Health Services Advisory Group (HSAG) is the largest External Quality Review Organization (EQRO) in the nation and provides quality review services for states that

operate Medicaid managed care programs and fee-for-service programs. The state Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) contracts with HSAG to provide auditing and oversight for HEDIS[®], EDV, PIPs, and CAHPS.

Hospital: Any acute general care facility.

Hospital Observation Services: Hospital Observation Services shall be approved without an authorization for the first 48-hour period. For observation services more than the initial 48-hour period, the hospital shall notify GCHP to request GCHP's review of medical necessity to extend observation services. GCHP will conduct subsequent review of medical necessity for such extended observation services by no later than the end of the next business day. Should the hospital fail to notify GCHP to request GCHP's review of medical necessity to extend observation services and GCHP's authorization for an extended period of observation services for a member, payment for any claims submitted by the hospital for such additional observation services are subject to GCHP's review and determination that such additional observation services that GCH determines are not medically necessary. In most circumstances GCHP shall not be responsible for payment for observation services in excess of 48-hours (i.e., two 24-hour periods or two calendar days).

Identification Card (ID Card): The card that is prepared and issued by GCHP that bears the GCHP logo and contains the member's: a) Name, b) ID number, c) PCP or clinic (if assigned / regular member) and d) Other identifying information. NOTE: The card is not proof of the member's Medi-Cal or GCHP eligibility.

Initial Health Appointment: The Initial Health Appointment (IHA) is a comprehensive assessment completed during a member's initial encounter with their Primary Care Provider (PCP). The IHA enables the member's PCP to assess and manage the acute, chronic and preventive health needs of the member. All new plan members must have a complete IHA within 120 calendar days of enrollment. This is a requirement of the state Department of Health Care Services (DHCS).

Inovalon: Inovalon, a nationally recognized and certified HEDIS[®] vendor, calculates GCHP's MCAS rates and conducts GCHP's MCAS related medical record retrieval and abstraction projects.

Language Assistance Services: Language assistance services shall be provided to GCHP members at no cost, be accurate and timely, and protect the privacy and independence of the limited English proficiency (LEP) individual on a 24/7 basis at key points of contact.

Limited Service Hospital: Any hospital that is under contract with GCHP, but not as a primary hospital because it is located outside of Ventura County. (See: Primary Hospital)

Long-Term Care (LTC): The care of patients in long-term care who are in need of nursing care and assistance with activities of daily living.

Managed Care Accountability Set (MCAS): A set of performance measures selected by the state Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) that are used by Medi-Cal Managed Care Plans (MCPs) to report quality of care rates annually. MCAS includes measures from the National Committee for Quality Assurance (NCQA) HEDIS[®] measure set, the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) Adult and Child Core Measure Sets for Medicaid, and other standardized measures from recognized measure stewards, which provides DHCS and MCPs with a standardized method to report quality metrics.

Medical Home Case Management: Medical Home Case Management is responsible for primary and preventive care, and for the referral, consultation, and ordering of therapy, admission to hospitals, provision of Medi-Cal covered health education and preventive services, follow-up care, coordinated

hospital discharge planning that includes necessary post-discharge care, and maintenance of a medical record with documentation of referred and follow-up services.

Medically Necessary: Reasonable and necessary services to protect life, prevent significant illness or significant disability, or alleviate severe pain through the diagnosis or treatment of disease, illness, or injury. These services will be in accordance with professionally recognized standards of medical practice and not primarily for the convenience of the member or the participating provider. When determining the medical necessity of covered services for a Medi-Cal beneficiary under the age of 21, medical necessity is expanded to include the services that are necessary to correct or ameliorate the defects and physical and mental illnesses and conditions discovered by Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnostic, and Treatment (EPSDT) screening services.

Medi-Cal for Kids and Teens: Medi-Cal refers to the federally mandated Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnostic, and Treatment (EPSDT) Medicaid benefit known as **Medi-Cal for Kids and Teens**.

Medi-Cal Managed Care Program: The program under which GCHP operates in accordance with its Medi-Cal agreement with the state Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) for the service area.

Medi-Cal Provider Manual: The state Department of Health Care Services' (DHCS) provider manual, issued by the DHCS fiscal intermediary for the state.

Member (Regular): An eligible Medi-Cal beneficiary who is enrolled in GCHP and is required to select a PCP. Enrolled members will have the name of their PCP listed on their GCHP ID cards.

Member Handbook: The GCHP Medi-Cal Combined Evidence of Coverage and Disclosure Form that sets forth the benefits to which a Medi-Cal member is entitled under the Medi-Cal Managed Care Program operated by GCHP, the limitations and exclusions to which the Medi-Cal member is subject, and the terms of the relationship and agreement between GCHP and the Medi-Cal member.

Non-Emergency Medical Transportation (NEMT): Transportation services required to access medical appointments and to obtain other medically necessary covered services by members who have a medical condition necessitating the use of medical transportation as defined in Title 22, CCR, Section 51323. Transportation is provided by Ventura Transit System (VTS) via non-emergency ambulances, gurney vans, or wheelchair vans.

Non-Medical Transportation (NMT): Transportation services to and from a medical appointment for treatment or screening when an ambulance, litter van or wheelchair van is not medically needed. NMT is provided by Ventura Transit System (VTS) using passenger vehicles.

Non-Physician Medical Practitioner: A physician assistant, nurse practitioner, registered nurse or certified midwife authorized to provide primary care services under physician supervision.

Non-Traditional Provider: A provider who does not have a state-level Medi-Cal enrollment pathway for the covered services they provide.

Notice of Action (NOA): A formal letter informing a member and/or provider of a benefit determination.

Notice of Appeal Resolution (NAR): A formal letter informing a member that an Adverse Benefit Determination has been overturned or upheld.

Nurse Family Partnership (NFP): Nurse-Family Partnership empowers first-time mothers to transform their lives and create better futures for themselves and their babies. Nurse-Family Partnership works

by having specially educated nurses regularly visit young, first-time mothers-to-be, starting early in the pregnancy and continuing through the child's second birthday.

Observation Service: Covered services furnished to a member by a hospital on the hospital's premises, including the use of a bed and physician periodic monitoring and active monitoring by the hospital's nursing or other ancillary staff. Observation Service is for patient care, which is considered reasonable and necessary as ordered by a physician to evaluate a patient's condition on an outpatient basis or to determine the need for an inpatient admission.

Out-of-Area: The geographic area outside of Ventura County.

Out-of-Plan: Non-contracted providers located inside or outside of Ventura County, also referred to as "non-par" providers, indicating that they are not participating providers in GCHP's network.

Outpatient Services: Medical procedures or tests that can be done in a medical facility without requiring an overnight stay. Outpatient services include:

- Wellness and prevention, such as counseling and weight loss programs.
- Diagnosis, such as lab tests and MRI scans.
- Treatment, such as some surgeries and chemotherapy.
- Rehabilitation, such as physical therapy.

Participating Hospital: A facility licensed by the state as an acute care hospital or other licensed facility that provides covered services – or for any out-of-area / out-of-plan services as authorized by GCHP – to Medi-Cal members through a written agreement between the participating hospital and GCHP.

Participating Provider: A health professional, facility or vendor typically licensed by the state and credentialed to provide covered services to members and that has executed an agreement with GCHP to participate in GCHP's network of contracted providers.

Per Diem Payment: The all-inclusive, fixed amount of payment for a hospital day, unless exceptions (carve-outs) are listed. The applicable per diem payment is described in the hospital service agreement.

Performance Improvement Project (PIP): The state Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) requires all Medi-Cal Managed Care Plans (MCPs) to participate in a minimum of two PIPs per year. The PIP topics selected are based on demonstrated areas of poor performance, such as low MCAS, HEDIS® or CAHPS® scores, or DHCS / EQRO recommendations, and must be aligned with the state's Quality Strategy goals for preserving and improving the health of Californians as well as the goals set forth in the California Advancing and Innovating Medi-Cal (CalAIM) Initiative.

Physical Accessibility Review Survey (PARS): A state Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) standardized tool that requires reviewers to focus on the exterior and interior physical accessibility standards for members receiving services at primary care and high-volume specialty / ancillary provider sites.

Physician: A person who holds a degree of Doctor of Medicine (MD) or Osteopathy (DO) from an accredited university.

Plan: The Medi-Cal Managed Care Program governed by the Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission (VCMMCC), doing business as Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP), serving Ventura County's Medi-Cal eligible beneficiaries.

Plan-Do-Study-Act (PDSA) Cycle: A scientific method that is used by the Institute for Healthcare Improvement's (IHI) Model for Improvement and adopted by the state Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) as one of the tools used by Medi- Cal Managed Care Plans (MCPs) to conduct improvement projects. The PDSA methodology applies a rapid cycle / continuous quality improvement process that is designed to test, track and evaluate the effectiveness of interventions. DHCS may request MCPs to use the PDSA cycle methodology to test, document and evaluate the effectives of interventions used to improve performance measures.

Plan Partner: A health care service plan, subject to regulation by the Department of Managed Health Care (DMHC), which contracts directly with GCHP and:

- Is responsible for providing health care services for GCHP members.
- Receives compensation for those services on any capitated or fixed periodic payment basis.
- Is responsible for the processing and payment of claims made by providers for services rendered on behalf of the Plan Partner that are covered under the capitation or fixed periodic payment made by GCHP to the Plan Partner.

Population Health Management (PHM): Population Health Management is a whole-system, personcentered strategy that focuses on wellness and prevention, includes assessments of each member's health risks and health-related social needs, and provides care management and care transitions across delivery systems and settings.

Potential Quality Issue (PQI): A suspected deviation from expected provider performance, clinical care or outcome of care, which requires further investigation to determine whether an actual quality issue or opportunity for improvement exists.

Primary Care Provider (PCP): A clinic, physician(s) or mid-level licensed professional practicing under physician supervision who has an agreement with GCHP to provide primary care services. The individual must be licensed by the appropriate professional state board and enrolled in the state's Medi-Cal program. The PCP is responsible for supervising, coordinating, and providing primary care services to members, initiating referrals, and maintaining the continuity of care for the members who select or are assigned to the PCP. PCPs include general and family practitioners, internists, pediatricians, and other mid-level professionals, such as nurse practitioners, physician assistants, etc.

Primary Care Provider (PCP) Directory: The listing of all PCPs and clinics that is periodically updated and published by the Plan. It is provided to members to help them in their selection of a PCP for each member of their family (members of the same family do not have to select the same PCP). Members can change their selection. (See: Auto Assignment)

Primary Care Services: Those services defined in Attachment C of the PCP Medical Services Agreement and are provided to members by a PCP. These services constitute a basic level of health care usually rendered in ambulatory settings and focus on general health needs. (See: Capitation Payment)

Primary Hospital: Any hospital affiliated with participating PCPs that has a written agreement with GCHP to provide covered services to members.

Provider Advisory Committee (PAC): A committee composed of 10 voting members. Each seat represents a constituency served by GCHP and serves as a platform to exchange ideas and present peer / community interests to GCHP regarding health care matters at the national, regional, state and local levels.

These issues may include, but are not limited to:

- Improvement of health care and clinical quality.
- Improvement of communications, relations and cooperation between physicians and GCHP.

 Matters of a clinical or administrative nature that affect the interaction between physicians and GCHP.

Provider Information Update Form (PIUF): A universal form used by GCHP to document any adds, changes or terminations for a practitioner, group or facility.

Provider Manual: The manual of operational policies and procedures for GCHP.

Provider Preventable Condition (PPC): A medical condition or complication that a patient develops during a hospital stay or ambulatory surgical encounter that was not present at admission. PPCs include "Health Care Acquired Conditions" (HCACs) defined in §1886(d)(4)(D)(ii) and (iv) of the Social Security Act and Other Provider Preventable Conditions (OPPCs) per Title 42 CFR §434.6(a)(12)(i), 438.3(g), and 447.26.

Quality Improvement and Health Equity Transformation (QIHET) Program: The QIHET Program supports GCHP's mission to improve the health of our members through the provision of high quality care and services by using systematic activities that monitor and evaluate clinical and non-clinical service, patient safety, and member experiences provided to members according to the standards set forth in statute, regulations, and GCHP's agreement with the state Department of Health Care Services (DHCS). The QIHET Program consists of processes that measure the effectiveness and quality of care, identify problems, and implement improvement on a continuing basis toward identified target outcomes and measurement. GCHP's QIHET Program is overseen by the Quality Improvement and Health Equity Committee (QIHEC).

Referral Physician (also referred to as a Participating Provider): Any qualified physician, duly licensed in California, who meets the general credentialing requirements of GCHP and has signed an agreement with GCHP. The provider, to whom a PCP may refer any member for consultation and treatment, has an executed agreement with GCHP.

Referral Services: Covered services, which are not primary care services, provided by specialist physicians on referral from a PCP.

Seniors and Persons with Disabilities (SPD): Population that includes members with chronic conditions, members with specialty mental health service needs, members with substance use disorder needs, members with intellectual and developmental disabilities, and children with special health care needs.

Service Agreement: An agreement entered into between a licensed physician, hospital, allied health care professional (non-physician, non-hospital), or other such health care providers and the Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission (VCMMCC), doing business as Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP).

Service Area: GCHP's service area in Ventura County and the zip codes located therein.

Street Medicine Provider: A licensed medical provider (e.g., Doctor of Medicine [MD] / Doctor of Osteopathic Medicine [DO], Physician Assistant [PA], Nurse Practitioner [NP], Certified Nurse Midwife [CNM]) who conducts patient visits outside of the four walls of clinics or hospitals and directly on the street, in environments where unsheltered individuals may be. Street medicine providers who choose to act as a member's assigned PCP must agree to provide the essential components of the Medical Home in order to provide comprehensive and continuous medical care.

Urgent Care Services: Services furnished to an individual who requires services within 48 hours to avoid the likely onset of an emergency medical condition.

Vision Care: Pursuant to the policies and limitations of the Medi-Cal schedule of covered vision benefits, the eye examination, eyeglasses prescription and basic low-cost frames will be provided by GCHP's contracted optometrist, VSP. Lenses must be provided by the Prison Industries Authority (PIA) under contract with the state Department of Health Care Services (DHCS).

Section 3: Provider Application, Credentialing and Contracting

Join Our Network

Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP) requires the following institutions, practitioners, non-physician medical practitioners and allied health professionals to be credentialed and recredentialed. Providers interested in contracting with GCHP should contact **ProviderContracting@goldchp.org**.

To participate in the GCHP network, providers who have a state-level Medi-Cal enrollment pathway must meet the following criteria:

- Be enrolled with the state Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) Medi-Cal program.
- Have their credentials approved by GCHP's Credentials / Peer Review Committee.
- Sign a GCHP service agreement.
- All new providers must complete a new provider orientation within 30 days of their signed GCHP service agreement.

New Provider Orientations

All new providers, including new practitioners being added to an existing provider group, must complete a New Provider Orientation Training as part of the contractual obligation to be a Medi-Cal managed care provider (MCP) with GCHP.

Upon execution of a new contract, GCHP will send a welcome letter to the provider within 10 days of the contract effective date. The welcome letter provides the effective date that provider can begin to see GCHP members. It will also initiate the orientation and training process, providing vital information and training links. This will ensure the transition to GCHP's network is prompt and seamless.

An orientation attestation form must be completed and returned to GCHP within 30 days from the contract effective date, which acknowledges having received and reviewed the orientation training. The attestation form may be signed by the newly contracted practitioner or a designated representative on his / her behalf.

The new provider orientation provides education and training on important GCHP programs and services for members, as well as operational processes and procedures including, but not limited to:

Member Eligibility	California Children Services (CCS)	Cultural and Linguistic Resources and Services
Access to Care Requirements	Medi-Cal for Kids & Teens	Referrals and Authorizations
Transportation Benefits	Behavioral Health Benefits	Claims, Billing, and Payments
Grievances and Appeals	Member's Rights	Web Portal Access and Utilization
Fraud, Waste and Abuse	Provider Roles and Responsibilities	Provider Resources

The Provider Relations Team will assist in facilitating provider orientations and alert providers of any / all DHCS or GCHP required trainings and deadlines. Providers can also review the new provider orientation and complete the attestation form online by visiting the GCHP **website**.

Credentialing and Recredential Process

GCHP has a quality-of-care program designed to ensure GCHP health care providers meet professional standards for the delivery of health care to our members. As part of this program, providers are required to

be credentialed, recredentialed, and provide any necessary updates / changes that may impact member care and/or contractual obligations. Providers are responsible for completing GCHP's credentialing application in a timely manner to avoid delays in processing and/or plan participation interruptions. Providers are also responsible for completing a Provider Information Update Form (PIUF) to notify GCHP of any updates that may impact member care and/or contractual obligations. Each provider must meet the minimum Credentialing Standards for participation in the GCHP Network. These guidelines are intended to comply with standards of GCHP, DHCS or its designee, NCQA, or any other applicable regulatory and/or accreditation entities where applicable.

GCHP conducts Credentials / Peer Review Committee meetings and reviews practitioner's information in a non-discriminatory manner. No practitioner will be denied privileges with GCHP, have any corrective actions imposed, or have their privileges suspended or terminated solely on the basis of race, ethnic / national identity, age, gender, sexual orientation, or the type of patient that the practitioner treats. Practitioners have the right to file any issues or concerns regarding fair and non-discriminatory practices in the credentialing / recredentialing process. Any issues or concerns regarding fair and non-discriminatory practices in the credentialing / recredentialing process should be submitted to **ProviderRelations@goldchp.org**.

Please note: Providers listed are subject to change. Additional providers not listed below may also require credentialing and recredentialing. Please inquire by emailing **Credentialing@goldchp.org**.

Medical Physicians:

- Allopathic Physicians (MD), including those anesthesiologists with pain management practices
- Chiropractor
- Osteopathic Physicians (DO)
- Podiatrist (DPM)
- Doctor of Dental Surgery (DDS), including oral surgeons
- Optometrists providing services covered under the medial benefits plan

Behavioral Health and/or Substance Use Disorder Practitioners:

- Psychiatrist and other physicians, including addiction medicine specialist
- Doctoral or master's level licensed psychologists
- Master's level Licensed Clinical Social Workers (LCSW)
- Master's level Clinical Nurse Specialists or Psychiatric Nurse Practitioners (CNS, PMHNP)
- Licensed Professional Clinical Counselors
- Certified Qualified Autism Service Providers
- Other behavioral health specialists who are licensed, certified, or registered by the state to practice independently

Non-Physician Medical Practitioners:

- Certified Nurse Midwife (CNM)
- Clinical Nurse Specialist (CNS)
- Certified Registered Nurse Anesthetist (CRNA)
- Nurse Practitioner (NP, PNP, ANP)
- Physician Assistant (PA)

Allied Providers:

- Acupuncturist
- Audiologist
- Board Certified Behavioral Analyst (BCBA) or Board-Certified Associate Behavior Analyst (BCaBA)
- Certified Diabetes Educator
- Hearing Aid Dispenser
- International Board-Certified Lactation Consultant

- Occupational Therapist
- Physical Therapist
- Physical Therapist Assistant
- Registered Dietician / Nutritionist
- Speech Language Pathologist

Organizational Provider

- Hospitals
- Skilled nursing facilities / Long-term care facilities
- Free-standing surgical centers
- Home health agencies / Hospice providers
- Adult day health care providers of Community-Based Adult Services
- Congregate living health facilities
- Free-standing birthing centers
- Chronic dialysis (end-stage renal disease) clinics
- Laboratories
- Behavioral healthcare providers, including ambulatory, residential, and inpatient facilities
- Substance use disorder providers, including ambulatory, residential, and inpatient facilities

To participate in the GCHP network, non-traditional providers who do not have a state-level Medi-Cal enrollment pathway must meet the following criteria:

- Submit a certification application.
- Have their experience and/or certifications approved by GCHP's Peer Review Committee.
- Sign a GCHP provider agreement.

Non-Traditional Providers

- Community Health Workers
- Community Supports
- Doulas
- Enhanced Care Management

Initial Credentialing

Once GCHP's Credentialing Department receives notification from the Contracting Department, providers will receive the following:

- A copy of GCHP's credentialing policies is available on GCHP's website to assist providers in providing the information needed to begin credentialing. Criteria for credentialing can be found in the policies under "Minimum Professional Standards."
- A Notice to Practitioners of Credentialing Rights / Responsibilities will be sent to providers to sign.
- Additional items may be needed and will be sent to providers such as: Attestation / Release form, Attachments / Addendums, etc.
- If the provider is currently participating in the Council for Affordable Quality Healthcare (CAQH), some information may be used by credentialing staff to help with processing the credentialing application.

Below are additional credentialing pre-requisites for some physician specialties.

Additional Requirements: California Children's Services (CCS), Comprehensive Perinatal Services Program (CPSP), HIV/AIDS

For some physician specialties, there are additional credentialing pre-requisites. For example:

- Neonatologists should be certified by California Children's Services (CCS).
- Obstetricians should be paneled by the Comprehensive Perinatal Services Program (CPSP).
- HIV/AIDS specialists must document that they meet certain additional education and training requirements.
- Primary care offices require Facility Site Reviews (FSRs).

For more information on these requirements, please contact GCHP's Provider Contracting Department at **ProviderContracting@goldchp.org**.

CREDENTIALING RESOURCES

Policies and Procedures

The following policies can be found on the GCHP website. The policies include detailed information regarding practitioners' right to review information submitted to support their credentialing application, correct erroneous information, request the status of their credentialing / recredentialing application, and file any issues or concerns regarding fair and non-discriminatory practices in the credentialing / recredentialing process.

- Practitioner Credentialing Policy
- Credentialing for Organizational Providers Policy
- Fair Hearing Policy

Medi-Cal Enrollment

Medi-Cal enrollment is a separate process from credentialing. In addition to being credentialed, GCHP is required by federal law to ensure all GCHP contracted providers are enrolled in the state Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) Medi-Cal Program. If you are not sure if you are enrolled with Medi-Cal or became dis-enrolled, please contact the Contracting Department at **ProviderContracting@gchp.org** prior to credentialing.

Gemini Diversified Services (GDS)

Gemini Diversified Services (GDS) is a Credentialing Verification Organization (CVO) that has contracted with GCHP to verify primary source documentation for GCHP providers. GDS does not make any recommendations to approve or deny admission to GCHP's network. All initial credentialing and recredentialing decisions are the sole responsibility of the GCHP Credentials / Peer Review Committee.

Facility Site Review (FSR) for Primary Care Office Locations

Facility site reviews are conducted for initial credentialing, then at least every three years as part of the credentialing verification process, recredentialing, and when there is a change in site location. A nurse certified as a facility site reviewer from GCHP will visit each PCP location to conduct a facility site review (FSR). After the site review has been performed and any applicable corrective action plans (CAPs) have been satisfied, GCHP will complete processing of the information provided (including license status, physical accessibility, safety, etc.), and the initial credentialing and recredentialing files will be submitted to the Credentials / Peer Review Committee for review and approval. If a provider's credentials are approved, the chairperson of the committee or their designee will formally authorize the Provider's Service Agreement.

FSR for Street Medicine

- Street medicine providers who are serving in an assigned PCP capacity are required to undergo
 appropriate level of site review process, which is either a full or a condensed review. For street
 medicine providers that are affiliated with a brick-and-mortar facility or that operate a mobile unit /
 RV, a full review process is conducted.
- For street medicine providers that are not affiliated with a brick-and-mortar facility or mobile unit / RV, a condensed FSR and MRR of the street medicine provider must be conducted to ensure member safety.

POTENTIAL CREDENTIALING ADVERSE ACTIONS

Notification of Adverse Actions Taken Against Practitioners

Federal and state laws require that practitioners notify GCHP immediately by phone (followed up by written notification) if any of the following actions are taken against you or any practitioner on your staff:

- Revocation, suspension, restriction or non-renewal of license, certification, or clinical privileges.
- A peer review action, inquiry or formal corrective action proceeding or investigation.
- A malpractice action or government action, inquiry or formal allegation concerning qualifications or ability to perform services.
- Formal report to the state licensing board or similar organization or the National Practitioner Data Bank (NPDB) of adverse credentialing or peer review action.
- Any material changes in any of the credentialing information.
- Sanctions under the Medicare or Medicaid programs.
- Any incident that may affect any license or certification or that may materially affect performance of the obligations under the Service Agreement with GCHP.

Appealing Adverse Decisions by the Credentials / Peer Review Committee

If the Credentials / Peer Review Committee should make a decision that alters the condition of a provider's participation with GCHP based on issues of quality of care or service, the provider may appeal the adverse decision.

Upon written notification from GCHP of a notice of action or proposed action to the provider, the provider will have 30 days from the date of receipt to request a fair hearing. The provider must submit a written request to GCHP directed to the director of the Quality Improvement Department. Failure to request a hearing within 30 days will be deemed a waiver of the right to a hearing on the matter.

If a provider fails to meet the credentialing standards or if their license, certification, or privileges are revoked, suspended, expired, or not renewed, GCHP must ensure that the provider does not render any services to GCHP's members. Additionally, any conduct that could adversely affect the health or welfare of a member will result in written notification instructing the provider not to render services to members until the matter is resolved to GCHP's satisfaction.

Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility or Voluntary Exclusion

In accordance with 45 CFR (Code of Federal Regulations) Part 76, GCHP receives indirect federal funding through the Medi-Cal program and, therefore, must certify that it has not been debarred or otherwise excluded from receiving these funds. Because GCHP receives this funding, GCHP is considered a "lower tier participant" under this rule.

As subcontractors, GCHP's providers who essentially receive federal funding by nature of their agreement with GCHP are also considered "lower tier participants." Providers must also attest to the fact that, by signing the Provider Service Agreement, they have not been debarred or otherwise excluded by the federal government from receiving federal funding. Pursuant to this certification and your agreement with GCHP, should you or any provider with whom you hold a subcontract become suspended or ineligible to receive federal funds, you are required to notify GCHP immediately.

Fraud, Waste and Abuse Reporting Program

As a provider, you are required to report to GCHP any incident of fraud, waste and/or abuse that may have occurred by members, providers, or employees within 10 days from the date when you first became aware of, or were put on notice of, such activity.

To report fraud, waste and abuse, call GCHP's Compliance and Fraud Hotline at 1-866-672-2615 or visit **secure.ethicspoint.com**. All calls and emails can remain anonymous. Please refer to Section 18 for further details.

Provider Contract Termination

To ensure that medically necessary, in-progress, covered medical services are not interrupted due to the termination of a provider's contract, GCHP assures continuity of care for its members, as well as for newly enrolled individuals who have been receiving covered services from a non-participating provider.

Additionally, GCHP shall make a good faith effort to notify members who received their primary care from, or were seen on a regular basis by, the terminated contracted provider within 15 business days of receipt of issuance of the termination notice from the provider and at least 30 calendar days prior to the effective date of the termination.

In the case of unforeseen circumstances, if GCHP receives less than 30 calendar days notice of a change in the provider contract, GCHP shall notify members of the change within 14 calendar days prior to the effective date of the change.

Primary care providers (PCPs) and specialists shall notify GCHP members no less than 120 days prior to terminating their contract. This allows time to assist beneficiaries with a new PCP assignment. If GCHP terminates a provider's contract without prior notice as a result of his or her endangering the health and safety of members, committing criminal or fraudulent acts, or engaging in grossly unprofessional conduct, GCHP shall provide written notification to affected members within 30 days of the date of the contract termination. If GCHP determines that it is in the best interest of the member, GCHP may modify the notification period to the members.

Upon contract termination, the provider will, at GCHP's discretion, continue to provide covered services to members who are under the care of the provider at the time of the termination until the services being rendered are completed, unless GCHP has made arrangements for the assumption of such services by another physician and/or provider. The provider will help GCHP in the orderly transfer of the members to the provider they choose or to whom they are referred after termination, including, but not limited to, the transfer of the member's medical records. The transition of a member's care post termination shall be in accordance with the phase-out requirements set forth in the Medi-Cal agreement. Payment by GCHP for the continuation of services by the provider after the effective date of termination will be subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the agreement.

In the event of a natural disaster or emergency, GCHP shall notify members of any significant changes in the availability or location of covered services within 14 calendar days of the change.

Continuity of Care

When a practitioner's contract is terminated or discontinued for reasons other than medical discipline, fraud, or other unethical activity, a member may be able to receive care from the practitioner after the contract ends. Continuity of care is permitted for:

- An acute condition.
- A serious chronic condition and/or a terminal illness.
- A pregnancy and care of a newborn child from birth to 36 months (not to exceed 12 months from the contract termination).
- Surgery or other procedure that has been authorized and documented by the provider to occur within 180 days of the contract termination.
- Any other covered service dictated by good professional practice.

The practitioner must continue to treat the member and must accept the payment and/or other terms of the GCHP service agreement. For an acute or terminal condition, the services shall be covered for the duration of the illness or episode of care.

Section 4: California State Programs

Coordination of Care

Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP) encourages and supports coordination and continuity of care across the care continuum. Primary care providers (PCP) play an important role in coordinating the care of their GCHP members. To ensure that PCPs understand the importance of their role in coordinating care, provider training, provider bulletins and other means of communication are used.

Community agencies also provide critically needed support to GCHP's members. Some of the community agencies integral to service delivery include:

- Ventura County California Children's Services (CCS)
- Ventura County Behavioral Health Department (VCBHD)
- Ventura County Health Care Agency (VCHCA)
- Tri-Counties Regional Center (TCRC)
- Women, Infants, and Children (WIC) Program
- Ventura County Public Health Department (VCPHD)
- Local Education Agencies (LEA)
- Healthcare Program for Children in Foster Care (HCPCFC)

To facilitate collaboration with the county's public health agencies, GCHP develops and signs Memorandums of Understanding (MOU). These MOUs provide a framework for working collaboratively to ensure coordination of the member's care.

California Children's Services (CCS)

CCS is a statewide program managed by the state Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) and administered by the Ventura County Health Care Agency's (VCHCA) CCS office. The CCS program provides diagnostic and treatment services, medical case management, and physical and occupational therapy services to children under the age of 21 with CCS-eligible medical conditions. Examples of CCS-eligible conditions include, but are not limited to, chronic medical conditions such as cystic fibrosis, hemophilia, cerebral palsy, heart disease, cancer, traumatic injuries, and infectious diseases producing major sequelae. These are conditions that tend to be relatively uncommon, chronic rather than acute, and are costly. They generally require the care of more than one health care specialist.

If you determine that a member may have a CCS-qualifying condition, you must refer the member to CCS for case certification, case management and treatment.

Only providers who have been approved by CCS are eligible for reimbursement under the CCS program. CCS reimbursement is separate from any reimbursement under GCHP and is billed directly through the CCS program. GCHP will not cover CCS-eligible services denied by CCS because the rendering provider is not paneled by CCS.

Members under the care of CCS will continue to remain enrolled in GCHP for primary care services and referrals unrelated to the CCS conditions. The PCP relationship remains intact for all health care interventions unrelated to the CCS condition.

GCHP's Health Services Department will help identify CCS-eligible conditions through a review of referrals, claims and encounters for diagnosis categories, as well as during hospital concurrent reviews. In addition, GCHP will work with providers, admitting physicians, hospital discharge planners, perinatologists, neonatologists, or hospital pediatricians, as appropriate, to ensure that potential candidates are referred to

CCS. To assist PCPs in identifying CCS patients, GCHP will send providers a monthly list of members who have been referred to CCS.

GCHP and CCS have a shared goal of establishing a consistent process that will ensure every GCHP member within the CCS program has a specified and documented medical home. GCHP care teams work together with families, providers and CCS to match medical homes for optimal outcomes.

For information on CCS or how to become a CCS provider, contact the local CCS office at 1-805-981-5281 or visit the DHCS CCS **website**.

Please notify GCHP's Health Services Department at 1-888-301-1228 immediately about any potential CCS-qualifying condition.

California Immunization Registry (CAIR2)

CAIR2 is a secure, statewide computerized immunization registry and information system. Providers can use CAIR2 to access their patients' immunization information, utilize the integrated vaccine algorithms to determine vaccination due dates, enter vaccine doses administered, manage vaccine inventory, run patient inventory reports, or generate reminder / recall reports for patients who are due for vaccinations. It is a sophisticated and user-friendly tool to help providers manage their patients' immunizations and keep records up to date.

Per Assembly Bill (AB) 1797, starting Jan. 1, 2023, state health care providers who administer vaccines are required to enter:

- Immunization information into CAIR2 or Healthy Futures / RID
- Race and ethnicity information for each patient to support assessments of health disparities in immunization coverage.
- Tuberculosis (TB) test results.

To learn more about these requirements, view AB 1797 Immunization Registry FAQs.

Additionally, per All Plan Letter (APL) 24-008, the state Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) requires that all GCHP providers:

- 1. Ensure the timely provision of immunizations to members in accordance with the most recent schedule and recommendations published by the Advisory Committee on Immunization Practices (ACIP), regardless of a member's age, gender, or medical condition, including pregnancy.
- 2. Document each member's need for ACIP recommended immunizations as part of all regular health visits, including, but not limited to, the following member encounters:
 - Illness, care management, or follow-up appointments
 - Initial health appointments (IHA)
 - Pharmacy services
 - Prenatal and postpartum care
 - Pre-travel visits
 - Sports, school, or work physicals
 - Visits to a local health department (LHD)
 - Well patient checkups

ACIP-recommended immunizations are viewed as preventive services and are not subject to prior authorization.

This immunization information is essential to GCHP, as DHCS requires GCHP to ensure memberspecific immunization information is reported to CAIR2. GCHP strongly encourages providers to report immunization information the same day they are administered.

For more information about CAIR2 and how to join, call 1-800-578-7889 or visit www.CairWeb.org.

Comprehensive Perinatal Services Program (CPSP)

CPSP provides a wide range of services to pregnant women from conception to 60 days postpartum. Women receive enhanced services in addition to standard obstetric services, including nutrition, psychosocial support and health education.

To learn more about CPSP, click here.

Members with Developmental Disabilities or Developmental Delay

A developmental disability is a disability attributable to intellectual disability, cerebral palsy, epilepsy, autism, or other conditions similar to intellectual disability that starts before the age of 18, is likely to continue indefinitely, and constitutes a significant handicap for the individual. A developmental delay is an impairment in the performance of tasks or the meeting of milestones that a child should achieve by a specific chronological age.

The Initial Health Appointment (IHA) is performed when enrolling new members into your practice. During the IHA, you will identify those who have, or are at risk of acquiring, developmental delays or disabilities, including those who have signs and symptoms of intellectual disability, cerebral palsy, epilepsy or autism. Additionally, developmental screening is a required part of each well-baby and well-child visit. Children who are at risk for developmental delay may also be identified during prenatal examinations when developmental histories, as well as physical and neurological examinations, are conducted.

GCHP covers all medically necessary and appropriate developmental screenings, primary preventive care, diagnostic and treatment for all members, including those who have been identified with, or are suspected of having, developmental disabilities, and for members who are at high risk of parenting a child with a developmental disability.

GCHP has entered into an MOU with various agencies to coordinate its activities in serving members with special needs. For example, some members are referred to the appropriately funded agency, such as the local education agencies (LEA). Tri-Counties Regional Center is part of a statewide system of locally based regional centers that offer supportive services programs for California residents with developmental disabilities. Regional centers provide intake and assessment services to determine client eligibility and work with other agencies to provide the full range of early intervention services to meet the client's needs. Regional centers can provide specific information on the services available in the member's service area. Services may include respite, day programs, supervised living, psychosocial and developmental services, and specialized training.

Members with developmental disabilities are linked to a PCP, who is responsible with providing all appropriate preventive services and care, including the necessary Medi-Cal for Kids & Teens benefit (also known as Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnostic, and Treatment [EPSDT]). Preventive care is provided per the current guidelines of the American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) and the U.S. Preventive Services Task Force (USPSTF).

As a PCP, you are required to provide or arrange for medically necessary care to correct or ameliorate developmental disabilities and provide / arrange for all medically necessary therapies and items of durable medical equipment within the scope of your practice. For services that are beyond the scope

of your practice, you should make the necessary referrals and coordinate with the appropriate funding agency.

For more information, contact Tri-Counties Regional Center at 1-805-485-3177, or visit their website.

Community-Based Adult Services (CBAS)

GCHP manages the CBAS benefit for Medi-Cal members. The state eliminated the Adult Day Health Care (ADHC) benefit in 2012 and replaced it with this Medi-Cal benefit.

CBAS provides services and support to eligible GCHP members to keep them healthy and help them live safely at home. Providers should identify potential members to determine if they qualify for CBAS. If you identify a potential member who would benefit from the services provided through the CBAS program, you should refer the member to GCHP for an evaluation.

To qualify, members must be:

- 18 years of age or older.
- Diagnosed with a significant physical, behavioral, or memory problem that impedes activities of daily living (ADLs).
- At risk for institutionalization in a long-term care facility.

Please adhere to the following claims pre-submission check list:

- Eligibility must be verified prior to billing.
- National Provider Identifier (NPI) must be actively registered with GCHP.
- Prior authorization is required for initiation of all CBAS services.
- Claims must be billed on a UB-04 claim form.
- Claims must be submitted within six months of the date of service to avoid timely filing penalties.
- All required fields must be completed, or your claim will be rejected.
- Providers and clearinghouses are required to enroll as a trading partner to submit claims electronically.

For more information about CBAS benefits, including eligibility and referral to providers, please visit the GCHP **website**.

Vision Services

Vision care is provided through Vision Service Plan (VSP) providers. All members can have their eyes examined every two years. Members who have been diagnosed with diabetes are allowed an eye exam every year.

The plan covers:

- Routine eye exam once every 24 months; GCHP may pre-approve additional services as medically necessary.
- Eyeglasses (frames and lens) once every 24 months; contact lens when required for medical conditions such as aphakia, aniridia and keratoconus.

Call VSP at 1-800-877-7195 (TTY: 1-800-428-4833) or visit the VSP **website** for information on participating optometrists, benefits and details of coverage.

For information on becoming a participating provider with VSP for GCHP, please call the VSP Provider Network Department at 1-800-852-7600 ext. 5339.

Palliative Care Benefit - MyGoldCare Program

In accordance with Senate Bill (SB) 1004 and APL 18-020, palliative care is offered through the MyGoldCare program, to any member that qualifies. Palliative care provides patient- and family-centered care that address the physical, intellectual, emotional, social, and spiritual needs of our population in the most compassionate way possible. This does not result in a reduction in benefits for members and can be provided along with curative treatment.

There is no prior authorization required for palliative care services.

Referring providers may refer directly to a MyGoldCare palliative care provider to assure timely access. A list of contracted outpatient and in-home palliative care providers can be found in GCHP's Provider Directory.

Eligibility Criteria for Palliative Care

GCHP will provide palliative care services to all members who elect and qualify under all the following general eligibility and disease-specific criteria:

- The beneficiary is likely to or has started to use the hospital or emergency department to manage their advanced disease. This refers to unanticipated decompensation and does not include elective procedures.
- The beneficiary has an advanced illness with appropriate documentation of continued decline in health status and is not eligible for or declines hospice enrollment.
- The beneficiary's death within a year would not be unexpected based on clinical status.
- The beneficiary has either received appropriate patient-desired medical therapy or is a beneficiary for whom patient-desired medical therapy is no longer effective. Patient is not in reversible acute decompensation.
- The beneficiary and, if applicable, the family / patient-designated support person, agrees to attempt, as medically / clinically appropriate, in-home, residential based, or outpatient disease management / palliative care instead of first going to the emergency department; and participates in Advance Care Planning discussions.

Disease-Specific Criteria

A member must qualify for palliative care services in accordance with APL 18-020 or have a serious diagnosis (which is not defined in the APL), and death would not be unexpected within a year.

Qualified conditions include, but are not limited to, the following:

- Congestive heart failure (CHF)
- Chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD)
- Advanced cancer
- Liver disease
- Other: Prognosis of death within a year would not be unexpected based on clinical status. If a
 beneficiary continues to meet the above eligibility criteria, he or she may continue to access both
 palliative care and curative care until the condition improves, stabilizes, or results in death.

Billing for Palliative Care Providers:

All MyGoldCare palliative care providers will need to bill for palliative care services with a diagnosis code of Z51.5 and submit a monthly Palliative Care Patient Encounter Submission Report.

For more information, please visit the GCHP website.

Carved-Out Services and Limited Benefits

Certain medical or allied-health services are covered benefits but are not administered by GCHP. GCHP is not responsible for authorizing or providing those services. They are covered directly by the state Medi-Cal program. These are referred to as Carved-Out Benefits. The following is a list of the benefits that are administered by and billed directly to the state Medi-Cal program:

- Dental services: Call Medi-Cal Dental at 1-800-322-6384 for assistance in locating a Medi-Cal dentist or to obtain prior authorization for service.
- Specialty Mental Health: Providers are required to assist GCHP / Medi-Cal members needing specialty mental health services (for serious mental illnesses) by referring them to Ventura County Behavioral Health Services. In addition, providers should coordinate services with the designated mental health provider, as appropriate. Contact the Ventura County Behavioral Health Department's STAR Program and/or Crisis Team at 1-866-998-2243 for referral information.
- Substance Use Disorder Services: Treatment for substance use disorders is available through the Ventura County Behavioral Health Department's Alcohol and Drug Programs at 1-805-981-9200. Voluntary inpatient detoxification is also a Medi-Cal benefit.
- Laboratory services provided under the state serum alpha-fetoprotein testing program and administered by the Genetic Disease Branch of the state Department of Health Care Services (DHCS).
- Services rendered in a state or federal hospital.
- Home and community-based waivered services (e.g., In Home Operations, HIV/AIDS, Home and Community-Based Services Waiver, Multipurpose Senior Services, Community-Based Adult
- Services). CCS providers must identify and refer members with CCS-eligible medical conditions to the local CCS program for authorization of such services. GCHP's CCS Liaison Case Manager will guide you through the CCS referral process. Call the Provider Services Department to request a care manager at 1-888-301-1228. The phone number for CCS in Ventura County is 1-805-981-5281.
- Early Start Program for early intervention and medically necessary diagnostic and therapeutic services provided to infants and children ages 0 to 36 months that have, or are at risk of, developing disabilities.
- Members with developmental disabilities who shall be referred to the appropriate agency, such as the local education agencies (LEA).

For details about any of these programs, call GCHP's Provider Services Department at 1-888-301-1228.

Audiology

Audiology evaluations (hearing tests) are a limited benefit. This service is covered only for the following members:

- Pregnant women (only as part of pregnancy-related care).
- Members residing in a licensed nursing home such as a Skilled Nursing Facility (SNF), Intermediate Care Facility / Developmentally Disabled (ICF-DD), or Sub Acute Facility.
- Children / young adults 20 years of age and younger receiving full-scope Medi-Cal (Children / young adults 20 years of age and younger with suspected hearing loss of 30 decibels or greater should be referred to CCS).

Hearing Aids

Hearing aids are a covered benefit. To obtain this benefit, the following steps need to be completed:

• Referral by a PCP to an otolaryngologist.

- Referral for hearing aid evaluation from an otolaryngologist.
- Evaluation by an audiologist with results forwarded back to the otolaryngologist.

For members who do not qualify for audiology services under Medi-Cal, the evaluation by an audiologist is performed at the member's expense.

Audiology results must include:

- Pure tone air conduction threshold and bone conduction test of each ear.
- Speech tests (aided and unaided).
- Speech Reception Threshold (SRT).

Behavioral Health Care

Outpatient mental health services for the treatment of mild-to-moderate mental health conditions are a benefit covered by GCHP / Carelon Behavioral Health. Behavioral Health services do not require a prior authorization, except for psychological testing and comprehensive diagnostic evaluation (CDE) for autism and developmental delay. These services include:

- Individual and group mental health testing and treatment (psychotherapy).
- Psychological testing to evaluate a mental health condition.
- Outpatient services that include lab work, drugs, and supplies.
- Outpatient services to monitor drug therapy.
- Psychiatric consultation.

Contact Carelon Behavioral Health at 1-855-765-9702 or <u>click here</u> for the Carelon Behavioral Health PCP Referral Form.

Services for relational problems are not covered. This includes counseling for couples or families for conditions listed as relational problems. Relational problems are problems with your spouse or partner, parent-child problems, or problems between siblings.

Applied behavioral analysis (ABA) and behavioral health treatment (BHT) for children under the age of 21 are also covered benefits with GCHP through Carelon Behavioral Health. Members may receive ABA or BHT for the medically necessary treatment of disorders related to developmental delays. These members are often linked to Tri-Counties Regional Center (TCRC).

The following elements apply:

- Any GCHP member with qualifying diagnoses up to the age of 21 will be eligible for ABA / BHT services. Members 21 years of age and older may be eligible for ABA / BHT through TCRC.
- The diagnosis of autism or developmental delay must be made by a physician or psychologist and a prescription for ABA / BHT services is necessary before services can be provided. If a physician feels qualified to make this diagnosis, a prescription for ABA / BHT must be written and a referral to Carelon Behavioral Health should be made.

Carelon Behavioral Health providers will then perform a comprehensive diagnostic evaluation (CDE) and develop an ABA / BHT treatment plan. If a physician does not feel comfortable making this diagnosis, the member can be referred to Carelon Behavioral Health to obtain the diagnosis from a licensed psychologist.

GCHP services cannot duplicate services received through other agencies, such as those outlined in an individualized educational program (IEP) from a local education agency (LEA). For questions, contact

Carelon Behavioral Health at 1-855-765-9702.

Chiropractic

Chiropractic treatment is available to GCHP members when provided at a contracted Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC) or Rural Health Clinic (RHC). GCHP covers chiropractic services only when they are:

- Limited to a maximum of two services per calendar month without prior authorization.
- Limited to treatment of the spine by means of manual manipulation.

Note: Only one chiropractic manipulative treatment code, 98940 - 98942, is reimbursable when billed by the same provider for the same recipient and date of service.

• The diagnosis must be listed that shows anatomic cause of symptoms, such as sprain, strain, deformity, degeneration, or malalignment.

Acupuncture

Acupuncture services are available to all GCHP members. There is no prior authorization necessary; however, the following provisions must be followed (as defined in Title 22 CCR § 51308.5):

- 1. Services must be rendered by a physician, dentist, podiatrist or certified acupuncturist enrolled in the Medi-Cal program and who is eligible to provide Medi-Cal services.
- Acupuncture services shall be limited to treatment performed to prevent, modify or alleviate the perception of severe, persistent chronic pain resulting from a generally recognized medical condition.
- 3. Acupuncture is covered either with or without electric stimulation of the needles.

Section 5: Medi-Cal Eligibility

Categories of Medi-Cal Eligibility: Aid Codes

Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP) does not determine Medi-Cal eligibility. Eligibility resides with the state, the Ventura County Human Services Agency (VCHSA) and the Social Security Administration (SSA) for members with Supplemental Security Income (SSI). There are more than 160 categories of Medi-Cal eligibility, also known as aid codes. These aid codes are assigned by eligibility staff at VCHSA or the SSA (for members with SSI) based on the federal and state guidelines.

The Medi-Cal aid code is the two-digit number or combination of letters and numbers that indicates the specific Medi-Cal program category under which the individual qualifies. The aid code can be found on the Medi-Cal eligibility website. The aid codes for GCHP members can be found when checking eligibility on GCHP's Provider Web Portal. The GCHP ID card does not provide the member aid code.

Any requests related to eligibility aid codes not covered by GCHP should be directed to the Medi-Cal field office at 1-888-472-4463 or VCHSA at 1-866-904-9362.

Types of Medi-Cal: Levels of Benefits

Medi-Cal is California's version of the federal Medicaid program. With a combination of federal and state funding, Medi-Cal provides health care coverage to families, children, and those who are elderly and disabled who meet certain income and asset thresholds. Medi-Cal offers three basic levels of benefits — full scope, restricted scope, and share of cost (SOC).

Full-Scope Medi-Cal

The majority of GCHP's Medi-Cal beneficiaries are eligible for full-scope Medi-Cal, which provides coverage for the full range of Medi-Cal covered services. A person may be eligible for full-scope Medi-Cal with or without an SOC.

Restricted Scope or Restricted Medi-Cal

Restricted-scope or restricted Medi-Cal provides coverage only for emergencies, pregnancies, services related to breast and cervical cancer, and long-term care services. An individual may be eligible for restricted-scope Medi-Cal with or without an SOC. GCHP currently covers only a few restricted-scope aid codes. Most other restricted-scope aid codes are under fee-for-service (FFS) Medi-Cal, which is administered directly by the state.

Share of Cost (SOC)

SOC is the amount that the individual or family is required to pay out-of-pocket for medical expenses before becoming eligible for Medi-Cal benefits during that month. It is comparable to what a commercial health insurance plan refers to as a "deductible." For example, if a person has an SOC of \$150, the member must pay that amount out of pocket on medical expenses before you may bill Medi-Cal for any services rendered that month that are in excess of the member's SOC. An SOC is a monthly obligation – it must be met each month for the individual to be covered by Medi-Cal that month. SOC Medi-Cal recipients do not become GCHP members until they have met their SOC for that month.

Once they meet their SOC, they become administrative members of GCHP and may receive care from any willing Medi-Cal provider in GCHP's service area.

Providers can post monies paid for services toward a member's SOC via the Medi-Cal Point of Service (POS) system (SOC amounts should be posted on the day the member paid for the service). Call the POS / Internet Help Desk at 1-800-541-5555 for assistance with installing the equipment and executing the connectivity test transaction. Please do not contact GCHP for assistance with posting a member's SOC.

Administrative vs. Regular Member

- A "regular" or "full-scope" member of GCHP is an individual who has selected or has been assigned to a PCP. An "administrative" member is one who is not assigned to a specific provider or clinic and, therefore, may see any willing Medi-Cal provider or GCHP contracted provider.
- Administrative members will have "Administrative Member" listed on their GCHP ID cards in the PCP section rather than the name of a doctor or clinic. Some GCHP Medi-Cal members will be administrative members, and they are subject to change based on eligibility for services in specific aid categories.

The change of a member's status from regular to administrative or vice versa is not automatic. If the member's eligibility status should be changed, contact the member's eligibility worker to discuss the circumstances. The member's eligibility worker – not GCHP – is responsible for coordinating the process of changing the member's eligibility.

Claims for services rendered to administrative members are sent to GCHP unless the member is also in the CCS program and the claim is for CCS-related care, in which case the claim should first be forwarded to the CCS office. If the member has other health coverage, the claim should be sent to the primary payer. All covered services that are provided to eligible administrative members for which GCHP is responsible are reimbursed on a fee-for-service basis in accordance with the state fee schedule during the effective dates of service.

Eligibility, Enrollment and Member ID Cards

Individuals and families apply for Medi-Cal through VCHSA. Elderly and disabled individuals who receive SSI automatically receive Medi-Cal along with their SSI benefit.

Eligibility for Medi-Cal is month-to-month. Most Medi-Cal recipients must re-certify their eligibility every 12 months. It is not uncommon for individuals or families to lose Medi-Cal eligibility and then regain it at a later date. Eligibility for Medi-Cal can also be effective retroactively in some cases. Please note that a member's eligibility must be verified with GCHP before delivering services – the GCHP ID card alone is not a guarantee of eligibility.

Selection of a Primary Care Provider (PCP)

The major elements of the selection process for members who are eligible as full-scope or managed care members are:

- Selection of a PCP upon enrollment.
- New members receive an enrollment package containing a Provider Directory.
- Members must complete the PCP Selection Form indicating their choice of PCP and return it to GCHP.
- If GCHP receives a member's PCP Selection Form prior to the last business day of the month, the member will be enrolled with their PCP on the first calendar day of the following month.
- If a member does not choose a PCP, GCHP will auto-assign the member to a PCP based on a
 predetermined algorithm.

- A member may change their PCP for any reason, but not more frequently than every 30 days. The change will be effective the first day of the month following the change request, but only if the request is made prior to the last business day of the month.
- Members may request to change their PCP by contacting GCHP.
- Members may choose any of the doctors or clinics listed in the GCHP Primary Care Provider section of the Provider Directory as their PCP. If the PCP is not open to new members, GCHP will ask the member to choose another PCP.

How to Verify Eligibility

To check member eligibility online, contracted providers will be required to register for a profile on the GCHP **Provider Web Portal**. When you visit the portal, you will be guided through the registration process by using the Web Portal User Guide.

Please refer to the state Medi-Cal website if you need to verify fee-for-service Medi-Cal status.

The online and automated eligibility systems will provide you with the following information:

- The member's PCP. Check to ensure that you are the assigned PCP before making an appointment.
- Whether the member is an administrative or regular member.
- The member's eligibility for CCS (if applicable, on the Medi-Cal website). Other ways to verify eligibility are to:
 - » Call GCHP Member Services at 1-888-301-1228 Monday through Friday, 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. (except holidays). If you use a TTY, call 711. When you call, please provide the following:
 - » The member's full name.
 - » The member's GCHP ID number.
 - » The member's date of birth.
 - » The date(s) of service for which you want to check eligibility.

Please remember that not all Medi-Cal beneficiaries will be GCHP members. If you cannot verify eligibility for a Medi-Cal member through GCHP, swipe the Benefits ID Card (BIC) or check the state's Medi-Cal **website**.

Member ID Card

The state issues a plastic Medi-Cal ID card known as the Benefits ID Card (BIC). The BIC shows the member's name, date of birth, 14-digit ID number, and the date the card was issued. Use this information to verify eligibility with the state. VCHSA may issue a temporary paper card when the member cannot wait for the state-issued BIC.

The GCHP ID card identifies Medi-Cal recipients enrolled with GCHP and shows the member's GCHP ID number, which is comprised of the first nine digits of the BIC. However, this ID card is not a guarantee of eligibility or payment for services. It is the responsibility of the provider to verify eligibility and PCP assignment before providing services. To view an example of the ID cards, please see the GCHP Member Handbook.

Out-of-Area Medi-Cal Beneficiaries

Medi-Cal beneficiaries who become eligible for Medi-Cal benefits in a county other than Ventura and are not assigned to GCHP are not the responsibility of GCHP. Medi-Cal providers who render services to these beneficiaries should submit claims to the state Medi-Cal program or the appropriate Medi-Cal managed care plan. When a member moves out of the area, they must notify their Medi-Cal eligibility worker or, for those receiving SSI, the Social Security Administration.

If you become aware of a GCHP member who has moved or is planning a permanent move out of GCHP's service area, please contact GCHP Member Services at 1-888-301-1228 and provide the out-of-area address so that it may be confirmed that the member has reported the move to their eligibility worker. The majority of GCHP members who leave the service area will eventually become the financial responsibility of the new county of residence and cease to be GCHP members. The timeframe in which this change will take place depends on several factors and can take one to two months.

Relocation out of GCHP's service areas will not result in a change of responsible county when it involves the placement of foster / adoptive children out of GCHP's service area or other out-of-area placement of children or residents of LTC facilities when there is a local conservator or guardian involved.

Benefits

For a complete summary of benefits for GCHP Medi-Cal members, please refer to the <u>Member Handbook</u>. If assistance or clarification is required, please call the Provider Services Department at 1-888-301-1228 (TTY: 711).

Section 6: Member Rights and Responsibilities

All providers should be knowledgeable of the Medi-Cal rights and responsibilities listed below.

GCHP Member Rights

- To be treated with respect and dignity, giving due consideration to your right to privacy and the need to maintain confidentiality of your medical information, such as medical history, mental and physical condition or treatment, and reproductive or sexual health.
- To be provided with information about GCHP and its services, including covered services, providers, practitioners, and member rights and responsibilities.
- To get fully translated written member information in your preferred language, including all grievance and appeals notices.
- To make recommendations about GCHP's member rights and responsibilities policy.
- To be able to choose a primary care provider (PCP) within GCHP's network.
- To have timely access to network providers.
- To participate in decision making with providers regarding your own health care, including the right to refuse treatment.
- To voice grievances, either verbally or in writing, about the organization or the care you got.
- To know the medical reason for GCHP's decision to deny, delay, terminate (end), or change a request for medical care.
- To get care coordination.
- To ask for an appeal of decisions to deny, defer, or limit services or benefits.
- To get free interpreting and translation services for your language.
- To get free legal help at your local legal aid office or other groups.
- To formulate advance directives.
- To ask for a State Hearing of a service or benefit that is denied, and you have already filed an appeal with GCHP and are still not happy with the decision, or if you did not get a decision on your appeal after 30 days, including information on the circumstances under which an expedited hearing is possible.
- To disenroll (drop) from GCHP and change to another health plan in the county upon request.
- To access minor consent services.
- To get free written member information in other formats (such as braille, large-size print, audio, and accessible electronic formats) upon request and in a timely fashion appropriate for the format being requested and in accordance with Welfare and Institutions (W&I) Code section 14182 (b)(12).
- To be free from any form of restraint or seclusion used as a means of coercion, discipline, convenience, or retaliation.
- To truthfully discuss information on available treatment options and alternatives, presented in a
 manner appropriate to your condition and ability to understand, regardless of cost or coverage.
- To have access to and get a copy of your medical records, and request that they be amended or corrected, as specified in 45 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) sections 16.524 and 164.526.
- Freedom to exercise these rights without adversely affecting how you are treated by GCHP, your providers or the state.
- To have access to family planning services, freestanding birth centers, Federally Qualified Health Centers, Indian Health Care Providers, midwifery services, Rural Health Centers, sexually transmitted infection services, and emergency services outside GCHP's network pursuant to federal law.
- To have privacy and your medical information kept confidential.
- To have timely medical appointments.
- To get a second opinion for your diagnosis or treatment plan.
- To have an adult represent you with GCHP once GCHP receives and validates the appropriate permissions from you.

GCHP Member Responsibilities

- A responsibility to supply information (to the extent possible) that the organization and its practitioners and providers need in order to provide care.
- A responsibility to follow plans and instructions for care that they have agreed to with their practitioners.
- A responsibility to understand their health problems and participate in developing mutually agreedupon treatment goals, to the degree possible.

For a complete summary of GCHP Medi-Cal member rights and responsibilities, please refer to the <u>Member Handbook</u>. If assistance or clarification is required, please call the Provider Services Department at 1-888-301-1228 (TTY 711).

Section 7: Responsibilities of the Primary Care Provider (PCP) and Specialist (SPC)

PRIMARY CARE PROVIDER (PCP) RESPONSIBILITIES

The primary care provider (PCP), also referred to as a member's medical home, has the primary responsibility of coordinating and structuring preventive and disease management care for Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP) members. The PCP is the main provider of health care services in the medical home and is responsible for leading their team to ensure appropriate and timely delivery of health care to members. The PCP is contractually obligated to provide GCHP with office hours, staffing and any on-call or after-hours coverage arrangements. Office hours and an emergency number must be clearly displayed in the provider's office. The PCP is responsible for supervising, coordinating, and providing primary care services to members and for maintaining the continuity of care for the members who select or are assigned to the medical home. PCPs include general and family practitioners, pediatricians and internal medicine. Physician assistants and nurse practitioners also act as PCPs; however, members cannot be assigned to them.

Medical home responsibilities include, but are not limited to, the following:

- Providing the full scope of quality primary care health services to GCHP members who have chosen them as their medical home, including preventive, acute and chronic health care.
- PCPs who administer vaccines to children are required to participate in the Vaccine for Children (VFC) Program.
- PCPs should ensure access to care 24/7. The medical home should have an adequate phone system to handle the member call volume.
- PCPs should ensure and facilitate patient access to the health care system and appropriate treatment interventions.
- PCPs are responsible for arranging consultations with referral specialists, including initiating and coordinating referrals to specialists or other GCHP participating providers as needed.
- PCPs are responsible for follow up and monitoring of appropriate services and resources required to meet the needs of the member, including identifying any clinical problems unique to your particular patient population.
- PCPs are to ensure that services are medically necessary and that duplicate services are avoided.
- PCPs should ensure that each GCHP member health record includes the information needed to facilitate both appointment scheduling and patient recall. The information should include the member's Medi-Cal number, alternate contact numbers, language needs, and any special access needs.
- The medical home is responsible for establishing a good medical records system for tracking
 regularly scheduled routine appointments, failed scheduled appointments and for procedures
 needing completion prior to the member's next scheduled visit.
- The medical home should develop a method for patient notification for preventive care.
- The medical home should consider severity of medical condition when rescheduling appointments for unforeseen circumstances.
- General accessibility to the site of care should be monitored by the staff.
- The medical home should also recognize any patient complaints or comments and take them into consideration when making changes to the access and availability of care.
- PCPs are responsible for ensuring backup coverage during their absence, including while the PCP is handling an emergency call at the hospital.
- PCPs should ensure that members have equity in the delivery of services and must not unlawfully discriminate, exclude members, or treat them differently because of sex, race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, ethnic group identification, age, mental disability, physical disability, medical condition, genetic information, marital status, gender, gender identity, or sexual orientation,

claims experience, medical history, evidence of insurability (including conditions arising out of acts of domestic violence), or source of payment.

- The medical home shall consider special needs of GCHP members when scheduling appointments.
- The medical home should have recorded instructions for GCHP members calling after hours. The
 members should be advised by a recorded outgoing message that if the situation is a true medical
 emergency, they should hang up and call 911 or go to the nearest hospital. This message should be
 recorded in English and Spanish and possibly other languages if the provider has a large amount of
 members that they care for routinely who speak another language.
- The after-hours answering service for the medical home should contact the PCP or designated covering physician within 30 minutes for urgent questions. The PCP or designee is required to call the member back within 60 minutes for probable urgent problems and within four hours for probable non-urgent matters.
- The PCP is responsible for coordinating and directing appropriate, medically necessary services, risk assessment, treatment planning, including the following:

Telehealth Services

It is imperative that GCHP members have access to timely care, including telehealth services, wherever offered. In an effort to continue providing additional access options, and in continuation of the telehealth requirements put into place under section 319 of the Public Health Service (PHS) Act, GCHP members will continue to have access to telehealth. Accordingly, Medi-Cal providers should take steps to allow members to obtain health care via telehealth when medically appropriate "as a means to increase provider capacity."

When billing for telehealth services, providers should bill using Place of Service Code 02 and modifier 95 for synchronous telehealth services and modifier GQ for asynchronous telehealth services. Providers will be reimbursed at the same rate whether a service is provided in-person or through telehealth if the service is the same regardless of the modality of delivery.

GCHP providers will be reimbursed the same amount for a service rendered via telephone as they would if the service was rendered via video provided that the modality, telephone vs video, is medically appropriate (DHCS APL 23-007).

Qualified providers are those currently enrolled in Medi-Cal including, but not limited to, physicians, nurses, occupational therapy, physical therapy, mental health practitioners, substance use disorder practitioners, as well as FQHCs and RHCs and Tribal 638 Clinics.

For more information, please click on the hyperlinks below. Providers may also visit the GCHP website.

- Guidance on billing
- Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs)

Routine Appointments

Non-emergency primary care appointments must be available within 10 business days of the member's request for an appointment.

Physical Examinations

Appointments for routine physical examinations should be available within six weeks of the request. If possible, special consideration should be given to GCHP members who require a physical examination as part of their employment.

Initial Health Appointment (IHA)

As of Jan. 2, 2023, the state Department of Health Services (DHCS) requires that each PCP complete and administer a comprehensive IHA, in accordance with the Population Health Management (PHM) Policy Guide, for all newly assigned members within 120 days of the member's enrollment date with GCHP. The IHA is not necessary if the member's PCP determines that the member's medical record contains complete information that was updated within the previous 12 months. The IHA must be provided in a way that is culturally and linguistically appropriate for the member.

The IHA must be documented in the member's medical record and include the following:

- History of the member's physical and mental health.
- Identification of risks.
- An assessment of need for preventative screens or services.
- Health education.
- The diagnosis and plan for treatment of any diseases.

PCPs will continue to receive monthly lists of new members to assess the need for an IHA and outreach to members requiring a visit within 120 days of enrollment or assignment to a PCP / medical home, whichever is later. PCPs are required to document unsuccessful scheduling attempts within the medical record; three attempts to connect with the member, including at least one telephone attempt and one written attempt will ensure compliance with the IHA requirement if an IHA is not conducted.

Primary care visits will be monitored as a proxy for the IHA leveraging Managed Care Accountability Set (MCAS) measures specific to infant and child / adolescent well-child visits and adult preventive visits. Claims will be tracked for PCP visits with CPT and/or ICD-10=CM diagnosis codes that indicate an IHA was conducted.

For children, from birth through their 20th year of life, primary care visits and childhood screenings, all Early Periodic Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment (EPSDT) (also known as Medi-Cal for Kids & Teens) and American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) recommendations must be followed, including but not limited to screenings for ACEs, developmental delays, depression, autism, vision, hearing, lead, and social drivers of health (SDoH) will be assessed. For members 21 years and older, all U.S. Preventive Services Taskforce (USPSTF) level A and B recommendations must be followed.

IHA Resources

IHA resources available on GCHP's website include:

- Bright Futures Periodicity Table
- United States Preventative Services Task Force
- GCHP IHA Training Presentation
- IHA Billing Code List
- Language Assistance Services

PCPs shall offer translation, interpretation, auxiliary aids, and other accommodations to ensure effective communication with members, including the provision of written materials in alternative formats. PCPs and their staff can contact GCHP's Cultural and Linguistic Department at **CulturalLinguistics@goldchp.org**.

Providers and their staff can contact GCHP's Quality Improvement Department for continuing education and training related to the IHA at **QualityImprovement@goldchp.org**.

IHA outreach logs are sent to GCHP Quality Improvement by fax at 805-248-7616 or secure e-mail at **QualityImprovement@goldchp.org**.

Preventive Care

As a PCP, you are required to provide preventive health care according to nationally recognized criteria. The GCHP prevention guidelines are based on the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) and the U.S. Preventive Services Task Force (USPSTF) recommendations. <u>Click here</u> to view the recommended immunization schedule for adults and children.

PROVIDER REQUEST FOR MEMBER REASSIGNMENT

Requesting member reassignment should be the last resort for an untenable patient / provider relationship. It is a measure not to be taken lightly. Policies and procedures governing a PCP request for member reassignment are as follows:

Primary Care Providers (PCP)

A medical home / PCP's request to transfer the member to another PCP requires GCHP's approval.

The PCP must notify GCHP's Provider Relations Department in writing regarding the desire to reassign a member. Complete documentation regarding the nature of the problem must be included with the request. With documented evidence and justification, requests to reassign a member will be considered based on criteria outlined in this Provider Manual. Examples include, but are not limited to:

- Significant safety concerns, such as threatening the life or wellbeing of personnel or the rendering providers.
- Member drug seeking behavior, such as documented evidence of manipulative attempts to obtain substantially more medication than is warranted.

Unjustified requests for member reassignment include, but are not limited to:

- Requests to reassign a member to another PCP due to the patient's medical condition resulting in high costs or frequent visits will not be granted.
- Requests to reassign a member due to appointment no show will not be granted.

GCHP will use its best efforts to review requests for reassignment, which includes Care Management intervention. Until a member's reassignment becomes effective, it is the medical home / PCP's responsibility to authorize and provide all medically necessary services. If the member is in active care, the PCP will continue to serve the member according to the PCP's best professional judgment. Members in active treatment will require special review by GCHP's chief medical officer (CMO).

If the request for member reassignment is approved, the PCP will be notified and GCHP's Member Services will contact the patient to facilitate assignment with a new PCP.

If the request is not approved, GCHP will notify the PCP. The PCP has the right to appeal the decision by contacting GCHP's Provider Relations Department.

Specialists (SPC)

A specialist can cease providing care for members when the provider / patient relationship becomes unsatisfactory. In these cases, the specialist must notify the PCP and the patient in writing that they will no longer provide care to the patient. The PCP will refer the member to another participating specialist for

care and treatment if the specialty care is still medically necessary. The specialist must email a copy of the member notice to the GCHP Provider Relations Department at **ProviderRelations@goldchp.org**.

Administrative Members

A provider can cease providing care for a non-assigned / administrative member when the provider / patient relationship becomes unsatisfactory. In these cases, the provider must notify the member in writing that they will no longer provide care for the member and should include the GCHP Member Services number 1-888-301-1228. The provider will send a copy of the member letter to the Provider Relations Department at **ProviderRelations@goldchp.org**.

SPECIALIST RESPONSIBILITIES

Whenever possible, specialty care will be provided by GCHP providers within GCHP's service area. If a medically necessary specialty service is unavailable within GCHP's service area, contact GCHP staff to coordinate care outside of the area.

Specialist (SPC) responsibilities include, but are not limited to, the following:

- Appointment availability within 15 business days of the request.
- The SPC should ensure access to care 24/7. The SPC's office should have an adequate phone system to handle the member call volume.
- The SPC must ensure that each GCHP member's health record includes information needed to
 facilitate both appointment scheduling and patient recall. The information should include the
 member's Medi-Cal number, alternate contact numbers, language needs, and any special access
 needs.
- The SPC may arrange referrals to other specialists for consultation without referring the member back to the PCP; however, the SPC should continue to keep the PCP informed of the member's health.
- The SPC is responsible for establishing a good system for tracking regularly scheduled appointments, failed-scheduled appointments and for procedures needing completion prior to the member's next scheduled visit.
- The SPC's office should consider the severity of the medical condition when rescheduling appointments for unforeseen circumstances. If possible, patients should have same-day appointments.
- General accessibility to the site of care should be monitored by the staff.
- The SPC's office should also recognize any patient complaints or comments and take them into consideration when making changes to the access and availability of care.
- The SPC is responsible for ensuring backup coverage during their absence, including while the SPC is currently handling an emergency call at a hospital.
- The SPC should ensure that members are not discriminated against in the delivery of services and must not unlawfully discriminate, exclude members, or treat them differently because of sex, race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, ethnic group identification, age, mental disability, physical disability, medical condition, genetic information, marital status, gender, gender identity, or sexual orientation, claims experience, medical history, evidence of insurability (including conditions arising out of acts of domestic violence), or source of payment.
- The SPC should consider the special needs of GCHP members when scheduling appointments.
- The SPC's office should have recorded directions for members calling after hours. Members should be advised by a recorded outgoing message that if the situation is a medical emergency, they should hang up and call 911 or go to the nearest hospital. This message should be recorded in English and Spanish and possibly other languages if the provider has GCHP members who speak other languages.

 The SPC's after-hours answering service should contact the SPC or designated covering physician within 30 minutes for urgent questions. The SPC or designee is required to call the member back within 60 minutes for probable urgent problems and within four hours for probable non-urgent matters.

Routine Appointments

Non-emergency appointments should be available within 15 business days of the request for an appointment.

First Prenatal Visit

The first prenatal visit must be scheduled within 10 business days of the member's request.

PRIMARY CARE AND SPECALTY CARE PROVIDER RESPONSIBILITIES

24/7 Availability

GCHP will ensure that a health care professional or a physician will be available 24/7 to coordinate the transfer of care of a member whose emergency condition is stabilized, to authorize medically necessary post-stabilization services, and for general communication with hospital emergency room personnel.

Timely member access to health care, delivered in an appropriate, cost-effective setting, will be ensured through a monitoring process using acceptable performance standards. Below is a brief description of the access standards for GCHP Medi-Cal members:

Type of Care	Wait Time
Emergency Services	Immediately.
Urgent Care	Within 48 hours (if no prior authorization is required). Within 96 hours (if prior authorization is required).
Non-Urgent Primary Care Appointment	Within 10 business days of request for appointment.
Non-Urgent Behavioral Health Appointment	Within 10 business days of request for appointment.
Non-Urgent Specialty Care Appointment	Within 15 business days of request for appointment.
Phone Wait Time	Within three to five minutes whenever possible.
Ancillary Services for Diagnosis or Treatment	Within 15 business days of request for appointment.
Long Term Care (LTC)	Within seven business days of request.
Skilled Nursing Facility (SNF)	Within seven business days of request.
Intermediate Care Facility / Developmentally Disabled (ICF-DD)	Within seven business days of request.

Type of Care	Wait Time
Community-Based Adult Services (CBS)	Capacity cannot decrease in aggregate statewide below April 2012 level.
Initial Health Appointment (IHA)	Within 120 calendar days of enrollment.
Waiting Time in Office	Not to exceed 45 minutes after time of appointment
Patient Call Back	Within 60 Minutes.
Sensitive Services	Ensure confidentiality and ready access to sensitive services in a timely manner and without barriers – NO AUTHORIZATION REQUIRED.

Language Assistance Services

Specialist (SPC) shall offer translation, interpretation, auxiliary aids, and other accommodations to ensure effective communication with members, including the provision of written materials in alternative formats, for any disability, if necessary. SPCs, PCPs and their staff can contact GCHP's Cultural and Linguistic Department at **CulturalLinguistics@goldchp.org**.

Medical Records

The medical home is responsible for maintaining complete and comprehensive medical records of patient care for each member. The medical home must also maintain procedures for the content, maintenance, and confidentiality of medical records that meet the requirements established by GCHP, state and federal laws and regulations. GCHP has the right to review the medical records of a covered member for purposes related to treatment, payment, and health care operations (TPO).

Pursuant to the California Welfare and Institutions Code § 14124.1 and in accordance with Section 438.3(u) of Title 42 of the Code of Federal Regulations, providers of health care services rendered under the Medi-Cal program shall keep and maintain records of each service rendered under the Medi-Cal program for 10 years from whichever is later of the following:

- The final date of the contract period between the plan and the provider.
- The date of completion of any audit.
- The date the service was rendered.

Pursuant to Title 22 CCR § 53861(b), practitioners and providers will retain or cause to be retained all records pertaining to pending or in progress litigations until the litigation is final.

It is imperative that GCHP knows where medical records can be obtained following a business or office closure.

Providers must inform GCHP of where medical records will be kept, including:

- Physical location of medical records storage.
- Contact name and title.
- Contact phone number.
- Contact email address.

Access to and Copies of Records

GCHP's Health Services, Quality Improvement or Compliance departments may request records from your office for a covered member for reasons related to TPO. Under the HIPAA Privacy Rule, a provider does not require a signed authorization to release a patient's protected health information for TPO, which may include some of the following GCHP activities:

- Quality improvement studies mandated by the state, such as the Managed Care Accountability Set (MCAS) and Healthcare Effectiveness Data and Information Set (HEDIS®) studies, Performance Improvement Projects (PIPS), Potential Quality Issues (PQIs) or the Encounter Data Validation (EDV) Studies.
- Prior authorization requests.
- Claims payments issues.
- Utilization review.
- Assistance with case coordination.
- Possible CCS referrals for CCS-eligible conditions.
- DHCS auditing requests.
- Follow-up to a member complaint.
- Potential Quality Issues.
- Facility site reviews.
- Medical record reviews.

The California Health and Safety Code § 123100 declares that every person having ultimate responsibility for decisions regarding their health care also possess a right to access information about their condition and care provided. Records are not released without a written, signed and dated authorization from the patient or the patient's representative. Pursuant to U.S. Code of Federal Regulations §164.508c a valid authorization request must include:

- Person authorizing release.
- Person / organization authorized to receive the PHI.
- Description of PHI to be disclosed.
- Purpose of the PHI disclosure.
- Date authorization expires.
- Signature and date of person authorizing the release.

For complete details on provider responsibilities relative to medical records, please refer to your signed service agreement with GCHP.

Reporting Encounter Data

Encounter data is detailed information about individual services rendered by a provider contracted with a managed care plan. The level of detail about each service reported is similar to that of a standard claim form. (Encounter data for capitated providers where no claims payment is expected since services are prepaid are also sometimes referred to as "shadow claims" or "dummy claims").

Capitated providers are required by GCHP to submit claims for all services, even though they are pre-paid by capitation. Claims that have been pre-paid via capitation are considered "encounter data" in that the claim describes the details of patient encounters with the PCP. GCHP requires that you submit encounter data at least once a month, as the information is critical for health plan analytics and HEDIS[®] studies. Most importantly, this data is used by the state to set future GCHP revenue, which has a direct impact on GCHP's payments to providers.

All providers may transmit their encounter data electronically using the ANSI 837 format as outlined by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA).

If you would like to send this information electronically, please contact GCHP's Provider Services Department at 1-888-301-1228 for assistance and possible referral to GCHP's Information Technology (IT) vendor. Please note that if you are already submitting your encounter data electronically using a clearinghouse, you may be able to submit to GCHP using your existing connection. Please contact your existing clearinghouse to confirm.

Encounter Data Validation

The state Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) partners with Health Services Advisory Group, Inc. (HSAG) to conduct Encounter Data Validation (EDV) studies to evaluate the completeness and accuracy of encounter data submitted to DHCS. The studies may involve the evaluation of encounter data compared to medical record documentation for services rendered during the study period.

Confidentiality of Information

Providers are responsible for maintaining the confidentiality of information about members and their medical records, in accordance with applicable federal and state laws. The names of any members receiving public social services must be kept confidential and protected from unauthorized disclosure. This includes all information, records and data collected and maintained for the operation of the agreement. Providers may not use any such information for any purpose other than carrying out the terms of their agreement.

Records are to be maintained in a protective and confidential manner that are not readily accessible to unauthorized persons or visible to the general public. Electronic record procedures must be established to ensure patient confidentiality, prevent unauthorized access, authenticate electronic signatures, and maintain upkeep of computer systems. Security protection includes an off-site backup storage system, an image mechanism to ensure that record input is unalterable, and file recovery systems.

In compliance with the HIPAA regulations and the privacy rules for Protected Health Information (PHI), members are entitled to receive an accounting of disclosures of confidential PHI released by the provider of care.

Member Procedures / Rights for Emergency Care

All providers should have a phone prompt that says, "If this is an emergency, please hang up and call 911 or go to the nearest emergency room."

In any emergency, in accordance with GCHP's Member Handbook, members have the right to access care at any hospital or facility. Once the member is post-stabilized, the member will be moved to a contracted facility if it is medically necessary.

Transportation from Provider Office to Hospital

When a provider determines that a member requires immediate hospitalization from his or her office, the provider may determine, at their own medical discretion, which is the most appropriate and safe mode of transportation – emergency, non-emergency or non-medical.

Non-Emergency Medical Transportation (NEMT) Requests

NEMT services are a Medi-Cal covered benefit. If a GCHP member is not able to ride public or private transportation, the member may qualify for NEMT services under their Medi-Cal benefit.

Who Qualifies for the Medi-Cal NEMT Benefit

NEMT is covered only when a member's medical and physical condition does not allow the member to travel by bus, passenger car, taxicab or another form of public or private conveyance. A member meets the NEMT benefit if they:

- Are in a wheelchair and are not able to move in and out of the chair into a seat or are not able to
 move the wheelchair without assistance.
- Need to travel with specialized services, equipment or a caregiver.
- Are not able to sit up and must ride lying down.

How the NEMT Benefit Works

A few important points about the NEMT benefit:

- No authorization is required for hospital discharges.
- All NEMT services, except hospital discharges, are subject to GCHP review and the NEMT form verification process.
- A physician or specialist must submit an NEMT form to GCHP which constitutes a prescription and attestation of the medical necessity for transportation service.
- The verification process for the NEMT form takes no longer than five business days.
- NEMT vendor requires at least two business days from the time of appointment is required for non-urgent requests.
- If the transportation request is of an urgent nature and needs to occur in less than 48 hours, call GCHP's Transportation Liaison at 1-805-437-5832.
- NEMT is not covered if the member is seeking care that is not a service that is covered by Medi-Cal or Medicare.

How to Request NEMT Services for a Member

- 1. Verify the member's eligibility using GCHP's Provider Portal, GCHP's IVR System, Medi-Cal's AEVS system, or Medi-Cal's eligibility website.
- 2. Provider must complete the current **NEMT form**.
- 3. Fax the NEMT form to GCHP's Health Services Department at 1-855-883-1552.
- 4. After GCHP receives the NEMT form, GCHP will begin the verification process of the form.
- 5. Once the NEMT form is verified by GCHP, the form will be forwarded to the transportation vendor.
- 6. The NEMT vendor will contact the member and provider to schedule and verify the medical appointment.

What to Include on the NEMT Form

When submitting a NEMT form, these elements must be completed:

- 1. The medical purpose of the transportation.
- 2. The frequency of the necessary medical transportation or inclusive dates of the requested medical transportation.
- 3. When a caregiver will accompany the member and reason the member needs a companion for their medical appointment.

- 4. Medical or physical condition that makes normal public or private transportation inadvisable.
- 5. Member attestation that they have no means of transportation.
- 6. The NEMT form must be dated and signed by a physician, physician assistant, nurse practitioner, certified nurse midwife, physical therapist, speech therapist, occupational therapist or mental health / substance use disorder provider consistent with their scope of practice. When a medical home provider submits an NEMT Prescription / Attestation form, all requests for transportation to any medically necessary, GCHP-covered appointment will be fulfilled with that single request form.
- When an NEMT Prescription / Attestation form is received from a provider other than the member's medical home provider, NEMT services will be approved for transportation to and from that provider location only.

Non-Medical Transportation (NMT) Requests

NMT is transportation to and from all medically necessary-services covered by Medi-Cal, even those not covered by GCHP, when an ambulance, litter van or wheelchair van is not medically needed. NMT is provided by GCHP's transportation vendor using passenger vehicles at no cost to GCHP members.

Prior authorization is not required for NMT, and members may contact Ventura Transit System (VTS) directly at 1-855-628-7433 or 1-800-855-7100 (California Relay Services).

For questions, call GCHP's Provider Services Department at 1-888-301-1228.

Section 8: Quality Improvement and Health Equity Transformation (QIHET) Program

Gold Coast Health Plan's (GCHP) Quality Improvement and Health Equity Transformation (QIHET) Program is designed to support GCHP's mission to improve the health of our members through the provision of high-quality and equitable health care and services through a member-first focus that centers on the delivery of exceptional service to our beneficiaries by enhancing the quality of health care, providing greater access, and improving member choice. The QIHET Program also defines the processes for continuous quality improvement of clinical care and services, patient safety, and member experience provided by GCHP and its contracted provider network, and community partnerships. These processes include a commitment to improving and sustaining performance through the prioritization, design, implementation, monitoring, and analysis of performance improvement initiatives with a specific focus on health equity.

GCHP's QIHET Program aligns its efforts with the state Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) comprehensive Quality Strategy as well as the goals set forth by the California Advancing and Innovating Medi-Cal (CalAIM) Initiative. The scope of the QI process encompasses the following:

- 1. Quality and safety of clinical care services including, but not limited to:
 - Preventive service for children and adults
 - Primary care
 - Specialty care, including behavioral health services
 - Emergency services
 - Inpatient services
 - Ancillary services
 - Chronic disease management
 - Care management
 - Population Health
 - Prenatal / perinatal care
 - Family planning services
 - Medication management
 - Coordination and continuity of care
 - Long-term care
- 2. Quality of non-clinical services including, but not limited to:
 - Accessibility
 - Availability
 - Member and provider satisfaction
 - Grievance and appeals process
 - Culturally and linguistically appropriate services
 - Network adequacy
 - Health equity
 - Community supports
- 3. Member safety initiatives including, but not limited to:
 - Facility site reviews / medical record reviews / physical accessibility review surveys
 - Credentialing of practitioners / organizational providers
 - Peer review
 - Sentinel event monitoring
 - Potential quality issues (PQIs)
 - Provider preventable condition (PPC) monitoring
 - Health education
 - Utilization and risk management

- Transitional care services
- 4. A QI focus that represents all categories below:
 - All care settings
 - All types of services
 - All demographic groups
 - Health equity

Quality Improvement and Health Equity Transformation Program (QIHET) Program Goals

The QIHET Program goals include:

- Objectively and systematically monitor and evaluate the quality, appropriateness, accessibility and availability of safe and equitable health care and services.
- Identify and implement ongoing and innovative strategies to improve the quality, equity, appropriateness, and accessibility of member health care.
- Implement an ongoing evaluation process to improve identified opportunities for under / over utilization of services.
- Facilitate organization-wide integration of quality management and population health principles.
- Measure and enhance member satisfaction with the quality of care and services provided by GCHP's network providers.
- Promote engagement in local community, statewide, and national collaborations and initiatives aimed at improving quality and equity of care and services.
- Maintain compliance with state and federal regulatory requirements.
- Provide oversight of delegated entities to ensure compliance with GCHP standards as well as state and federal regulatory requirements.

For more information about GCHP's QIHET Program, click here.

Quality Improvement and Health Equity Committee (QIHEC)

The QIHEC is responsible for the monitoring, evaluating, and reporting of organization-wide health equity and quality improvement processes and initiatives that ensure the delivery of and access to quality and equitable health care and customer service. The QIHEC is accountable to the Ventura County Medi-Cal Managed Care Commission (VCMMCC) and must submit QIHEC reports to the VCMMCC.

The QIHEC's objectives are to:

- Ensure QIHEC members can have candid discussions about barriers to achieve quality goals and objectives, and to facilitate the removal of such barriers.
- Ensure a communication process is in place to adequately track work plan and QIHET Program activities and enable system-wide communication and resolve action items on the annual Quality Improvement and Health Equity Work Plan.
- Encourage feedback from members and providers regarding delivery of care and services and to use the feedback to evaluate and improve how care and services are delivered.

The QIHEC's responsibilities include:

 Facilitate data-driven indicator reviews and development for monitoring key quality management activities, including but not limited to: MCAS / HEDIS[®] / CMS Child and Adult Core Measures for Medicaid, CAHPS[®], Access / Availability, Performance Improvement Projects, Service / Clinical Quality measures, UM/CM metrics, Population Health metrics, Behavioral Health metrics, Credentialing performance, Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services and Delegation Oversight.

- Review reports from GCHP committees and departments, including QIHEC committee meeting minutes, action item logs, dashboards, key activities and action plans including subcommittee updates, and reports regarding monitoring of health plan functions and activities.
- Analyze and evaluate the results of quality improvement and health equity activities including annual review of the results of performance measures, Performance Improvement Projects (PIPs) related to clinical and non-clinical care, utilization data, consumer satisfaction surveys, and the findings and activities of other committees such as the Community Advisory Committee.
- Make recommendations for implementation of interventions or corrective actions based on results
 of quality improvement and health equity activities, including those recommended by network
 providers, fully delegated subcontractors, and downstream contractors.
- Oversee the annual review, analysis and evaluation of goals set forth by the QIHET Program as well as GCHP's quality improvement policies and procedures.
- Recommend policy changes or implementation of new policies to GCHP's administration and commission.

Managed Care Accountability Set (MCAS)

The Managed Care Accountability Set (MCAS) is a set of performance measures selected by DHCS that the Medi-Cal Managed Care Plans (MCPs) use to report annual rates for performance measures and to evaluate the quality of care and services delivered to GCHP's members. MCAS consists of standardized measures from the National Committee for Quality Assurance (NCQA) Healthcare Effectiveness Data and Information Set (HEDIS[®]) measure set and the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) Adult and Child Core Measure Set, which enables DHCS to objectively evaluate GCHP's delivery of care and services.

Plans must follow NCQA's timeline for collecting, calculating, and reporting rates annually. Rates for the required measures are calculated per HEDIS[®] guidelines and/or other specified guidelines required for the reporting year. The final rates are reviewed and approved by the External Quality Review Organization (EQRO) and reported to DHCS and NCQA.

To ensure the rates reported by GCHP meet the standardized reporting requirements and allow the comparability of performance rates within the health care industry, GCHP must complete an annual NCQA HEDIS[®] Compliance Audit[™] conducted by the EQRO.

DHCS will publicly report the audited results of each DHCS-required performance measure (HEDIS[®] / MCAS / CMS Adult and Child Core Measures for Medicaid and/or other performance measurements) for each plan, along with the Medi-Cal managed care program average and comparisons to national benchmarks. Plans must meet or exceed the DHCS-established minimum performance level (MPL) benchmarks for measures that are held to the DHCS MPL. DHCS establishes a high-performance level (HPL) for each required performance measure and publicly acknowledges plans that meet or exceed the DHCS HPLs.

GCHP must submit a quality and health equity Improvement Plan (IP) for each measure that does not meet the DHCS-established MPL or is given an audit result of Not Reportable (NR). Each IP must be completed on a DHCS approved quality improvement tool and include a barrier analysis, plans for targeted interventions and relevant data to support the justification for using new or existing interventions, prioritization of barriers and interventions, and a method for evaluating the outcome and effectiveness of the interventions. GCHP must complete and submit each IP by the submission date established by DHCS.

For more information on the MCAS measures, click here.

Provider MCAS Report Cards

- Annual MCAS Report Cards: GCHP distributes annual MCAS Provider Report Cards, which detail clinic-level rates on each MCAS measure, with benchmarks on applicable measures to compare performance against established performance levels and help identify opportunities for improvement.
- Monthly Dashboard and Gap Reports: Providers have access to the INDICES[®] Provider Insights Dashboards to view their performance on MCAS measures, including member and clinic level data for monitoring current and projected measure performance, trending, and gap analysis. Reports can be downloaded for additional analytics, managing care gaps and patient outreach.

For more information on accessing Provider Report Cards, click here.

Facility Site Review (FSR)

GCHP conducts a DHCS-required, full-scope facility site review (FSR), medical records review (MRR), and physical accessibility review survey (PARS) of PCP sites as part of its provider credentialing and recredentialing process. The purpose of the FSR, MRR and PARS is to ensure that GCHP's PCPs meet certain minimum state-required standards for their office sites, maintenance of patient medical records, and to ensure physical accessibility for seniors and persons with disabilities.

The FSR/MRR is conducted by a certified site reviewer (CSR) nurse and/or certified master trainer (CMT) nurse and includes an on-site inspection and interview with office personnel. State-mandated tools and standards are used by CSR and/or CMT to conduct the reviews.

An FSR, MRR and PARS is conducted a minimum of every three years for each primary care site. A PARS is performed every three years on designated high-volume ancillary and specialty providers. New PCP sites are not eligible to be assigned members until they pass an initial FSR. GCHP will contact the PCP site to schedule initial and periodic site visits. In accordance with DHCS guidance, GCHP reserves the right to perform unannounced site visits.

The MRR is based on an audit of randomly selected medical records per PCP and is comprised of pediatric, adult, and obstetric records, when applicable. The MRR includes, but is not limited to, a review of format, legal documentation practices, and documentary evidence of the provision of preventive care and coordination of primary care services.

The PARS focuses on facility site access including the building / PCP's office, parking, elevators, exam rooms, and assesses for accessible drinking water, internet access, and accessible electronic content.

If deficiencies are identified during the FSR/MRR, the reviewer will issue a corrective action plan (CAP). The CAP will include specific time frames for addressing the identified deficiencies. In some cases, assignment of new members will be held until the identified deficiencies have been corrected.

All site reviews / PARs conducted, and CAPs completed are reported to DHCS as mandated for evaluation / audit.

For questions or more information regarding FSR, MRRs, or PARs, <u>click here</u> or contact the QI Facility Site Review Team at **FSR@goldchp.org**.

Performance Improvement Projects (PIP)

GCHP is required to conduct and/or participate in a minimum of two Performance Improvement Projects

(PIPs) at a cadence set forth by DHCS. PIP topics are chosen in consultation with DHCS and the EQRO. The PIP topics selected are based on demonstrated areas of poor performance, such as low HEDIS[®] / MCAS / CMS Core Measure, CAHPS[®] scores, or DHCS / EQRO recommendations, and must be aligned with the state's Quality Strategy for preserving and improving the health of Californians, as well as the goals set forth in the CalAIM initiative. GCHP will utilize the PIP format approved by DHCS / EQRO and complete PIP documentation by the submission dates established by DHCS / EQRO. The status of each PIP is reported at the QIHEC meetings.

Performance Improvement Methodology

GCHP uses industry-standard quality improvement tools such as Plan-Do-Study-Act (PDSA) Cycle methodology, Fishbone Diagrams, and the Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, and Threats (SWOT) analysis to test the effectiveness of interventions aimed at improving the quality and equity of care and services. Overall, GCHP focuses on identifying and measuring improvement opportunities by using small-scale studies to test the effectiveness of interventions that can be modified or expanded to achieve continuous improvement.

Member Incentives

To promote the completion of important preventive care screenings, GCHP offers member incentives to qualifying members who complete the following preventive care services within the calendar year.

- Child and Adolescent Well Care Exam: Members 3 to 21 years of age can earn a \$25 gift card for completing a yearly well-care exam.
- Cervical Cancer Screening: Members 21 to 64 years of age can earn a \$50 gift card for completing a routine screening for cervical cancer.
- Breast Cancer Screening: Members 40 to 74 years of age can earn a \$50 gift card for completing a breast cancer screening (mammogram).
- Lead Screening: Members 0 to 2 years of age can earn a \$25 gift card for completing a blood lead test on or before their second birthday.
- Human Papilloma Virus (HPV) Vaccine: Members 9 to 13 years of age can earn a \$25 gift card for completing the second dose of the HPV vaccine on or before their 13th birthday.

To receive the incentive, members must fill out a member incentive form, including their member ID, service date, and a signature / stamp by the rendering provider. This form can be submitted via fax, mail, or email. Providers can also submit this form to the Quality Improvement (QI) Department on a member's behalf. These forms can be found on GCHP's website in the <u>Member Rewards Program Section</u> under the For Members tab.

GCHP also partners with select providers to offer point-of-care member incentives for child and adolescent well-care exams, cervical cancer screening, and breast cancer screening. If you are interested in offering point-of-care member incentives, please contact the QI Department.

For more information about GCHP's member incentive programs you can contact QI at **QualityImprovement@goldchp.org**.

Provider Preventable Conditions (PPC)

Pursuant to Title 42 of the Code of Federal Regulations, states are prohibited from permitting payment to Medicaid providers for treatment of PPCs, except when the condition existed prior to the initiation of treatment for that beneficiary by that provider. PPCs consist of health care-acquired conditions (HCAC), when they occur in acute inpatient hospital settings only, and other provider-preventable conditions (OPPC) when they occur in any health care setting.

GCHP is required to comply with the guidelines established by DHCS by screening claims and encounter data for provider preventable conditions and report each PPC to DHCS.

Providers caring for GCHP members must report each PPC to DHCS and GCHP after discovery of the PPC and confirmation that the patient is a Medi-Cal beneficiary. PPCs can be reported to DHCS via their secure online reporting portal or by fax. PPCs must be reported to GCHP via secure email at **PQIReporting@goldchp.org**.

Delegation

GCHP delegates activities in accordance with the terms and conditions identified in individual contracts. GCHP will perform oversight of an entity's applicable activities to ensure full compliance with applicable Plan policies, delegation agreements and the most current NCQA, federal, state and GCHP standards.

GCHP monitors each entity's compliance with delegated functions and responsibilities, makes recommendations for improvement and monitors corrective actions.

Delegation oversight includes:

- Desktop and annual onsite reviews.
- Monitoring.
- Continuous improvement activities.

Annual Audit

Each delegate is audited at least annually to verify compliance with GCHP requirements and continued ability to perform delegated functions. The Delegation Oversight Audit evaluates the delegate's capabilities in QI, Utilization Management (UM), Credentialing / Recredentialing, Member Rights (MR), Grievance and Appeals, Cultural and Linguistic Services, DHCS (when applicable) and GCHP standards.

Audit Process

Delegation oversight audits are performed using the following audit tools which abide by the most current NCQA, state, federal and GCHP standards:

- Credentialing: Most current ICE Tool
- Claims: Most current ICE Tool
- Quality Improvement: GCHP QI Delegation Oversight Audit Tool
- Utilization Management: GCHP UM Delegation Oversight Audit Tool
- Cultural & Linguistics: GCHP C&L Delegation Oversight Audit Tool
- Grievances: GCHP Grievance Delegation Oversight Audit Tool
- Population Health Management: GCHP PHM Delegation Oversight Audit Tool
- Member Experience: GCHP Member Experience Delegation Oversight Audit Tool
- Call Center: GCHP Call Center Delegation Oversight Audit Tool
- Transportation (NEMT/NMT): GCHP NEMT/NMT Delegation Oversight Audit Tool

Reporting Requirements

Reporting requirements are identified in the Delegated Service Standards / Delegation Agreement included as an attachment to each contract. Delegates are responsible for the timely submission of reports as outlined in the contract.

Non-Compliance

Findings from the annual evaluation, file audit and reports are used to identify areas of improvement and to implement a CAP when warranted. GCHP reserves the right to revoke the delegation of responsibilities when delegate entities demonstrate non-compliance.

Potential Quality Issue (PQI)

To determine opportunities for improvement in the provision of care and services to GCHP members, there is a systematic method in place that identifies, investigates, and reports potential quality issues (PQIs) and directs actions for improvement based upon risk, frequency and severity.

PQIs are identified and referred to the Quality Improvement (QI) Department for further review and investigation. Identification of a PQI is made through the systematic review of a variety of data sources such as information gathered through concurrent, prospective and retrospective utilization review, referrals by health plan staff, health plan providers or provider staff, and referrals by non-health plan contracted staff. A PQI may also be identified through an FSR, claims and encounter data, pharmacy utilization data, MCAS / HEDIS[®] / CMS Core Measures medical record review and quality audits, and grievances filed by members.

A PQI investigation is conducted by a QI registered nurse and may include the following:

- Contacting the provider's office for medical records and/or other information pertaining to the issue.
- A request for provider response.
- Interviewing provider or facility staff.

PQIs are rated, or leveled, by GCHP's chief medical officer (CMO) or designee for member outcome (0), system issues (S), and provider care (P). A scale of zero to three is used to rate / level the PQI and is based on the severity of member outcome and/or level of opportunity for improvement.

Depending on the rating / leveling of a PQI, the case could be sent to the Credentials / Peer Review Committee (C/PRC) for consideration in a provider's recredentialing process.

PQI Reporting

PQIs may be reported by any of the following:

- GCHP staff member
- Anonymous
- Any member of the community
- Any contracted or non-contracted provider / staff

A PQI is reported to the QI department by sending a completed **PQI Referral Form** to **PQIReporting@goldchp.org**.

Quality Incentive Pool and Program

The Quality Incentive Pool and Program (QIPP) is a multi-year initiative for improvement in quality performance measures included in the <u>Managed Care Accountability Set (MCAS)</u> for measures held to the minimum performance level (MPL) by the state Department of Health Care Services (DHCS).

GCHP designed the QIPP to help identify members due for clinically recommended care and assist PCPs in

providing comprehensive high quality health care to members.

Performance and payment methodology for QIPP is determined by a provider's MCAS performance rates. QIPP additionally requires operational integration activities, such as leadership and operational meetings, annual and quarterly provider work plan submissions to GCHP, and data integration activities.

For more information about QIPP, <u>click here</u> or contact GCHP's Quality Improvement Team at **QualityImprovement@goldchp.org**.

Section 9: Care Management Program

CARE MANAGEMENT PROGRAM

GCHP's Care Management (CM) Program addresses the needs of members with complex and noncomplex health needs and assists with coordination of physical and mental health care to ensure the continuity of quality care. GCHP's CM Program is a collaborative process that includes telephonic contact with the member and/or their representative and the medical home.

Through the provision of care coordination, targeted education and resource management, GCHP promotes member wellness, autonomy, and appropriate use of services and financial resources. Members can refer themselves to the Care Management Program. Referrals can also come from caregivers, providers and internal departments, hospitals and GCHP discharge planners, community agencies, and from the review of data and utilization patterns.

The CM Program is designed to support GCHP's mission, *"To improve the health of our members through the provision of high quality care and services."* GCHP strives to empower members to address their health care needs by coordinating quality services through appropriate, efficient, and timely interventions.

Care Management Process

Through telephonic interactions with the member, the member's designated representative and providers, data is collected and analyzed, and potential care needs are identified by CM staff. Care managers strive to empower members to exercise their options and access the services appropriate to meet their individual health needs, promoting quality outcomes.

All eligible members have the right to participate in or decline to participate in the CM program. GCHP's CM guiding principles are to:

- Build a trusting partnership with members through evidence-based intervention.
- Use a comprehensive, holistic approach.
- Empower members by providing education through evidence-based techniques, informed choice, and linkage to community resources.
- Apply the principle of autonomy to preserve the dignity of the member and family to promote selfdetermination.
- Facilitate member understanding of physician and treatment plans.
- Facilitate self-management of chronic conditions through evidence-based care models.
- Facilitate the improvement of health outcomes by using evidence-based behavioral change models.

GCHP's primary Care Management staffing model consists of licensed nurses, care management coordinators and licensed clinical social workers (LCSW).

Types of Care Management

CARE COORDINATION / NON-COMPLEX CARE MANAGEMENT

• What is care coordination / non-complex care management?

Care coordination / non-complex care management involves short-term interventions for members with potential risks due to barriers or gaps in services, poor transitional care, and/or co-morbid medical issues that require brief care management interventions. Care coordination focuses on improving the link between members and providers to reduce inefficiencies that can lead to higher utilization.

- Who is eligible for care coordination?
 - 1. New members who have returned Health Information Forms (HIFs) and have a recognized need for short-term care coordination to establish care with a medical home.
 - 2. Members who are generally healthy or stable and engaged, and whose only need may be education or assistance with navigation of the health care system.
 - 3. Members who may have provider, transportation, social or other short-term issues requiring a minimal number of contacts.
- What services might be coordinated through this program?
 - 1. Appointments
 - 2. Referrals to community resources
 - 3. Transportation
 - 4. Durable medical equipment (DME) needs
 - 5. Pharmacy
 - 6. PCP selection and information
 - 7. Member educational materials

COMPLEX CASE MANAGEMENT

What is complex case management?

Complex case management provides intensive, personalized case management services and goal setting for members identified as high and rising risk who have complex medical needs and require a wide variety of resources to manage their health and improve their quality of life. It is a collaborative process that assesses, develops, plans, implements, coordinates, monitors, and evaluates the options and services needed to meet the member's health and human service needs. It is characterized by advocacy for member engagement, communication, and resource management.

- Who is eligible for complex case management?
 - 1. Members who are medically fragile, have one or more severe conditions with co-morbidities which require complex care management and have a significant likelihood of exacerbations and multiple ER visits and/or re-hospitalizations.
 - 2. Members who may have a single severe condition or two or more conditions across multiple domains of care and whose needs must be monitored on a regular basis.
 - 3. Members who are being managed by other agencies for specific conditions that would benefit from coordination of care for preventive care and transitions away from the other agency as care evolves. Examples of this may be CCS clients who are also GCHP members.
 - 4. Members identified as high risk through the Care Management assessment process.
- What conditions might benefit from complex case management?
 - 1. Multiple comorbidities and/or chronic conditions such as, but not limited to:
 - Asthma
 - Chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD)
 - Congestive heart failure
 - Hypertension
 - Diabetes
 - 2. Polypharmacy (multiple medications)
 - 3. Psychosocial needs
 - 4. High utilizers of ER / IP services
 - 5. CCS coordination of care and transitions to adulthood
- What is the primary staffing model for complex case management? Licensed case manager (RNs and LCSWs)

Care Management Program Goals

The goals of the Care Management Program are to:

- Plan, facilitate and advocate for members through the continuum of care, consistent with evidencebased practice.
- Collaborate and communicate with the member and/or member representative, and providers to develop and implement interventions that are driven by the member's goals for health improvement.
- Facilitate accomplishment of the agreed-upon goals in the member's individualized plan.
- Provide the member and/or member representative with information and education, which promotes self-care.
- Promote independence by reinforcing self-care through motivational and supportive techniques.
- Educate and involve the member and family in the coordination of services.
- Facilitate optimization of available benefits.
- Strive for excellence in communication to maintain member and provider satisfaction.
- Provide timely intervention to increase effectiveness and promote efficiency of care and/or services provided to the member.

Referrals to GCHP Care Management

The Care Management Referral Form is available on GCHP's website.

The form can be completed and emailed to **CareManagement@goldchp.org** or faxed to 1-855-883-1552.

24-Hour Advice Nurse Line

GCHP members have free 24-hour access to a registered nurse who can help them decide what to do if they are sick or hurt. The 24-hour Advice Nurse Line provides access to advice from a licensed registered nurse, who will triage the member's condition and refer to the appropriate level of care, as needed. The 24-hour Advice Nurse Line also helps ensure that GCHP members, providers and staff are receiving and providing care at the appropriate level, time, and place. Calling the 24-hour Advice Nurse Line also gives members the option to enter GCHP's Health Information Library. This service allows members to listen to pre-recorded health information in English or Spanish.

To reach the 24-hour Advice Nurse Line, please direct members to call:

- 1-805-437-5001
- 1-877-431-1700 (toll free)
- For TTY, call 711

Section 10: Population Health Management

POPULATION HEALTH

Gold Coast Health Plan's (GCHP) Population Health Management (PHM) Program ensures that all members have access to a comprehensive set of services based on their needs and preferences across the continuum of care, which ultimately leads to longer, healthier, and happier lives improved outcomes, and healthy equity.

Specifically, the PHM Program:

- Builds trust with and meaningfully engages members.
- Gathers, shares, and assesses timely and accurate data to identify efficient and effective
 opportunities for intervention through processes, such as data driven risk stratification, predictive
 analytics, identification of gaps in care, and standardized assessment processes. This data is
 provided by or through collaboration with the Quality Improvement (QI) Department.
- Addresses upstream drivers of health through integration with public health and social services.
- Supports all members in staying healthy through development of PHM interventions guided by Quality Improvement and Health Equity Transformation (QIHET) Program identified focus areas. This is accomplished through the provision of gap reporting and identification of target populations by QI. Gap reporting and identification of target populations is completed utilizing GCHP's Healthcare Effectiveness Data and Information Set (HEDIS[®]) certified software engine as well as through QI analyses.
- Provides care management services for members at higher risk of poor outcomes.
- Provides Transitional Care Services (TCS) for members transferring from one setting or level of care to another.
- Reduces health disparities.
- Identifies and mitigates social drivers of health (SDoH).
- Ensures the collaborative Population Needs Assessment (PNA), which serves to identify health disparities and implement targeted interventions, is completed to promote a deeper understanding of member needs, particularly social drivers of health, and to deepen relationships between GCHP, public health, and other local stakeholders.

The PHM Program instituted use of a Health Risk Assessment (HRA) to better understand the needs of GCHP members. The PHM Program includes two behavioral economics programs to incentivize members to engage in healthy behaviors to improve their health and wellness. One focuses on members with multiple chronic conditions, and the other focuses on members with two or more gaps in care.

The PHM Program works closely with GCHP's Community Relations and Care Management (CM) Departments to coordinate and provide self-administered test kit screenings for two Managed Care Accountability Set (MCAS) measures (glycemic status assessment for patients with diabetes [GSD] & chlamydia screening [CHL]) at GCHP-sponsored community health fairs. The PHM Program is also launching a chronic disease management program targeting diabetic members. GCHP will continue to improve the depth and breadth of services available to members as we learn more about their needs and characteristics through a data-driven, quality improvement approach.

Section 11: California Advancing and Innovating Medi-Cal (CalAIM)

What is CalAIM?

The state Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) designed a program to improve the health and wellbeing of Medi-Cal members beyond traditional medical services, make services work together better, and improve the quality of services. The program is called California Advancing and Innovating Medi-Cal (CalAIM).

1. Enhanced Care Management (ECM)

Enhanced Care Management (ECM) is a whole-person, interdisciplinary approach to care that addresses the clinical and nonclinical needs of members with the most complex medical and social needs. ECM provides systematic coordination of services and comprehensive care management that is community based, interdisciplinary, high touch and person centered.

Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP) offers the following ECM services to eligible members:

Adult Population of Focus (POF)

- Individuals experiencing homelessness:
 - Adults without dependent children / youth living with them experiencing homelessness
 Homeless families or unaccompanied children / youth experiencing homelessness
- Adults at risk for avoidable hospital or emergency department (ED) utilization (formerly "high utilizers")
- · Adults with serious mental health and/or substance use disorder (SUD) needs
- Individuals transitioning from incarceration
- Adults living in the community and at risk for long-term care (LTC) institutionalization
- Adult nursing facility residents transitioning to the community
- Birth equity population of focus

Children and Youth Population of Focus (POF)

- Homeless families or unaccompanied children / youth experiencing homelessness
- Individuals with serious mental health and/or SUD needs
- Transitioning from incarceration
- Children and youth at risk for avoidable hospital or ED utilization (formerly "high utilizers")
- Enrolled in California Children's Services (CCS) / CCS whole child model with additional needs Beyond the CCS eligible condition
- Children and youth involved in child welfare
- Birth equity population of focus
- 2. Children and Youth with Serious Mental Health and/or SUD Needs Community Supports (CS) Community Supports (CS) are services or settings that Managed Care Plans (MCPs) may offer

in place of services or settings covered under the California Medicaid State Plan and that are a medically appropriate, cost-effective alternative to a State Plan Covered Service. CS services are optional for MCPs to offer and for members to utilize. MCPs may not require members to use a CS instead of a service or setting listed in the Medicaid State Plan.

Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP) offers the following CS services to eligible members:

- Asthma remediation
- Community transition services / nursing facility transition to a home
- Environmental accessibility adaptations (EAAs, also known as home modifications)
- Housing deposits
- Housing tenancy and sustaining services

- Housing transition navigation services
- Medically supportive food / meals / medically tailored meals
- Nursing facility transition / diversion from assisted living facilities

To refer a member for CS, please fill out the CS Referral Form and the appropriate authorization request form located on the **GCHP website**.

3. Doula Services

Doulas provide person-centered, culturally competent care that supports the racial, ethnic, linguistic, and cultural diversity of members while adhering to evidence-based best practices. Doula services are aimed at preventing perinatal complications and improving health outcomes for birthing parents and infants. Doulas are birth workers who provide health education, advocacy, and physical, emotional, and non-medical support for pregnant and postpartum persons before, during, and after childbirth, including support during miscarriage, stillbirth, and abortion. Medi-Cal covers doula services as preventive services pursuant to Title 42 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Section 440.130(c) and must be recommended by a physician or other licensed practitioner of the healing arts within their scope of practice under state law. DHCS issued a statewide standing recommendation that all Medi-Cal members who are pregnant or were pregnant within the past year would benefit from receiving doula services from a Medi-Cal enrolled doula provider.

To recommend a member for doula services, please refer to the GCHP website.

4. Community Health Workers (CHW)

Community Health Worker (CHW) services are preventative health services to prevent disease, disability, and other health conditions or their progression; to prolong life; and promote physical and mental health and provide education services. CHWs may include individuals known by a variety of job titles, including Promotores, community health representatives, navigators, and other non-licensed public health workers, including violence prevention professionals.

To refer a member to a CHW, please complete the forms located on the GCHP website.

Section 12: Services Requiring Prior Authorization

Prior authorization (PA) requests are reviewed by a nurse according to predetermined criteria, protocols, and the medical information from the physician or other provider. In some cases, the nurse may need to contact the provider directly to request additional information. Only licensed medical professionals employed by Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP) can make decisions about prior authorization requests. Only the chief medical officer (CMO), associate chief medical officer (ACMO), or other physician reviewers have the authority to deny service authorization requests. Authorization decisions are based on evidence base GCHP policies as well as nationally recognized standards including, but not limited to:

- MCG Guidelines
- U.S. Preventive Services Task Force (USPSTF)
- California Department of Health Care Services (DHCS)

Nationally recognized standards of practice from organizations, such as:

- American Academy of Family Physicians (AAFP)
- American College of Obstetricians and Gynecologists (ACOG)
- American College of Physicians (ACP)
- American College of Radiology (ACR)
- American College of Surgeons (ACS)
- American Diabetes Association (ADA)
- American Gastrointestinal Association (AGA)
- American Medical Association (AMA)
- American Urological Association (AUA)
- Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC)
- National Cancer Institute (NCI)

Members must obtain a referral from their PCP before scheduling an appointment with any other provider, except for the self-referral services described below under "Self-Referral."

Medical Services Requiring Prior Authorization

PA requests must be submitted prior to the provision of a service unless it is medically urgent or will result in an unnecessary extension of a hospital stay.

Under exceptional circumstances, if a request must be submitted after a service has been provided or initiated to a GCHP member, it must be received by GCHP within 60 calendar days of initiation of the services or the request will be denied for non-timely submission. If the request is submitted for a member who has obtained retroactive eligibility, it must be received by GCHP within 60 calendar days of the member obtaining Medi-Cal eligibility or it will be denied for non-timely submission.

Medical services or procedures that require prior authorization include, but are not limited to:

- MRI and CT scans
- Outpatient surgery
- Dermatology therapy
- Home health services
- Speech therapy
- Physical and occupational therapy for members under 21 years of age, and for adults after 10 visits in a calendar year
- Non-emergency hospitalizations, except for an obstetrical delivery

- Requests for referral to an out-of-area provider / facility or a non-contracted provider / facility (referred to as "out-of-plan" or "non-par" to indicate a non-participating or non-contracted provider)
- Certain physician administered injections and infusions

You will find a more detailed list of services that require either a request for direct referral or PA here.

Self-Referral: No Authorization Required

GCHP members may access certain services without a referral from a PCP for the following services:

- Emergency services
- Urgent care services
- Emergency hospital admissions

GCHP members may self-refer to any willing Medi-Cal provider for sensitive services (refer to "Family Planning and Sensitive Services" below for more information).

GCHP members may self-refer to any willing OB/GYN specialty provider who is contracted with GCHP and is within GCHP's service area for routine well-woman care. GCHP recognizes Medi-Cal midwives for prenatal and postnatal care at registered birthing centers.

GCHP members may self-refer to Behavioral Health providers contracted through the GCHP's Behavioral Health Organization (Carelon Behavioral Health) for therapy, such as counseling.

GCHP members may self-refer to Health Education programs (refer to Section 14: Health Education for more information).

Emergency Admissions

While admission for emergencies does not require prior approval, hospitals MUST notify GCHP's Health Services Department within 24 hours of the patient admission or the next business day. All days will be reviewed for medical necessity.

Emergency services are covered as necessary to enable stabilization or for the evaluation of an emergency medical condition. An emergency medical condition is one that manifests itself by acute symptoms of sufficient severity (including severe pain) that a prudent layperson with an average knowledge of health and medicine could reasonably expect the absence of immediate medical attention to result in any of the following:

- Serious jeopardy to the health of the individual or, in the case of a pregnant woman, the health of the woman or her unborn child.
- Serious impairment to bodily functions.
- Serious dysfunction of a bodily organ or part.
- Death.

Post-Stabilization Services

Post-stabilization services are covered services related to an emergency medical condition that a treating physician views as medically necessary after an emergency medical condition has been stabilized to maintain the member's condition. Prior authorization is not required for coverage of post-stabilization services when these services are provided in any ER or for services in an observation setting by a provider.

GCHP has a health professional available 24/7 to coordinate a member's transfer of care when their emergency condition is stabilized, to authorize medically necessary post-stabilization services, and for general communication with ER personnel. Please call 1-888-301-1228.

Administrative Members

Members with other health care coverage may self-refer to any willing in-county Medi-Cal provider for covered benefits. In addition, authorization from GCHP is not required for members with other health coverage. For members who exhaust their other coverage, GCHP must be notified to ensure ongoing coverage of services. In some cases, requirements for Continuity of Care may be met. Call 1-888-301-1228 for more information.

Family Planning and Sensitive Services: No Prior Authorization Required

GCHP Medi-Cal members also may self-refer without prior authorization to any willing Medi-Cal provider for family planning and sensitive services.

Family planning services include birth control, pregnancy testing and counseling. Sensitive services include pregnancy testing and counseling, birth control, HIV/AIDS testing, sexually transmitted infection (STI) testing and treatment, and termination of pregnancy. Examples of covered services include:

- Routine pregnancy testing
- Elective therapeutic abortions
- Birth control pills
- "Morning after pill" to avoid pregnancy as approved by the FDA
- Routine birth control
- Norplant, including device, insertion and removal
- Inter-uterine device (IUD) including device, insertion and removal
- Diaphragm
- Contraceptive foam, male and female condoms, cervical caps, sponges, etc.
- Elective tubal ligation
- Elective vasectomy
- Office visits for education and instruction for birth control, including symptothermal method, Billings ovulation method, rhythm method, and instruction and education
- STI screening, testing, diagnosis, treatment and education
- HIV/AIDS screening, testing, diagnosis, treatment and education

How to Submit a Request for Prior Authorization

Electronically

Electronic submission is the preferred, most-efficient way for providers to submit a request for prior authorization. This can be done using the Provider Web Portal.

- Visit the **Provider Portal**.
- The NTT Data Provider Portal User Guide will walk you through the process, step by step.

Fax

- Complete the Prior Authorization Treatment Request Form.
- Fax the form to GCHP at 1-855-883-1552.
- Please note: All inpatient requests must be submitted via fax only.

Adherence to the following checklist for effective submission of the form will ensure the timeliest decision:

- Please type the form an illegible, handwritten form may be returned to the provider.
- Be sure to include your name, address, phone number and fax number.
- Be sure to include the member's name, address, age, sex, date of birth, and identifying information such as the member ID number.
- The Medi-Cal ID number must be correct. Refer to the Medi-Cal card if necessary.
- Enter the description of the diagnosis and ICD-10 or CPT code into the appropriate box with modifiers that most closely describe the member's condition.
- Use the correct GCHP vendor number, tax ID, NPI and provider and/or facility name.
- Attach documentation to the form that supports the medical necessity of the request (in addition to providing the documentation required in the history / medical justification area).
- Be sure to sign and date the form (if required, it must be signed by the referring provider).
- Submit a separate Prior Authorization Treatment Request Form for each service request per member. The request will be given a unique number that is used to facilitate reimbursement.

Member Requests

When a member requests a specific service, treatment, or referral to a specialist, it is the PCP's responsibility to determine medical necessity. If the service requested is not medically indicated, discuss an alternative treatment plan with the member or their representative.

Routine Pre-Service Requests

You must complete a request for prior authorization before the service is performed. For routine preservice requests, GCHP will usually make a determination within five business days from receipt of the request and the appropriate documentation of medical necessity.

In certain circumstances, a decision may be deferred for up to 14 days when the member or provider requests an extension, or if the original request did not contain sufficient clinical information.

Decisions to approve requests will be made and communicated to the provider by fax / mail within one business day of the decision. It is the responsibility of the provider to inform the member about the decision.

Decisions to modify or deny will be communicated to the member in writing within two business days of the decision; a copy will be sent to the provider. When a request is concurrent with services being provided, GCHP will ensure that medically necessary care is not interrupted or discontinued until the member's treating provider has been notified of the decision and a care plan has been agreed upon by the treating provider / PCP that is appropriate for the medical needs of the patient.

Expedited / Urgent Requests

In medically urgent situations, the provider may request an expedited review by calling GCHP's Provider Services Department at 1-888-301-1228 or by indicating URGENT on the request form. Expedited requests for prior authorization will be reviewed within 72 hours of the receipt of the request when the provider indicates that following a standard timeframe could seriously jeopardize the member's life, health, or the ability to attain, maintain or regain maximum function.

Out-of-Area and Out-of-Plan Referrals

When a member needs specialty care or procedures, the member's PCP should refer the member to a participating provider available within Ventura County. The PCP may refer the member to a non-contracted provider (non-par) within the service area only with GCHP approval. Please refer to the next section, "Specialist Referrals," for the appropriate process to refer members to participating and non-participating providers. In general, the reasons for referring to a provider out of GCHP's service area or out-of-plan are:

- The necessary procedure or service is not available through one of GCHP's in-area network providers.
- The expertise required for consultation is beyond what is available through GCHP's in-area provider network.
- The member's medical needs are sufficiently complex to require service out of the area.

In the event of an urgent / emergency medical situation outside of the GCHP service area, the noncontracted (non-par) provider or facility providing the service is required to contact GCHP within one business day to confirm eligibility and service authorization.

All services requested will be reviewed for clinical appropriateness by a GCHP nurse, with final decisions made by a GCHP physician reviewer.

For more information on out-of-area or out-of-plan (non-par) referrals, please call GCHP's Provider Services Department at 1-888-301-1228.

Specialist Referrals

A **Direct Referral Form (DRF)** is used when referring members for specialty care to a contracted provider (par) within GCHP's service area. This form is sent directly to the specialist by the referring provider.

PCPs must use a **Prior Authorization Treatment Request Form (PTRF)** when referring members for specialty care to a provider outside of GCHP's provider network (non-par) or outside of Ventura County (par and non-par). As with PTRFs, DRAFs are not required for administrative members.

The referring provider is responsible for verifying the list of contracted providers to ensure that the referral is being made to an appropriate GCHP network provider. Referrals to non-contracted and/or out-of-network providers will be reviewed by a GCHP physician reviewer and will be authorized under compelling medical circumstances and/or when medically necessary services are not readily available within the GCHP network.

The referral specialist is responsible for informing the PCP of the patient's status and proposed interventions throughout the course of treatment. The PCP is responsible for maintaining the referral tracking system.

Post-Service Retroactive Authorization Requests

If it was not possible for the provider to obtain authorization before providing a medically necessary service, GCHP will respond to a post-service PTRF if it is received within 60 calendar days of initiation of the service. If it is received later, the retrospective PTRF will be denied for non-timely submission. Please note that a post-service PTRF must be accompanied by documentation explaining why the authorization was not requested earlier. GCHP's response will inform the provider of the decision to approve, modify or deny the request, including communication to the provider and the member or their designated representative.

While elective surgery requires prior authorization, GCHP may provide authorization after the fact under exceptional medical circumstances.

If a PTRF is submitted for a member who has obtained retroactive Medi-Cal eligibility, it must be received by GCHP within 60 calendar days of the date on which the member obtained Medi-Cal eligibility or it will be denied for non-timely submission.

A PTRF may be submitted for post-service consideration under the following conditions:

- The member's Medi-Cal eligibility was delayed.
- When other health coverage (OHC) will not pay the claim.
- Covered equipment repairs exceeding \$500.
- When the patient fails to properly disclose Medi-Cal eligibility.

For more information on the timely submission of prior authorization requests, please visit the **Request for Authorization** listing on GCHP's website.

Authorization Requests for Ancillary Services

Prior authorization is required for ancillary services such as home health care, rehabilitation services and some durable medical equipment (DME). Ancillary services requiring prior authorization include, but are not limited to, the following:

- DME (purchase over \$500 or rental over \$200 per month)
- Physical / occupational therapy for members under 21 years of age and adults after 10 visits per calendar year
- Speech pathology
- Home health agency services
- Non-emergency medical transportation (NEMT)

Physician Administered Drugs (PADs) or Medical Drug Benefit

Physician Administered Drugs (PADs) through GCHP's Medical Drug Benefit include all infused, or injectable medications provided or administered to a member that is billed by a provider on a medical claim by a Procedure Code (i.e., J-code). Certain PADs require prior authorization (PA) to ensure medical necessity prior to administering the drug therapy. Any request for a PAD requiring a PA administered at a provider's office or infusion / hospital facility must be submitted as a treatment authorization request by completing a **Prior Authorization Treatment Request Form**. If you do not obtain approval, your claims may be delayed or denied until GCHP receives the information needed to establish medical necessity.

For a list of PADs that require a PA (or the PAD list), please use the GCHP PAD list, which can be found on the <u>Services Requiring Prior Authorization List</u>. The PAD list and the clinical guidelines for approval are available on the GCHP webpage under <u>For Providers > Pharmacy Services > Medical Drug Benefit</u>. GCHP, with direction from DHCS and the GCHP Pharmacy & Therapeutics (P&T) Committee, updates the PAD list quarterly.

Non-Emergency Medical Transportation (NEMT) Services

It is the provider's responsibility to determine eligibility and medical necessity for a member to receive NEMT services. The provider must complete the NEMT form and fax it to GCHP at 1-855-883-1552. GCHP will review the form for completeness and communicate NEMT eligibility to its vendor, Ventura Transit System (VTS). The verification process will not take longer than five business days. Once verified, VTS will

contact the member within 48 hours to arrange transportation. If the transportation request is of an urgent nature and needs to occur in less than 48 hours, please call GCHP's Provider Services Department at 1-888-301-1228.

The NEMT Prescription / Attestation of Medical Necessity Form is available here.

Hospital Inpatient Services

Admissions to an acute-care facility or ambulatory surgery center for scheduled surgery require prior authorization. All requests must be accompanied by the appropriate medical documentation including, but not limited to:

- Laboratory test results.
- X-rays.
- Medical records.
- Other reports that have relevance to the planned admission (e.g., pre-operative history and physical examination report).

Emergency and urgent admissions do not require prior authorization. However, GCHP must be notified by the facility of emergency admissions within one business day.

Transitional Care Services

GCHP and our providers have a shared responsibility for transitional care services (TCS) for our low- and high-risk members. Contracted facilities (including hospitals and skilled nursing facilities) must collaborate and communicate with our GCHP care managers to ensure that our members receive needed TCS.

Low-risk members can access TCS by calling 1-888-301-1228 Monday through Friday, 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. (except holidays) or emailing **CareManagement@goldchp.org**. High-risk members are automatically enrolled in high-risk TCS provided by a GCHP case manager.

Hospital Observation

Observation stays of up to two days do not require prior authorization. Observations exceeding two days require authorization.

Nursing Facilities

GCHP is responsible for Medi-Cal covered long-term care services. GCHP pays the facility daily rate for members who need out-of-home placement in a long-term care facility due to their medical condition. Medi-Cal does not pay for assisted living or for board-and-care facility services.

Nursing facilities include:

- Long-term Care (LTC) facilities
- Skilled nursing facilities (SNF)
- Intermediate-care facilities (ICF)
- Intermediate-care facilities of the developmentally disabled (ICF/DD), developmentally disabled habilitative (ICF/DDH), or developmentally disabled nursing (ICF/DDN)
- Subacute care facilities
- Congregate health living facilities (CHLF)

Nursing Facility Authorizations

It is GCHP's responsibility to assist its nursing facility providers with instructions for the submission requirements of prior authorization requests. To expedite approvals and claims processing in a timely manner, it is essential that the documents submitted are complete and legible.

All admissions for skilled nursing level of care require prior authorization. For long-term care placement, the admitting facility is required to submit medical justification and obtain authorization from GCHP within five business days of the member's arrival to the facility.

It is the responsibility of the physician referring the member or ordering the admission (skilled nursing) or the facility (long-term care) to provide the following information about the member:

- Medications, diet, activities and medical treatments; wound care and labs.
- Current history and physical.
- Diagnosis / diagnoses.
- The name of the physician who will be following the member once the member is admitted to the facility.

Unless otherwise determined, the PCP relationship with the member continues during any limited stay.

Nursing Facility Admission Notification

Nursing facilities must notify GCHP when members are in their facility. The notification must include those GCHP members with other health coverage. The facility must complete a prior authorization request and submit it to the GCHP Health Services Department. GCHP is a Medi-Cal provider and as such, is always the payer of last resort.

Other Health Coverage (OHC)

If a member has OHC and the skilled level of care is denied by the member's primary insurer, GCHP will require a denial letter from the OHC. If the member has Medicare as their primary insurance, the nursing facility should notify GCHP on or before the 21st day of their stay.

Reauthorization Request

A request for reauthorization should be submitted to GCHP prior to the expiration of the current authorization.

Long-Term Care (LTC) Facilities

The following is required for an LTC admission review:

- 1. **Prior Authorization Treatment Request Form (PTRF)**. This form is to be used for each admission and reauthorization.
- Preadmission Screening / Preadmission Screening and Resident Review (PAS/PASARR). Sections I through VII are required.
- 3. Medicare or other health care insurance denial letter.
- 4. Minimum Data Set (MDS)
 - Version 3.0 Nursing Home Comprehensive (NC) Version 1.16.1 Effective 10/1/2018. (Admission)
 - Version 3.0 Nursing Home Quarterly (NQ) Version 1.16.1 Effective 10/1/2018. (Need for Authorization)

- Include all the sections listed below:
 - a. Identification, admission information
 - b. Hearing, speech, vision
 - c. Brief interview for mental status (BIMS)
 - d. Behavior: wandering, inappropriate behavior, refusing or rejecting care
 - e. Functional status
 - f. Bowel and bladder
 - g. Active diagnosis on admission and as condition changes.
 - Confirm Principal Diagnosis Code by checking List of Unacceptable Diagnosis Codes, Manifestations Not Allowed as Principal Diagnosis and Questionable Admissions. See Section 10 of the February 26, 2013, edition of the Provider Operations Bulletin.
 - h. Swallowing, nutrition, G-tubes
 - i. Skin ulcers, wounds, precautions
 - j. Special treatments, oxygen, dialysis
- 5. Sufficient chart documentation to justify the level of care requested.

Short-Term Skilled Nursing Care

The following is required for a short-term skilled nursing admission review:

- 1. PTRF
- 2. Preadmission screening / preadmission screening and resident review (PAS/PASARR)
- 3. Physical therapy, occupational therapy, and speech therapy clinical notes submitted prior to the end of the authorization period
- 4. Sufficient chart documentation to justify the level of care requested

Intermediate Care

The following is required for an intermediate care nursing admission review:

- 1. PTRF
- 2. <u>Certification for Special Treatment Program Services (HS 231)</u> from Tri-Counties Regional Health

Sub-Acute Level of Care

The following is required for a Sub-Acute level of care admission review:

- 1. PTRF
- 2. Preadmission Screening / Preadmission Screening and Resident Review (PAS/PASARR)
- 3. Information for Authorization / Reauthorization of Subacute Care Services Adult Subacute Program (DHCS 6200 A)
- 4. Sufficient chart documentation to justify the level of care requested.

Bed Hold Days

If a member is residing in a nursing facility and their condition requires them to be admitted to an acute care hospital, the nursing facility may bill for bed hold days. The following rules apply to bed hold days:

- The bed hold is limited to a maximum of seven consecutive days per hospitalization.
- Authorization is required for bed hold days for members residing in a skilled nursing or sub-acute facility.

No authorization is required for bed hold days for members residing in a long-term care facility.

In addition, if a member is residing in an ICF / DD facility, bed hold days may be billed for members who leave the facility on a temporary pass. Bed hold days are limited to seven consecutive days. Authorization is not required for bed hold days for members residing in an ICF / DD facility.

Hospice Care

Only general inpatient hospice requires prior authorization following the standard prior authorization process.

Serious and Complex Medical Conditions

Providers should develop a written treatment plan for members with complex and serious medical conditions. The plan must provide for a standing referral or extended referral to a specialist, as appropriate. Regardless of the length of the standing referral, all specialist providers are required to send the PCP regular reports on the care and status of the patient.

The written treatment plan should indicate whether the patient will require:

- Continuing care from a specialist or specialty care center over a prolonged period.
- Standing referral visits to specialists.
- Extended access to a specialist because of a life-threatening, degenerative or disabling condition involving coordination of care by a specialty care practitioner. (For extended specialty referrals, the requesting provider should indicate the specific health care services to be managed by the specialist vs. the requesting provider.)

Standing Referrals to an HIV/AIDS Specialist

- To qualify as an HIV/AIDS specialist, a provider must have a valid license to practice medicine in the state and meet at least one of the following criteria:
 - » Credentialed as an HIV specialist by the American Academy of HIV Medicine.
 - » Board certified or a Certificate of Added Qualifications in the field of HIV medicine granted by the American Board of Medical Specialties.
 - » Board certified in the field of infectious diseases by the American Board of Medical Specialties and has, in the immediately preceding 12 months, both effectively managed the medical care for a minimum of 25 patients with HIV and successfully completed a minimum of 15 hours of Category 1 CME in the prevention of HIV infection, combined with experience in diagnosis, treatment, or both, of HIV-infected patients.
- In the immediately preceding 24 months, has effectively managed the medical care for a minimum of 20 patients infected with HIV and has completed any one of the following:
 - In the immediately preceding 12 months, has obtained certification or recertification in the field of infectious diseases from the American Board of Medical Specialties.
 - » In the immediately preceding 12 months, has successfully completed a minimum of 30 hours of Category 1 CME in the prevention of HIV infection, combined with experience in diagnosis, treatment, or both, of HIV-infected patients.
 - In the immediately preceding 12 months, has successfully completed a minimum of 15 hours of Category 1 CME in the prevention of HIV infection, combined with experience in diagnosis, treatment, or both, of HIV-infected patients, and has successfully completed the HIV Medicine Competency Maintenance Examination administered by the American Academy of HIV Medicine.

Obtaining a Second Opinion

Members may request a second opinion about a recommended procedure or service. GCHP honors all requests for second opinions without the need for a prior authorization as long as the second provider is within the GCHP participating provider network and Ventura County service area.

Second opinions may be rendered only by a provider qualified to review and treat the medical condition in question. Referrals to non-contracting medical providers or facilities may be approved only when the requested services are not available within the GCHP network. Second opinions should not be sought from providers affiliated with the same provider who rendered the first opinion.

If the non-contracted provider giving the second opinion recommends a treatment, diagnostic test, or service that is medically necessary and in alignment with the first opinion, the member will be redirected to a contracted provider.

In-area services available with contracted providers will be directed to those providers.

Status of Authorization Requests

GCHP's prior authorization team will review PTRF forms for completeness and will help you with any aspect of the process, including answering questions regarding the status of PTRFs. Please call 1-888-301-1228 for assistance.

Deferrals and Denials

Decisions about requests for authorization may be deferred or denied. Deferrals occur when the request is forwarded to another agency, such as CCS, for review and possible coverage determination. The requesting provider will receive a letter notifying them of the deferral.

When a request is denied by another agency, a Notice of Action letter will be mailed to the provider, the requesting facility, and the member. When a request is denied by GCHP, a denial letter will be mailed to the provider, requesting facility and the member no later than the second business day after the decision. If the denial is a result of insufficient information from the provider, GCHP will inform the member that the case will be reopened when complete information is received. The denial letter will explain the reason for denial and will provide information about the member's right to appeal the decision. If you need clarification of the reason your request was denied, or a copy of the criteria utilized to make the determination, please call Provider Services at 1-888-301-1228.

Assistance with Referral Consultation Requests

If you are unable to determine if a referral is required after reading this section, please call Provider Services at 1-888-301-1228.

Section 13: Claims and Billing

How Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP) Claims are Processed

GCHP's goal is to ensure timely and accurate claims processing. This section is intended to provide guidance to provider billing offices regarding the claim submission process. These guidelines do not, however, supersede any regulatory or contractual requirements published in legally binding documents or notices.

GCHP strives to process all claims in a timely manner and respond courteously to all inquiries from providers. GCHP is contractually bound to process 90% of clean claims within 30 working days of receipt. All claims are processed daily on a first-in / first-out basis. Claim payments are generated and mailed weekly.

GCHP processes medical claims primarily per Medi-Cal guidelines and uses key industry standard codes. Each claim is subject to a comprehensive series of edits and audits. All information is validated to determine if the claim should be paid, contested or denied.

Claims that fail an edit or audit check will be flagged for manual review by a claims examiner. Claims examiners cannot correct claim submission errors. Claims requiring medical review will be reviewed by a qualified medical professional in accordance with the California Code of Regulations (CCR), Title 22 and policies established by the state Department of Health Care Services (DHCS).

Refer to GCHP's **Provider Web Portal** to view claim status and details. Claim status can also be obtained by calling GCHP's Provider Services Department at 1-888-301-1228 and using the automated IVR system. For questions about a claim, please call Provider Services, 8 a.m. to 5 p.m., Monday through Friday (except holidays).

There are two ways to submit a claim:

- Electronic data interchange (EDI)
- Paper or hard copy

Electronic Data Interchange (EDI)

GCHP strongly encourages electronic claims submission. It is cost effective and promotes the effective use of resources. Providers receive an electronic confirmation of claim submission.

Submit claims electronically through a GCHP-approved electronic billing systems software vendor or clearing-house. Completion of electronic claims submission requirements can speed claim processing and prevent delays.

If you use EDI, you must include:

- Billing provider name
- Rendering provider name (when different than billing provider)
- Legal name
- License number (if applicable)
- Medicare number (if applicable)
- Federal provider tax ID number
- Medi-Cal ID number
- Member's name as it appears on their GCHP ID card
- National Provider Identifier (NPI)

Contact your vendor or billing service for instructions on how to ensure that the Plan Provider ID is coded as a GCHP NPI and to determine how to submit your claim.

If you are not currently submitting claims electronically and would like to learn more about EDI and how to get connected, please contact EDI support at **GCHPOnboardingRequests@edifecs.com**.

To submit your EDI claims to GCHP, your clearinghouse must register your NPI. Please refer your clearinghouse to the instructions to learn how to register your NPI with for EDI submissions. If you are a direct submitter of EDI claims, please refer to the instructions on how to register your NPI.

Paper Claim Submission

Paper claims are scanned for optimal processing and recording of data. Paper claims must be legible and provided in nationally accepted standard formats to ensure scanning capabilities. The following paper claim submission requirements can speed claim processing and prevent delays:

- Use the correct form and be sure it meets Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) standards.
- Use black or blue ink; do not use red ink, as the scanner may not be able to read it.
- Use the "Remarks" field for messages.
- Do not stamp or write over boxes on the claim form.
- Send the original claim form to GCHP and retain the copy for your records.
- Separate each individual claim form. Do not staple original claims together, as GCHP would
 consider the second claim an attachment and not an original claim to be processed separately.
- Use the member's name as it appears on their GCHP ID Card.

Attachments to Paper Claims

Some claims may require additional attachments. Be sure to include all supporting documentation when submitting your claim. Failure to submit required documentation may result in a claim denial.

Mail paper claims to GCHP using the following address to facilitate timely processing and payment:

ATTN: CLAIMS Gold Coast Health Plan P.O. Box 9152 Oxnard, CA 93031

Clinical Submission Categories

The following is a list of claims categories of which GCHP may routinely require submission of clinical information before or after payment of a claim.

Claims involving pre-certification / prior authorization / pre-determination (or some other form of utilization review) include, but are not limited to:

- Claims pending for lack of pre-certification or prior authorization.
- Claims involving medical necessity or experimental / investigative determinations.
- Claims for pharmaceuticals requiring prior authorization.
- Claims involving certain modifiers.
- Claims involving unlisted codes.
- Claims for which it cannot be determined from the face of the claim whether it involves a covered service. Thus, the benefit determination cannot be made without reviewing medical records (including, but not limited to, emergency service and benefit exclusions).

- Claims that GCHP has reason to believe involve inappropriate (including fraudulent) billing.
- Claims that are the subject of an audit (internal or external), including high-dollar claims.
- Claims for individuals involved in care management or disease management.
- Claims that have been appealed (or that are otherwise the subject of a dispute, including claims being mediated, arbitrated, or litigated).
- Other situations in which clinical information might routinely be requested.
- Credentialing.
- Coordination of benefits (COB).

Examples provided in each category are for illustrative purposes only and are not meant to represent an exhaustive list within the category.

GCHP cannot be responsible for claims that are never received. Providers must work with their vendors to make sure files are successfully submitted and that there was proper follow-up on paper claims. Failure of a third party to submit a claim to GCHP may put the provider's claim at risk for being denied for untimely filing if those claims are not successfully submitted during the filing limit.

Claims Processing

Once a paper claim is received by GCHP, it is assigned a unique Document Control Number (DCN). The DCN identifies and tracks claims as they move through the Claims Processing System. The number contains the Julian date, which indicates the date the claim was received. It monitors timely submission of a claim.

Each claim is subject to a comprehensive series of check points called edits. The edits verify and validate that the claim information is compliant with all nationally accepted claim billing procedures and coding regulations and to determine if the claim should be paid, denied, or suspended for manual review. GCHP utilizes the National Correct Coding Initiative (NCCI) Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) policy to promote national correct coding methodologies and to control improper coding.

Providers are responsible for all claims submitted with their national provider identifier (NPI), regardless of who completed the claim. Providers using billing services must ensure that their claims are handled properly.

Claim Return for Additional Information

If a claim is returned to the provider for correction or additional information, GCHP refers to this claim as a rejected claim. GCHP will indicate what information is missing or needs to be corrected by the provider to process the claim. Timely filing requirements still apply.

Timely Filing Requirements

Claims must be submitted within 365 calendar days of the date of service unless the provider's contract specifies a different limitation. Claims submitted beyond 180 days from the date of service or 180 days beyond the date of discharge for inpatient claims are subject to a timely filing claim payment reduction.

- Claims received in months 7-9 from the date of service / date of discharge will reimburse 75% of allowable covered charges.
- Claims received in months 10-12 from the date of service / date of discharge will reimburse 50% of allowable covered charges.

Claims received after 365 calendar days will be denied for timely filing unless circumstances prevented the claims from being filed within 365 calendar days (e.g., if the member has other insurance and the

provider must wait for the primary carrier to process the claim before being able to submit the claim to GCHP). If the member has other insurance, the claim must be received within 180 calendar days from the date of the other insurance's Remittance Advice (RA). Corrected claims (replacement of a previously submitted claim, e.g., changes or corrections to charges, clinical codes [provider reviewed clinical documentation and determined the code originally billed was incorrect] or procedure codes, dates of service, member information, etc.) must be submitted within 180 calendar days from the date of last action. A late charge claim (additional charges added to a previous claim submission) must be received within 365 calendar days from the date of service unless the provider's contract specifies a different limitation. Timely filing claim payment reductions apply to all late charge claims. Late charge claims received after 365 calendar days. For information related to claim payment disputes, please refer to Section 17.

If a provider files a claim with the wrong payer and provides documentation verifying the initial timely claims filing (within the applicable claims filing time limits set forth in this section from the date of the other carrier's denial letter or RA form), GCHP will process the provider's claim without denying it for failure to adhere to the timely filing limits.

Claims Payment

When a provider's claim is received, it is analyzed to determine if the services are covered and to identify the corresponding amount to be paid. Once the claim is finalized, GCHP generates an Explanation of Payment (EOP) summarizing services rendered and payer action taken and then sends the appropriate payment amount to the provider, where the claim is payable.

Providers should receive a response from GCHP 90% of the time within 30 working days of GCHP's receipt of a clean claim.

If the claim contains all the required information, the claim is entered into GCHP's Claims Processing System, and the provider is sent an EOP at the time the claim is finalized.

Child Health Disability Prevention (CHDP) Claims Submission

Providers must be CHDP paneled in order to provide CHDP services. Only providers who are paneled will be reimbursed for these services.

All encounters and claims for CHDP should be submitted to GCHP on a CMS 1500 form, using the American Medical Association (AMA) Current Procedural Terminology (CPT).

The following preventive CPT codes are to be billed with the EP modifier when used for CHDP:

New Patient	
99381	Initial Evaluation and Management of Healthy Individual < 1 year of age
99382	Early Childhood – ages 1 to 4
99383	Late Childhood – ages 5 to 11
99384	Adolescent – ages 12 to 17
99385	18 to 39 years of age (CHDP services are only covered up to age 21)

Established Patient	
99391	Periodic Re-evaluation and Management of Healthy Individual < 1 year of age
99392	Early Childhood – ages 1 to 4
99393	Late Childhood – ages 5 to 11

Established Patient	
99394	Adolescent – ages 12 to 17
99395	18 to 39 years of age (CHDP services are only covered up to age 21)

Claims Submission by Fax

GCHP is unable to accept or process claims submitted via fax. Claims must be submitted either electronically via EDI or by paper to the P.O. Box indicated above.

Pharmacy Claims

All pharmacy benefits are administered by Medi-Cal Rx. Medi-Cal Rx is responsible for processing and paying pharmacy claims billed by pharmacies. Information regarding Medi-Cal Rx can be found on the dedicated Medi-Cal Rx <u>website</u>. Please do not submit pharmacy claims to GCHP. More information can also be found on the GCHP Pharmacy Services for Providers <u>webpage</u>.

A list of Physician-Administered Drugs (PADs) covered under the medical benefit that require a prior authorization can be found on the GCHP **website**. A Prior Authorization Treatment Request Form will need to be submitted for review by Utilization Management. The Prior Authorization Treatment Request Form can also be found on the GCHP **website**. For additional information, please call Provider Services at 1-888-301-1228.

Claim Forms Used by Different Types of Providers*

Claim Form	Type of Provider	Services Billed on this Form
CMS-1500	PCPs	All professional services.
CMS-1500	Referral Specialists	All professional services.
CMS-1500	Clinics	All professional services.
CMS-1500	Pharmacies	Pharmacies may also use this for durable medical equipment (DME), medical supplies, incontinence supplies, orthotics and prosthetics.
CMS-1500	Medical Laboratories	All lab services.
CMS-1500	Allied Health Practitioners	All covered services delivered by Allied Health Care Professionals.

Claim Form	Type of Provider	Services Billed on this Form
UB-04	Hospitals / Clinics / FQHCs / SNFs / Surgicenters	All professional or facility services.
CMS-1500	Imaging Centers	Professional X-ray and related services.
UB-04	Long-Term Care (LTC)	All LTC services.

* All claims should be submitted no later than 180 calendar days from the date of service or date of discharge on an inpatient claim to avoid a timely filing claim payment reduction, with the exception of other health coverage. If there is another carrier involved (e.g., Medicare, commercial health insurance, etc.), the claim must first be submitted to the other carrier since Medi-Cal is the payer of last resort. Once the primary carrier has processed the claim, the provider should submit the claim, along with the primary carrier's Explanation of Benefits (EOB) form to GCHP within 180 calendar days from the date of the primary carrier's EOB. GCHP will then consider the claim as the secondary carrier and will determine if any additional payment is due as appropriate up to the Medi-Cal maximum allowable payment amount.

Section 14: Coordination of Benefits

Some Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP) members have other health coverage (OHC) in addition to their GCHP coverage. Specific rules govern how benefits must be coordinated in these cases. State and federal laws require that all available health coverage be exhausted before billing Medi-Cal. As such, when a Medi-Cal member has OHC, GCHP becomes the secondary (or sometimes tertiary) payer, with Medi-Cal always the payer of last resort.

OHC includes any non-Medi-Cal coverage that provides or pays for health care services. This can include, but is not limited to:

- Commercial health insurance plans (individual and group policies).
- Prepaid health plans.
- Health Maintenance Organizations (HMOs).
- Employee benefit plans.
- Union plans.
- Tri-Care, Champus VA.
- Medicare, including Medicare Part D plans, Medicare supplemental plans and Medicare Advantage (Preferred Provider Organization (PPO), HMO, and fee-for-service) plans.

When a GCHP Medi-Cal member also has another primary medical insurance, the member must treat the other insurance plan as the primary insurance company and access services under that company's rules of coverage. For example, if the other coverage is a PPO plan with a closed panel, the member must see a provider within the PPO network. If it is an HMO or a Medicare Advantage plan, the member must receive services from his or her provider under that plan. Any referrals or prior authorizations required by the primary insurance must be obtained before receiving services.

If the member has an HMO as their primary insurance, and the HMO requires a referral for a member to see a specialist or other provider, the referral will need to come from the member's PCP in the primary insurance plan. If a member is eligible for the CCS program, please contact CCS for a referral. If a member with OHC needs services requiring prior authorization, the provider must obtain the authorization from the primary insurance company.

GCHP is not liable for the cost of services for members with OHC who do not obtain the services in accordance with the rules of their primary insurance. If a member elects to seek services outside of the framework of their primary insurance coverage, the member is responsible for the cost.

Exceptions to the 365-calendar-day billing limit / 180-calendar-day claim payment reduction will be made with OHC claims based on the date of the EOB. The claim must be submitted to GCHP within 180 calendar days from the date of the primary carriers EOP.

Dual Coverage by Medicare and Medi-Cal (Medi / Medi)

In accordance with the transaction and code sets adopted by the secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services through a final rule published in 45 CFR 162, GCHP is now able to accept electronic Coordination of Benefits Agreement (COBA) crossover claims for dual eligible members (Medi-Medi).

GCHP receives both Medicare Part A and Part B crossover claims only directly from the Benefits Coordination Recovery Center (BCRC) for dual eligible members (Medi-Medi).

GCHP does not receive any COBA Medicare Part C (Medicare Advantage) electronic crossover claims.

GCHP is responsible for the processing and coordination of Medi-Medi claims. Do not send claims to the state for coordination; they will be denied.

Exceptions to the 365-calendar-day billing limit will be made with Medi-Medi claims based on the date of the Medicare Explanation of Benefits (MEOB). The claim must cross over from the BCRC to GCHP within 180 days from the date of the MEOB.

The primary insurance must be billed prior to GCHP. The EOB issued by the primary carrier must be submitted with your claim. Failure to include the primary carrier EOB may result in a claim denial.

You will not receive additional reimbursement for services that are capitated by the primary carrier.

If Medicare covers the service and GCHP does not pay as the primary carrier, procedures which normally require prior authorization by GCHP will not require it.

Medicare / Medi-Cal (Medi / Medi) Crossover Claim Process

California law limits Medi-Cal reimbursement for a crossover claim to an amount that, when combined with the Medicare payment, should not exceed Medi-Cal's maximum allowed for similar services. (Refer to Welfare and Institutions Code, Section 14109.5.) The following provides three different examples of crossover claims processing results (dollar amounts are for demonstration only and do not reflect actual allowed amounts for either Medicare or Medi-Cal):

CPT Code	Billed Amount	Allowed	Deductible/ Coinsurance	Medicare Paid	Medi-Cal Allowed	Medi-Cal Paid
99215	\$300.00	\$100.00	\$20.00	\$80.00	\$50.00	\$0.00
No payment is d	ue under Medi-Cal	as the Medicare	payment exceeds th	ne Medi-Cal allowa	nce.	
This is referred to as a "zero pay" claim.						
71020	\$100.00	\$80.00	\$16.00	\$64.00	\$70.00	\$6.00
\$6.00 of the Medicare deductible / coinsurance can be picked up under Medi-Cal as that is the difference between what Medicare paid and the Medi-Cal allowance.						
10160	\$50.00	\$25.00	\$5.00	\$20.00	\$35.00	\$5.00
The entire Medicare deductible / coinsurance amount of \$5.00 can be picked up as that amount combined with the Medicare paid amount of \$20.00 does not exceed the Medi-Cal allowance.						

Providers who accept persons eligible for both Medicare and Medi-Cal cannot bill them for the Medicare deductible and coinsurance amounts. These amounts can be billed only to Medi-Cal for consideration. Providers should, however, bill Medi-Cal members for any Share of Cost (SOC).

Note: Providers are strongly advised to wait until they receive the Medicare payment before collecting SOC to avoid collecting amounts greater than the Medicare deductible and/or coinsurance. If the SOC amount is not reported on the claim form or not collected from the member, GCHP will request a refund for any overpayments resulting from the member's SOC not being met.

Claims for Medi / Medi members must be submitted to Medicare prior to billing GCHP, except for services that Medicare does not cover. GCHP may reimburse providers for Medicare non-covered, exhausted or denied services when billed to GCHP with the appropriate Medicare denial attached.

Share of Cost (SOC)

Some Medi-Cal members must pay, or agree to pay, a monthly dollar amount toward their medical expenses before they qualify for Medi-Cal benefits. This dollar amount is called share of cost (SOC). Members are not eligible to receive Medi-Cal benefits until their monthly SOC dollar amount has been certified online. Certifying SOC means that the Medi-Cal eligibility verification system shows the subscriber has paid or become obligated for the entire monthly dollar SOC amount owed. The SOC is comparable to a commercial health insurance out-of-pocket deductible in that the carrier does not pay until the deductible is met.

Providers should access the Medi-Cal eligibility verification system to determine if a member must pay an SOC. The eligibility verification system is accessed through the Automated Eligibility Verification System (AEVS) and the Medi-Cal Provider website at **www.medi-cal.ca.gov**.

The provider should ask for or accept obligation from the patient for their Medi-Cal SOC. Remember that when Medi-Cal pays for any portion of the service, the total reimbursement received for the service (including the SOC amount paid directly to the provider from the member) may not exceed the Medi-Cal maximum allowable amount for the services rendered. Claims submitted for members who have not met their SOC requirement for the month of service will be denied.

Examples of two SOC scenarios for a patient with dual coverage are presented in the chart below.

EXAMPLE A	EXAMPLE B
Provider's Charges = \$250.00	Provider's Charges = \$250.00
Medicare Allows \$200.00	Medicare Allows \$200.00
Medicare Pays 80% allowed of \$200.00 = \$160.00	Medicare Pays 80% allowed of \$200.00 = \$160.00
Medi-Cal Allowable \$180.00 Difference = \$20.00	Medi-Cal Allowable \$190.00 Difference = \$30.00
Member's SOC = \$25.00 GCHP would pay \$0 if the SOC is not met.	Member's Share of Cost = \$25.00 GCHP would pay \$5.00 after the SOC is met.

Examples of SOC: Medi-Cal + Medicare

GCHP Members with Veterans Benefits

If a GCHP member is a veteran and is eligible for Veteran's Administration (VA) health care benefits, they may choose to use VA services (hospitals, outpatient and other government clinics). A description of the services offered to veterans can be found **here**.

Members with VA benefits may use their own discretion in choosing whether to receive care through the VA system or GCHP. GCHP cannot require or request that they do so; but, if the member wishes, GCHP will facilitate and coordinate their care.

Section 15: Member Services

Gold Coast Health Plan's (GCHP) Member Services supports providers by helping Medi-Cal members:

- Choose or change a PCP, which may be a clinic or physician.
- Learn about their eligibility.
- Provide their claim status.
- Understand how to access care within a managed care health plan.
- Understand member benefits and services available.
- Understand their rights and responsibilities.

New members are sent a welcome packet, which includes a letter, GCHP's Provider Directory, and a form to select a PCP from the directory. A Health Information Form (HIF) / Member Evaluation Tool (MET) is also included, which is used to assess each member's individual health needs.

A GCHP ID card, which identifies the name of the member's PCP, will be issued after the member's first month of enrollment. The member will also receive a Member Handbook that serves as the state-required Evidence of Coverage (EOC) that explains how to navigate GCHP.

Administrative members are mailed a welcome letter, their GCHP ID card, and GCHP's Member Handbook.

Every year, members also receive three newsletters, which include articles on health education topics, service and benefit reminders, and information about how to use GCHP's services.

Member Services Staff

You may seek assistance and support in dealing with member service issues by calling GCHP Member Services at 1-888-301-1228 (TTY: 711) Monday through Friday, 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. (excluding holidays).

If a member loses eligibility for Medi-Cal but returns as a member within 12 months, the member will remain linked to the previous PCP unless that participating provider is closed to new patients or no longer available.

Section 16: Language Assistance Services

Overview of Cultural and Linguistic Services

Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP) understands that health literacy and cultural diversity are key factors to building a healthy community. GCHP is committed to delivering culturally and linguistically appropriate health care services to its diverse membership, including language assistance services to members who are limited English proficient (LEP), including those who have limited ability to read, speak, write, or understand English.

GCHP is committed to ensuring effective communication with members with visual impairments or other disabilities requiring the provision of written materials in alternative formats, and shall facilitate requests for Braille, audio format, large print (no less than 20-point Arial font), and accessible electronic format, such as a data CD, as well as requests for other auxiliary aids and services that may be appropriate at no cost to members.

GCHP is committed to ensuring that all members and potential members, regardless of race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, ethnic group identification, age, mental or physical disability, medical condition, genetic information, marital status, gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, or language ability to have equal access to quality health care and services in a member's preferred language of choice or alternative format. If you need language assistance services for your GCHP patients, contact GCHP's Cultural and Linguistic Services at 1-805-437-5961, Monday through Friday, 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. (except holidays) or call GCHP Member Services at 1-888-301-1228 (TTY: 711). Providers can also email **CulturalLinguistics@goldchp.org**.

Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS)

Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS) are a way to improve the quality of services provided to members, which ultimately helps to reduce health disparities and achieve health equity. CLAS is about respect and responsiveness: respect the whole individual and respond to the individual's health needs and preferences. The provision of health services that are respectful of and responsive to the health beliefs and needs of diverse patients can help close the gap in health outcomes.

The National CLAS Standards are intended to advance health equity, improve quality, and help eliminate health care disparities by establishing a blueprint for health and health care organizations. Visit the **Think Cultural Health** website to learn more about how you can help improve health outcomes and for training opportunities.

	I		
National Standards for Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS) in Health and Health Care		The Case for the National CLAS Standa	ards
The National CLAS Standards are intended to advance health equity, improve quality, and help eliminate health care disparities by establishing a blueprint for health and health care organizations to:		Reath equity is the attainment of the highest level of health for all people. ¹ Currently, individuals anneas becigiproads are unable to attain their highest level at health for sensed reasons, including the social de individuals are thorn, goose, leve, and age? Such as accidencements instant, edication levels, and the a Though health inequalities are directly related to the existence of historical and current discrimination.	terminants of health, or those conditions
Analysis Annual An		examples and the main collection is the set of address of period and period.	to guide collaborative efforts that adde
Dependencies Additional subject strateging and strategin		Hourset H	el plesenes a d'hudit, Retreech hun higu jewe. In conte fa Patiliar and Estenani Mudea annale i fontenez guera, parte y ante y anna anna anna anna anna anna anna a
Contract Con			Baix for Https://www.thinkscheraber contact@bhinkscherabe

Language Assistance Services

GCHP adheres to federal and state guidelines that require health plans to ensure that limited English proficiency (LEP), including those who have limited ability to read, speak, write, or understand English. Medi-Cal beneficiaries have access to interpreters and translation services at all key points of covered services at no cost to GCHP members and potential members. GCHP strongly discourages the use of unqualified interpreters, including bilingual office staff, friends or family members - especially minors. Providers shall offer language assistance services to members during their visit / exam. Providers shall document electronically or manually in the member's medical record if the member declines the use of an interpreter at the time of the visit.

GCHP's Cultural and Linguistic Services coordinates interpreting and translation services for GCHP's members and providers. GCHP provides training opportunities for providers and their staff on language assistance services, cultural competency, diversity, equity, and inclusion trainings to increase awareness of the diverse health care needs of GCHP's membership at no cost.

For help getting an interpreter or assistance with the translation of documents into a member's preferred language or format, contact GCHP Cultural and Linguistic Services Department at 1-805-437-5961 Monday through Friday, 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. (except holidays) or email **CulturalLinguistics@goldchp.org**.

Cancellation Policy

- Providers and/or their staff must call or email GCHP's Cultural and Linguistic Services at least 25 business hours in advance to cancel appointments lasting less than two hours.
- When cancelling a request for services lasting longer than two hours, GCHP requires that Cultural and Linguistic Services to be notified at least 49 business hours in advance.

Telephone Interpreting Services

GCHP offers telephonic interpreting services available to providers 24/7 for covered services. To access telephonic interpreting services after regular business hours, call 1-866-421-3463. GCHP contracts with a vendor that provides telephone interpreting services in more than 240 languages. Call GCHP's Cultural and Linguistic Services during business hours at 1-805-437-5961 to request a provider access code.

In-Person Interpreting Services

GCHP works with various vendors to provide qualified in-person interpreter services. It is important to submit the <u>Language Assistance and Auxiliary Services Request Form</u> to GCHP Cultural and Linguistic Services via fax at 1-805-248-7481 or email at <u>CulturalLinguistics@goldchp.org</u> at least five to seven business days in advance of the request for a covered service. To cancel an interpreting request, send an email to GCHP's Cultural and Linguistic Services at <u>CulturalLinguistics@goldchp.org</u> at least 25 business hours prior to the appointment.

Sign Language Interpreting Services

GCHP complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) to ensure that members who need services from a sign language interpreter receive those services. GCHP has contracted with vendors to provide qualified sign language interpreting for members during covered services. The Language Assistance and Auxiliary Services Request Form must be submitted to GCHP at least five to seven business days in advance of the covered service. Submit your request form via fax to 1-805-248-7481 or email at **CulturalLinguistics@goldchp.org**. If you have questions about language assistance services, call GCHP's Provider Services at 1-888-301-1228 (TTY: 711). You may also call GCHP's Cultural and Linguistic Services at 1-805-437-5961, Monday through Friday, 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. (except holidays).

How to Access Sign Language Interpreter Services:

- For sign language interpreter services, call GCHP's Provider Services Department at 1-888-301-1228 (TTY: 711), or call GCHP's Cultural and Linguistic Services at 1-805-437-5961, Monday through Friday, 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. (except holidays).
- For emergency, same-day or urgent requests during business hours, call Cultural and Linguistic Services at 1-805-437-5961.

When Requesting Interpreter Services:

- Verify the GCHP member's Medi-Cal eligibility before requesting an interpreter.
- Provide an advanced notice of at least five to seven business days before any scheduled covered service.
- Provide the member's name, GCHP / Medi-Cal ID number, the type of service, assignment address, name and phone number of the provider who will be seeing the member, and the date and time of the covered service.

Translation of Documents

GCHP provides translation services to members whose primary language is not English. Providers can request assistance for translation of written materials for GCHP members at no cost.

Alternative Formats

GCHP receives a weekly file from DHCS containing a list of members who requested alternative formats (AF). GCHP informs providers and subcontractors of members requesting member information to be in an alternative format.

GCHP provides alternative formats and appropriate auxiliary aids and services to members with disabilities upon request. Providers and subcontractors shall document member's AF preference in the electronic member record system. Alternative formats include the following, but are not limited to:

- Large print (no less than 20-point Arial font)
- Braille
- Accessible electronic format, such as an audio or data CD, and other auxiliary aids and services that may be appropriate.

Plain Language – 6th Grade Reading Level or Below

Evidence shows that patients often do not understand much of the information given by health care providers. Per DHCS, member informing materials shall be written in a 6th grade reading level or below. If you need assistance with readability reviews, contact GCHP's Health Education Department at **HealthEducation@goldchp.org**.

GCHP recognizes that using simple language is essential for the effective delivery of health care. Plain language makes it easier for everyone to understand and use health information. One way to promote health literacy is by assuring that member-informing materials are at or below a 6th grade reading level.

Cultural and Linguistic Resources

GCHP routinely distributes information on interpreting and translation services to provider offices. GCHP makes promotional / educational materials available to providers free of charge to assist with cultural and linguistic requirements, services, and resources.

GCHP recognizes the importance of clear communication with patients, and we are committed to assisting with language assistance services to ensure members are receiving qualified interpreting and translation services. Members are **NOT** required to bring an interpreter or use a friend, family, including minors, to interpret during their medical and behavioral appointments. It is the responsibility of the provider – not the member – to request interpreting services. Providers shall document electronically or manually in the member's medical chart if the member declines the use of an interpreter at the time of the visit.

To request language assistance and auxiliary services, complete and submit the Language Assistance and Auxiliary Services Request Form (available in **English** and **Spanish**) to GCHP's Cultural and Linguistic Services at **CulturalLinguistics@goldchp.org**. For provider training opportunities, visit the GCHP **website**.

Gold Coast Health Plan					Gold Coast Health Plan		
			GCHP OFFICE USE ONLY Date Terrativet				
			Date Completed				
			Tacking No:				
ULTURAL AND LINGUISTIC					SERVICE INFORMATION Please indicate interpreter location assignment.		
anguage Assistance and A	Auxiliary Services Request	Form			Provider Cartact:		Provider Garlact Phone Bumber:
QUESTS FOR SERVICES REQUIRE 5	7 BUSINESS DAYS ADVANCE NOTICE	E.			Neme of Agency / Clinic		
his an urgent request? 🗌 Yos 🔛 No					Anison with Address	Dept/Floor/Suite Cl	v Za
ase select all that apply:							,
Oral Interpreter (In-Person) Request	Sign-Language Interpreter Reques	et 🗆 Wi	itual (Telehsalth) Interpreter Rec	puest	Coss Stort		Parking Location:
Telephone Interpretor Request	Translation (Written) Request						
Other (Atomative Format, etc.)						Special Instructions (e.g., name of	f specific interpreter, male, femalei:
					Spanish		
QUESTOR INFORMATION					Sign-Language		
alle Neodod:	Appointment Diart Time (Kopplexible):	AM Appo	internet End Time (# applicable)	AM	Ditter Language (Specify):		
ne d fecundur.		D PM	e Sunder:	D PM	Alternative Format (e.g., braile, large print, audio, electronic form or other termat;	T virtual (released) request, indi	xde meeting link:
me a requisite:		100	e suece:		Construction (state, state, state) in the state, state of the state,		
ovider Name:							
Inic Name:		Fee 3	lunber.	_	FOR TRANSLATION ONLY Title of Document	Number of Pages.	Eate Needed
nal (hierpreter confirmation will be emailed - Pie	INF PRINT CLEARLY:			_			
					Submit completed request form to		-Make and
EMBER INFORMATION					ALL RECUESTS AND/OR CANCELATIONS		
imber Narw:		Gend					And and a second second
ivi. Cul D Turnier (RGUEED)			Raie Female Non-Dinary		Te cancel or reschedul please notify QCHP Cultural and Linguistic Se	e a confirmed request, rvices at least 25 business	hours in advance.
od-Cal D Number (REQUEED):		Dete	alian.		For meetings, call Collumb and Lines	uistic Services at 1,405,437	5803
imary Care Provider:					Norday through Friday, from 8 a.m. to 5 p.m.) Billing Inf		0 0 117, 001 219.
pe of Appointment					Gold Ceast I Attr: Calibrati and L	Health Plan Joculatic Services	
					711 E. Dully Drive, Suite 1 Phone: 1-805-437-5600	106, Camasillo, CA 99010	
					Enal: Cultural Engl	intice@goldche.org	

Note: If you need to cancel or reschedule a confirmed interpreter request, please email **CulturalLinguistics@goldchp.org** at least 25 business hours in advance.

Working with Limited English Proficient (LEP), Deaf, and/or Hard of Hearing Members

When working with LEP, deaf, and/or hard of hearing members, it is important to know how to identify, offer and access language assistance services.

Below are valuable language identification and awareness tools for members. Providers should keep these resources in visible areas to show members when they need help identifying their preferred language or communication method:

1. Language ID Guide: Contain the following statement in 99 languages, "Point to your language. An interpreter will be called. The interpreter is provided at no cost to you."

rope	Europe - continued	Pacific Islands	LanguageLine Belation 2	India, Pakistan, and Southwest Asia	Africa - continued	Middle East	Asia-continued
Poerlan Brogo 1913 opcni me pidz.glubin.tuaj Du ta theraino o pidztywa. Parietywi okobet fulus pikto.	Icelandio Islanska 🦋 Besta J jeli temperali Jah verba hringi 108, Taharin wike ah ketrabahasa.	Filian Voea Vakavili 👷 Dalanenoru una Nine Vakasutali mal e dae ne dae ratadeve voa. Na daevaladere voa e sea na servi.	Language Identification	Bangali territi (63) sovice sone fon fictive anne constitue sone an onsett samle fonanza vanne :	Dirike Thok monylang 158 Weet ten thoungble Raun weetpergic a col Agmenistickuu a cin aroop bişik yen.	کی کردی امر ایر انگار رمید الاسال میز در اور پر شا معلم (معلم الار رم معلاً)	Serverse States Servers
ta Pi sy desird by broad Parylolis Subdity exclude tamp-dyster resolution to high set	Ralian Balano 😙 Indian Ia popia lingua. Un interprete surà chiamato. El serviçio è gastallo.	Botano Bokano (20) Butayoti saye. Ag awag dati mananga mangjali patran ngahamakang katakan na awar tibuari na	Guide	Guiarati yvinit vija oud avad tale at, patiesi daod zak, patiesi daone ost ot nod nod oli vij	French Français 163 Indeput et langue et nous appellemes un interprite Le service est guilat.	Armonian Budeti 163 Vela, Ph ve desiri fa berend Propelekik Unidas Propeleky menopilpiliteg opulasyojal ti ulejkop	Nimong Himoob Tavi kaj hom lus. Navi huravili tug nevgolnus. Tuavi magi segolnas largam uas kaj tas tau tiemo
enque Euskara 1613 an hizkurtza aukorata Januian interprete el dettuko diego. Zerbitzo hau deskorda	Lithuardan Liehulig 183 Nurodytite saro kalba, bus pakolestas vertejas. Vertejas jures bus subeletas remotamas.	Indonesian Dahasa Indonesia 1933 Tarjukan bahasa Anda, Pesejeruh akar dhubungi Penejanah dhediakan grats tanpa-dikenakat binya	As a Languagethe Solution' dent you have access to aver- the phone integrating 24 hours a day, 7 days a week Offer the weath in feasibilities shuttees to observe which	Hind: 50 %3 will vice it (file all, that waar wat file potter arms were wat file potter if type wave it with b	Hausa Hausa Sa akra taferta. An sanar maka da tafertan ne ba tare da salan teya kudi ba.	Azerbaijani Azerbaycan dil 191 Davaldere dil bidrin. Sun için tercimeç devet olunaza, Tarcime identi üçin idariş trisb alarınar.	Indonesian Bahasa Indonesia Tanjaikan bahasa Anda Penerjemah akan dhai Penerjemah diseduatan gratis tanga dikenakan
osnian Bosanski %3 kažte svojicek Pozvat izmo tumača, Usluge muću su besplater za vist.	Масаdonian Мендоном 923 Пакантична јазмот на нај Коруната. Ке нанкане прогодион Холузите на прогодушнат се бестиатна.	Malay Bahasa Melayu nga Tunjukkar-bahasa anda, Juruhahasa akan dihubangi, Jarubahasa ikan disebikar tanga andu dilemikan tagaran.	the galaxy in two-to-out structure to operative when incpuige a person species the next hequestly expanding incpuiges in North America as graphed to the pergraphical	Malayalam Autoop (63) etangat su asalasad upaya, oq upapatsion etanan oquaaya, gir oquajatsionad etanan etanan oquaaya gir oquajatsionad	talian Italiano 163 Indicare la propia lingua. Un interprete sala chianato, Eservicia e guatato.	63 قری زبن مرد نظر را ششی کنید یک ترجمان فراهراندهتر ام شر این برای شما کنام هریده در پی نمراط داشت.	Japanese U.A. Administrateductors, MRCMR9-EXAMPLES,
Адатіал Былгарски трід сечете акция канк, Ще биде нависи-преводач. еходичи є оснтурея безплитио за зас.	Norsegian Norsk rgig Pekpi spället dit fis tulk vil bi sikak Tallem tillys kestnadelnit for dep	Marshafiese Kajin Majól (gia Kelet lajin eclani, ini senaj kir judin av /6 Chok Bi-Ghok eclanaj jibat eok Boegelek woneen.	region where they are commonly spoken. It . Locale the geographical region where you believe the	Nepal book of the	Nater Milgikcii kuşikcii 163 Ku timilin luşikciildi. Taylabile İşlai koşifeti donralı. Taylabile kirilgaça yitrişic walabiladı.	Fani (بیل مرد) نظر عرد را منصی کین بیک طرحه برای تما زیغ/ند: خواهد ایر مز مورسورت ریآل در انتیاز تما قرار می گود.	Karan "di Silaay (kaladaa (kala) alaja (kaladaa (kala)
voetien Hirvetski 163 kažile secijicali, Pevoditelj or bit pozvan reditelja dete dobit besplatno.	Polish Polisi nga Prose wikatel nufiletyk i wotwieny furnacza. Uktępita reprivrijana jest bezplatnia.	Servicen F al asattoa nga fa brincha gapera. Dina miki as er fa avatala igea Ua santo er fa arratela igea e auroanna er taun fa fetogina.	speaker may be thon, (Pocfic Mands, Europe, etc.) If Show the periori the languages listed for that region, Underseaft each language is the transistor of the	Putjobi Putjobi wat wir di fann sie fan graat fa parter geber wits wir di fann sie fan graat fa parter geber wits wir di fann die fan graat fan geber geber	Oromo Oromo 153 Sona alban keeft oost, Turjamuurni ni assariuma, Turjamuurni bassoo talka make alf opphosea.	אני עברית היא אין איין איין איין איין איין איין א	Khener (Cambodian) by rep expenses of data developments
ech Celtina 1913 die na vit juzyk. Bude zaroläntiamotok. motorije pra nia bezplatni.	Parkaguese Portagués (83 Indigae sax idiona. Un interprete ses chanado. A Interpretação d'Enrecido sem guégar costr para soci.	Tegalog Tagalog "53 Buro po ang injung wita, hang tagasalin ang grapisikakosh nang liter salingo.	statement below.	Sinhalese Direction and the or or a Sinhalese Direction and Direction of the or the or the original set. Set of the original set.	Portuguese Portugués 163 Indigue o sezidiona. Un interprete sezi d'anado A presentato el funcación anni sudo an sudo	کونک انداز به زمانهای بر گرزیک بنگ سار ایر در تعاطر در دوگر هوچار به تک تر دو گردی.	Korean 61 45441 46461 010 12514 82 24 44 4120 1251 424 12010
nieh Danok 100 pplidt unog in tokvi blve tikeidt. Token vom oder onientringer for da.	Romanian Floridati 193 Indicad limba pe care o varbidi. Vi se varface legitaria ci: un interpret care valente asigurat oputit.	Tongan Lee Faka-Tonga 103 Tuhu'i naiho olee tatutonas. Y u hartatatonaka. Oli ta'etotongika 'ae tatutonales.	Pool to your language. An introgeners will be called The interpreter is provided at no cost to you.	See Notices to one some since an See Conference in series (See And Conference in series (See	Portuguese Croole Criculo Portugues "#3 No porto pelego pi no toppit No to ampi un interpele topit No increase interpetentina alcunati andere d	ا با معتمر در در بار می موان معرف مرد به معرف بر در معرف برد. ۲۰۵۱ (۲۰۵ میلی (می اند شار موارد بر (دارد مالی مدر این آمی مالی (می در در در زیار دانی معلوم بردی این این این	Leotien andre and
Alch Noderfands 103 1 une taal aan. fr zel centact wurden opgenoemen et een tolk. De service van de talk is geheeligeads.	Пакалан Руссина тера Талан кал, какторана такран Такалар терандина Таун трекрека раз заявка больша.		No offer interpreting from English into more than 300 languages. If you are unable to identify the language, our cell reconvertence will help you.	Regification space place free free places/sec	Somali Af-Soomal 153 Aataku feduqudaada . Waxa leguaga yeer doonaa bahdaan harbaarata waxa leguaga yeer doonaa	Turkish Türkçe '63 Konstalı ever di satesis Sine en be covere	Malay Bahasa Melo Turpalkan bahasa anda, turabahasa akan ditu Turbahasa dan dentaka turasa anta Danakan
tonian Eosti kool 193 doge ema kodel. Vastava tõigiga võetakoe melled. Tilleteemas an tere jasta tarada.	Serbian Cprove via Docerne coj jezes, Eperogena, he fara noras, Eperogena, je je jac cóstóshe fectarino,	North America, South America, and Caribbean	W To access an interpreter	in prior objects in presidents incodes. Introduction of the prior presidents that present. Under prior (63)	Swahili Kosushi wa wa sa	anarocalda: Bu gevinnen sier Gretsie suglane.	Mien Ma National Advances From Million and Advances
wish Suomi 193 olamasi kielä. Katamme talkie pohalo. Ko kärlic os usale dinasta.	Silovak Silovančina 1818 Ukažena sej jazyk. Zavišine finodnika. Timučnek ir over ok involutioni	French François 193 Indigez veze langae et sous appelerore un Introcelle Le version est-coluit.		ایش زبان پر انداز بن ایک از معن از بالمنفی گا: از بعدان کا انتظار آب پر بخو شمی خرج کی ایا حالے گا:	Tigringa entre berge state Ma	Act	Satiss formation involvement in the Mongolian Hower Tasket rotation and Concernant protections
onch Français 163 fiquer votre langue et noas appelierors un explite Le service et potat.	Spanish Español 163 Selair su dona y lanarenos a un interprete. El service es potuto.	Haittan Creole Kiroyól 163 Lorgi-deit os socilarg sugaie a epi n ap mierpon emportano os Nex ba os sies enterent la prete.		Africa	Weickel Alterial White State	Cantoneon B.S. / A.J. TER	Oppystamelier tychaine tang yearsh Sala Se Thai bi tha Self-tanan utagate land tang
man Deutsch 153 pri Sie auf Brei Sprache. Ein Deimetricher wied eindest Der Technischer um Bis Sie Anstehlis	Swedish Drawka 152 Prkapitelit spilk in telekonerer at tiladar. Telemaniari uter kontraditi de	Newajo Devis kietyi 1923 Rawi seliyi seti ordek. Azi tetwi ki tap selitarat Azi Mati da waku selesabi sitise a Tabi se eritemak.	0.07.0.10.00.00.0	Acholi Acoli 153 Siene ficit ma yan. Ja loko Biro kuongi Jaloko ne ochiare ma onan chudo.	mourdanboul lou Nelmboul bide of by dara. Yaraba Yaraba Yaraba '93 Tila si Ada sa Adam Jabibil kan	Chatchew Altin Altio 123	Vietramese Tieng V
nok ESArpouti 🐨	Ukranian Українська 183 Вколіть важу мону, бик заковнуть перекладика Післить перекладика надагиться беклодика.	Portuguese Portuguis 100 Indour sexidiona. Unintegrete seti chanado A referentaria e formetida em audioar runte sas excit.	Place List wher LanguageUne con for information on all our language econs solutions II. Describe Phone Video Jacobs and Cercia Internation	Annuario Encl. 10 1917775 Finalue, Abecting Encl.As Morching Classification	Criene a o pe ogballo y il fan o.	Mandaria itia 164 163	Na delatorgin spitcio pri si Mit horg datori golde, qui cre king planta tende thorg dato
nganian Minggina (dia mpigna ngan) nganian Minggina (dia ngan ki aryohet, Tolmácsot fogunk hlimi, gindri ar Os sobriga dibular.	Yicklish The second statement of the second statement	Bipaniah Setale su kitawa yilanasenos a uniatólynte. El américa su panato.	Billingsof and integration Staff Testing and Testing Transition and Localization	Arabie بالا من المحمد المربع		Shanghai 3.44 3.94 163 Talwanese 9.81 9.64 163	Language

2. Language ID Poster and Desktop Display: Poster and self-standing display containing the statement "Point to your language. An interpreter will be called. The interpreter is provided at no cost to you." in 24 languages. This is also known as the "I Speak Card."



Nondiscrimination Notices and Language Assistance Taglines

It is important that providers know how to identify, offer, and access language services when working with LEP members.

GCHP encourages providers and staff to inform LEP members of the availability of language services free of charge by posting the Language Available poster in clinics, urgent care centers, waiting rooms and places where members can easily point to, and providing the language identification guide to LEP members. If you are unable to identify the member's preferred language, have the member point to their preferred language.

The posting of the nondiscrimination notice must be visible to members in at least 12-point font and must be accompanied by the full set of language taglines in 18 non-English languages as required by the state Department of Health Care Services (DHCS), <u>All Plan Letter (APL) 21-004 (Revised) Standards</u> for Determining Threshold Languages, Nondiscrimination requirements, and Language Assistance Services.

To request these materials or for questions, visit the <u>GCHP website</u> or contact GCHP's Language Assistance Services at 1-805-437-5961, Monday through Friday, 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. (except holidays). You can also email **CulturalLinguistics@goldchp.org**.

Bilingual Fluency Assessments

GCHP's subcontractors, downstream subcontractors, and network providers shall ensure that their staff working in the area that requires bilingual fluency are competent in Spanish. Staff working in positions requiring bilingual fluency skills should be assessed in a standard process and providers shall maintain records of bilingual assessments. Policies shall include the frequency of staff being assessed or reassessed for bilingual fluency.

Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Training

GCHP's subcontractors, downstream subcontractors, network providers and staff are required to complete an annual cultural competency and/or Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion (DEI) training.

The DEI training is mandated by DHCS, <u>All Plan Letter 24-016, Diversity, Equity, and Including</u> <u>Training Requirements</u>, and the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS), to ensure GCHP's subcontractors, downstream subcontractors, network providers and staff are meeting the unique and diverse needs of all members. All GCHP's subcontractors, downstream subcontractors, network providers and staff shall complete a DEI training.

Upon completion of the training, please submit the <u>Cultural Competency Training Acknowledgment</u> Form to GCHP's Cultural and Linguistic Services..

The Think Cultural Health website features information, continuing education opportunities, additional resources for health care professionals to learn about culturally and linguistically appropriate services (CLAS). Culturally and linguistically appropriate services (CLAS) are increasingly recognized as an important strategy for improving quality of care to diverse populations. For more information, **click here**.

GCHP's subcontractors, downstream subcontractors, network providers and staff shall ensure that cultural competency, sensitivity, health equity, and diversity trainings are provided for employees and staff at key points of contact with members in accordance with Exhibit A, Attachment III, Subsection 5.2.11.C (Cultural and Linguistic Programs and Committees).

GCHP's Cultural and Linguistics Department shall collaborate with Provider Network Operations to ensure that the network providers mandatory training includes information on diversity, equity and inclusion training (sensitivity, diversity, communication skills, and cultural competency training) as specified in the 2024 DHCS contract, Exhibit A, Attachment III, Subsection 5.2.11.C (Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Training). This process must also include an educational program for network providers regarding health needs to include but not be limited to, the Seniors and Persons with Disabilities (SPD) population, members with chronic conditions, members with specialty mental health service needs, members with substance use disorder needs, members with intellectual and developmental disabilities, and children with special health care needs. Trainings must include social drivers of health and disparity impacts on members' health care. GCHP shall maintain attendance records and shall be reviewed and maintained by GCHP's health equity officer or designee.

GCHP created four online training modules to help you work with vulnerable populations and increase your awareness of the diverse health care needs of our membership. To access the GCHP Cultural Competency Training, visit the **GCHP website**, under Provider Resources > Cultural Competency Training.

Upon completion of the training, return a completed <u>Cultural Competency Training Acknowledgement</u> <u>Form</u> to GCHP, Cultural and Linguistic Services. If a training was provider by another organization or entity, providers shall attest to having received and confirmed that a training was completed. Training must be completed as required by DHCS. GCHP shall track and maintain records of completed training by GCHP's subcontractors, downstream subcontractors, network providers and staff.

In addition to training modules available on the GCHP website, the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) offers free credits on presentations, webinars, and other online training programs for health care providers. The website, Think Cultural Health, features information on the National Standards for Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS) in health and health care and other resources for health care professionals to learn about culturally and linguistically appropriate services. For more information, **click here**.

For additional questions or resources, please email <u>CulturalLinguistics@goldchp.org</u> or call 1-805-437-5961 Monday through Friday, 8 a.m. and 5 p.m. (except holidays). For provider training opportunities, visit the **GCHP website**.

Section 17: Health Education

Overview of Services

The goal of Gold Coast Health Plan's (GCHP) Health Education Department is to ensure that all members have access to health education services, health promotion programs, and classes. GCHP will work collaboratively with local health agencies, clinics, hospitals, community-based organizations, and PCPs to provide quality health education classes and materials at no charge to GCHP members.

Members may be referred by GCHP, PCPs, or they may self-refer for health education services, programs and classes. Contact the Health Education Department for a **referral form**.

No prior authorization is necessary for members to attend and participate in health education services, health promotion activities, or classes. For program details, providers may call Member Services at 1-888-301-1228 / TTY: 711. To reach GCHP's Health Education Department, call 1-805-437-5961, Monday through Friday, 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. (except holidays) or email **HealthEducation@goldchp.org**.

Health Education Contract Requirements for GCHP Providers

Providers are required to make health education programs and services available to members at no cost. All health education activities must be documented in the member's medical record. For a listing of approved health education materials, contact GHCP's Health Education Department at 1-805-437-5961, Monday through Friday, 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. (except holidays) or email **HealthEducation@goldchp.org**.

Bright Futures Preventative Care Screening Guidelines

Bright Futures is a national health promotion and prevention initiative led by the American Academy of Pediatrics. The Bright Futures Guidelines provide theory-based and evidence-driven guidance for all preventative care screenings and health supervision visits. Providers may visit the **American Academy of Pediatrics website** or the GCHP **website** for more information and resources.

Staying Healthy Assessment (SHA)

Per DHCS, the Staying Healthy Assessment (SHA) shall no longer be a required component of the Initial Health Assessment (IHA), however, the SHA questionnaires may be used to aid in IHA and MRR compliance and can be found on the **DHCS website**.

Health Promotion, Disease-Prevention Programs and Health Education Classes

As a benefit of partnering with GCHP, the Plan offers providers helpful information about health promotion, disease prevention programs, and health education classes. Health education materials and information about local health education activities are available on GCHP's <u>website</u>. Additionally, GCHP's website has a <u>calendar</u> that allows providers to view a list of upcoming events and health education classes for members. Providers can also view flyers for the corresponding classes for detailed information, such as a description of the event, date and time.

Below is a sample of health education services available for members. To obtain a complete listing, visit GCHP's <u>website</u>, call GCHP's Health Education Department at 1-805-437-5961, Monday through Friday, 8 a.m. and 5 p.m. except holidays), or email **HealthEducation@goldchp.org**.

• Asthma Education – GCHP works with providers and local agencies to host asthma education classes. Classes are held at various locations. If you are interested in partnering with GCHP to hold an asthma education class, please contact the Health Education Department.

- Breastfeeding Support GCHP works with the Ventura County Women, Infants, and Children (WIC)
 program to promote the benefits of breastfeeding and provide information on the support groups
 available to women.
- Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) The Health Education Department also uses the CDC's website to provide GCHP members with the most current immunization schedules and other useful health information. Materials available on the CDC's website are available in English and Spanish.
- Chronic Disease Self-Management Classes GCHP offers partners with agencies who offer the Chronic Disease Self-Management Program (CDSMP) classes in English and Spanish. The goal of the classes is to build self-confidence and improve skills needed to manage chronic conditions.
- Diabetes Education GCHP works with providers and local agencies to identify diabetes selfmanagement classes and support groups. If you would like to hold classes in your clinic or office, please contact the Health Education Department or call Provider Services at 1-888-301-1228. New classes are continually being held in cities through different public and private providers.
- Diabetes Prevention Program The Diabetes Prevention Program (DPP) is available to members with pre-diabetes or at high risk for type 2 diabetes. The DPP assist members with lifestyle changes related to healthy eating and physical activity. The DPP provides group support, weekly lessons, personal health coach and tools. The DPP is available in English and Spanish at no cost to members.
- My Plate GCHP's encourages members to access the U.S. Department of Agriculture's (USDA) <u>Choose My Plate website</u>. Materials from the site are provided for members to use as a guide. Materials are available in English and Spanish. Providers can also download materials in other languages.
- Prenatal / Postpartum Care GCHP's website maintains a health library with information about prenatal and postpartum care. Members can sign up <u>here</u> to receive an e-newsletter on pregnancy. Providers can <u>request</u> for members to receive a pregnancy or postpartum packet, which include resources for parents, or providers can request packets to be delivered and provide them to members during their visits by emailing HealthEducation@goldchp.org.
- Rethink Your Drink The state Department of Public Health's website maintains a list of materials and resources for the Rethink Your Drink campaign. Materials may be downloaded directly from the website. Contact GCHP's Health Education Department for more information about materials.
- Tobacco Cessation GCHP works with various agencies to help member quit smoking, vaping, or using smokeless tobacco and promote tobacco cessation classes throughout the county. For information on free tobacco cessation classes, support groups and nicotine replacement products, contact the Health Education Department or the Kick It California at 1-800-300-8086 or visit https://kickitca.org. For information in Spanish, call 1-800-600-8191. The Ventura County Health Care Agency (VCHCA) offers free "Call It Quits" classes. The program consists of eight, 1.5-hour sessions. Registration is required. For program information, call 1-805-201-STOP (7867) or email CallItQuits@ventura.org.
- Urgent Care Brochure A brochure on urgent care service hours and locations is available for members. Contact GCHP's Health Education Department for copies.
- Weight Management and Physical Activity GCHP collaborates with local public health agencies, community clinics, hospitals, and doctors to ensure that Plan providers have information about local support groups and exercise and nutrition classes.
- Well-Child Visit and Immunization Flyers GCHP has flyers to promote well-child visits and immunizations available on the GCHP website.

Health Library - Healthwise by WebMD Ignite

GCHP has partnered with Healthwise, a leader in evidence-based health education and self-management health promotion. This digital health education tool helps empower members through its user-friendly materials, resulting in improved health outcomes and increased satisfaction. Providers and members can

visit the **<u>GCHP</u> website** to review the online library of interactive culturally and linguistically appropriate health education resources, available in English and Spanish at no cost. Materials may be downloaded directly from the website. Healthwise also offers tailored health education videos on chronic health conditions to assist members in managing their health conditions.

GCHP Event Calendar

Members and providers can view the <u>GCHP Event Calendar</u> for upcoming events, including health education classes, workshops, health fairs and more. Topics include:

- Asthma
- Behavioral health and substance use
- Colon cancer
- Diabetes
- Heart health
- Men's health
- Prenatal and postpartum care
- Tobacco cessation
- Well-care visits
- Women's health

Providers can request health education classes, workshops, or presentations to be hosted at their clinic sites by requesting service through the <u>GCHP Speakers Bureau</u>. This free service is offered to community organizations, providers, government agencies, and more. Speakers are available for community events, staff in-services, and as requested. For more information, email <u>CommunityRelations@goldchp.org</u>. To request a speaker, complete and submit the request form at least four weeks in advance.

Health Navigator Program

GCHP offers a Health Navigator Program to help link members with services in the community. The health navigators work with members who frequent the emergency rooms for non-emergency conditions to help them connect with their PCP. In addition, the program also helps link members who have chronic health conditions with GCHP's care management program.

To learn more about the Health Navigator Program, call GCHP's Health Education Department at 1-805-437-5961, Monday through Friday, 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. (except holidays) or email **HealthEducation@goldchp.org**.

Women's Health

GCHP's Health Library has information available to help support women's efforts to stay healthy. Information and education about routine breast and cervical cancer screening exams can be found there, as well as information on prenatal and postpartum care and obstetrics (OB) tours. This information can also be found on the GCHP <u>website</u>. GCHP's <u>health library</u> offers videos for member highlighting the importance of these important screenings.

Health Promotion Materials

GCHP continues to collaborate with local clinics and other agencies to promote support groups and classes for members. Below is a list of additional health promotion and disease prevention topics that GCHP providers may access:

AIDS / HIV screening

- Breast and cervical health
- Breastfeeding
- Disease management
 - » Asthma
 - » Diabetes and prediabetes
- Health library
- High blood pressure
- Immunizations and COVID-19 resources
- Pregnancy and postpartum
- Sexually transmitted infections (STI) and family planning
- Tobacco cessation and vaping
- Well-care exams

The Health Education Department is continually developing new classes on various topics. If there is a class that you would like to see taught, please email **HealthEducation@goldchp.org**.

Materials on Other Topics or In Different Languages

GCHP acknowledges the role that language barriers can play in reducing the quality of care to monolingual and limited English proficiency (LEP) members. The Health Education Department works with GCHP providers to ensure that health promotion materials are available for distribution in English, Spanish, and other languages upon request. Contact GCHP's Health Education Department at **HealthEducation@goldchp.org** for more information.

Health Education Trainings for Providers

The Health Education Department provides ongoing trainings to contracted providers. Contact the Health Education Department if you have questions on specific trainings. Many of the trainings are approximately an hour long and can be scheduled at the provider's convenience. Trainings offered by GCHP include:

- Health Education and Nutrition
 - » MyPlate
 - » Rethink Your Drink
- Health Education program overview
- Tobacco cessation training The 5 A's

Provider Order Forms / Health Education Materials

GCHP's Health Education Department created a list of approved health education resources for providers. To obtain the list of approved health education materials, call 1-805-437- 5961, Monday through Friday, 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. (except holidays) or email **HealthEducation@goldchp.org**.

The health education materials and resources that are available in English and Spanish include, but are not limited to:

- GCHP Tobacco Education and Quit Smoking Resource Guide
- Kick It California Helpline brochures
- GCHP Health Education Referral Form
- GCHP Asthma Action Plan
- GCHP Chronic Disease Self-Management Program Flyer
- GCHP My Blood Pressure Check Up Flyer
- GCHP My Diabetes Exam Record Flyer
- GCHP Community Resource Guide

- GCHP Senior Resources Guide
- GCHP Urgent Care brochure
- GCHP Dialysis Transportation brochure
- DHCS Newborn Referral Form MC 330
- First 5 Kit for New Parents
- California Poison Control Magnet
- Ventura County Women, Infants and Children (WIC)
- Ventura County Public Health Lead Brochure
- Choose My Plate (10 Tips to Build a Healthy Meal) (link provided on form for direct ordering)
- Asthma materials for adults and children
- Dairy Council of California: Health Eating Made Easier

Section 18: Pharmacy

All pharmacy benefits are administered through a statewide program called Medi-Cal Rx. Medi-Cal Rx is responsible for processing and paying pharmacy claims billed by pharmacies. Information regarding Medi-Cal Rx can be found on the dedicated Medi-Cal Rx **website**.

Medi-Cal Rx does not include pharmacy services billed as a medical (professional) or institutional claim. Pharmacy services, including Physician Administered Drugs (PADs), billed on a medical claim is the responsibility of Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP). For a list of Physician Administered Drugs that require prior authorization, please use GCHP's List of Services Requiring Prior Authorization (refer to the list of Physician Administered Drugs section) for the most updated list. The PAD list and clinical guidelines for approval are available on the GCHP webpage under For Providers > Pharmacy Services > Medical Drug Benefit.

Information regarding the Medi-Cal Rx formulary (or Contract Drugs List), prior authorization process, and provider portal can be accessed directly from the **DHCS Medi-Cal Rx website**.

Medi-Cal Rx Customer Service Center can be reached directly at 1-800-977-2273, 24/7, to assist with any questions or issues regarding pharmacy claims or prior authorizations.

For more information regarding pharmacy services, please check the GCHP <u>website</u>. For additional questions, the GCHP Pharmacy Team can be reached at 1-805-437-5738 or by email at **Pharmacy@goldchp.org**.

Section 19: Outpatient Clinical Laboratory and Outpatient Imaging Services

Clinical Laboratory Services — Lab Specimens and Drawing Stations

Quest Diagnostic Laboratories is the preferred laboratory provider. For more information, please visit GCHP's <u>website</u>. Providers can select a clinical laboratory of their choice as long as it is contracted with GCHP or offered directly by a participating provider (such as a clinic or hospital). There are numerous locations throughout the county where members may go to have their blood drawn and lab tests performed. In addition, direct pick-up of lab specimens from the providers' offices may also be arranged. Outpatient Clinical Lab Providers are listed in the Laboratory section of the directory. The preferred list of labs, locations and phone numbers is posted on GCHP's <u>website</u>.

Outpatient Imaging Centers

There is a wide range of contracted imaging centers located conveniently throughout the county. Providers can select the outpatient imaging center of their choice as long as it is contracted with GCHP. In addition, several clinic providers have their own in-house imaging center that is contracted to provide services for GCHP. A list of GCHP's contracted imaging centers, their locations and phone numbers are posted **here** on the Provider Directory.

Lab Tests Performed in the Provider's Office

GCHP will also reimburse contracted providers for certain Clinical Laboratory Improvement Amendments (CLIA) waived lab tests that are performed in a provider's office if the provider meets the requirements of 42 USC Section 263a (CLIA) and provides GCHP with a current CLIA Certificate of Waiver. These GCHP-approved waived tests include certain testing methods for glucose and cholesterol; pregnancy tests; fecal occult blood tests; rapid group A strep test; hemoglobin; and some urine tests.

A list of approved CLIA waived lab tests is provided below and is also available on GCHP's website. PCPs have some basic laboratory tests included as part of their monthly capitation payment.

List of Laboratory Codes and Descriptions

CODE	DESCRIPTION
	Streptococcus, Group A
87650	Streptococcus, Group A, direct probe technique
87651	Streptococcus, Group A, amplified probe technique
87652	Streptococcus, Group A, quantification
87430	Streptococcus, Group A
	Fecal Occult Blood
82270	Blood, occult, by peroxidase activity (e.g., guaiac), qualitative; feces, consecutive collected specimens with single determination, for colorectal neoplasm screening (i.e., patient was provided three cards or a triple card for consecutive collection)
82271	Blood, occult, by peroxidase activity (e.g., guaiac), qualitative; feces, consecutive collected specimens with single determination, for colorectal neoplasm screening (i.e., patient was provided three cards or a triple card for consecutive collection), other sources
82272	Blood occult, by peroxidase activity (e.g., guaiac), qualitative; feces, 1-3 simultaneous determinations, performed for other than colorectal neoplasm screening
82274	Blood, occult, by fecal hemoglobin determination by immunoassay, qualitative feces, 1-3 simultaneous determinations
	Glucose Performed on Waived Meter
82962	Glucose, blood by glucose monitoring device(s) cleared by FDA specifically for home use
82947	Glucose; quantitative, blood (except reagent strip)
82948	Glucose; quantitative, blood, reagent strip
82950	Glucose; quantitative, blood (except reagent strip), post glucose dose (includes glucose)
	Hemoglobin (Hgb)
83036	Glycosylated (A1C) hemoglobin analysis by electrophoresis or chromatography
83037	Glycosylated (A1c) hemoglobin analysis by device cleared by FDA
85018	Hemoglobin (Hgb)
	Infectious Mononucleosis Antibodies
86663	Epstein-Barr (EB) virus, early antigen (EA)
86664	Epstein-Barr (EB) virus, nuclear antigen (EBNA)
86665	Epstein-Barr (EB) virus, viral capsid (VCA)
86308	Heterophile antibodies; screening
	Spun Microhematocrit
85013	Spun Microhematrocrit
	Urine Dipstick or Tablet Analytes, non-automated
81000	Urinalysis, by dip stick or tablet reagent for bilirubin, glucose, hemoglobin, ketones, leukocytes, nitrite, pH, protein, specific gravity, urobilinogen, any number of these constituents; non-automated, with microscopy
81002	Urinalysis, by dip stick or tablet reagent for bilirubin, glucose, hemoglobin, ketones, leukocytes, nitrite, pH, protein, specific gravity, urobilinogen, any number of these constituents; non-automated, without microscopy
	Urine Pregnancy
81025	Urine pregnancy test, by visual color comparison methods

CODE	DESCRIPTION
	Influenza Testing (A and B)
87276	Influenza A virus Influenza
87275	B Virus
87400	Influenza, A or B, each
86580	Skin test; Tuberculosis, Intradermal
	Lead Screening
83655	Blood lead screening
	Sexually Transmitted Infections
87491	Chlamydia Screening
87591	Gonorrhea

Section 20: Resolution of Disputes and Grievances

Provider Dispute Resolution (PDR) Process

Gold Coast Health Plan's (GCHP) Provider Dispute Resolution (PDR) mechanism offers providers dissatisfied with the processing or payment of a claim a method for resolving claim related issues. The provider dispute must be filed in writing by completing GCHP's Provider Claim Reconsideration Form within 365 calendar days of the action or inaction date. Do not submit a dispute if the claim is in a pend status. The provider may also include additional information that affect the outcome of the dispute. Providers must exhaust GCHP's internal dispute resolution process before pursuing other available options.

Below are examples of concerns that can be addressed through the GCHP's Provider Dispute Resolution process:

- A claim was underpaid.
- A claim was overpaid due to a payment or billing error.
- A procedure was denied as inclusive to another procedure in error.
- A corrected claim where a previous payment was made.
- A claim payment based on the utilization management decision.

Provider Dispute Resolution (PDR) are submitted by completing the Provider Claim Reconsideration Form.

- By mail: Gold Coast Health Plan ATTN: Provider Disputes P.O. Box 9176 Oxnard, CA 93031
- By fax to: GCHP's Grievance and Appeal Department 1-805-512-8599
- By email to: Grievances@goldchp.org

Please ensure when completing the Provider Claim Reconsideration Form that the resolution request type option is selected, and all fields are completed based on the request type:

- DISPUTE Request: Reconsideration of an original claim that has been previously denied or underpaid.
- APPEAL Request: Reconsideration of an authorization denial or a notice of action.
- GRIEVANCE Request: Reconsideration of a previously disputed claim in which the provider is not satisfied with the resolution.

It is imperative that all the following information is included on the dispute request:

- Provider and/or group name.
- Provider, NPI and Tax ID number.
- Provider contact information, including email address.
- A clear explanation of the issue in question.
- If the dispute involves a claim or request for reimbursement of overpayment, provide the original claim number and date of service.

- A clear explanation of why it is believed the payment or other action is incorrect.
- The member's full name, date of birth and complete nine-character GCHP ID number.

Claim disputes submitted with incomplete information will be returned to the provider along with a clear identification of the missing information that is necessary for the review and resolution of the dispute. Please note that if the dispute does not include an attached Provider Claim Reconsideration Form, the dispute request will be returned to the provider requesting the completed form. Providers have 30 working days after the receipt of a returned provider dispute to resubmit the amended dispute with the additional information. If the information is not submitted, or not submitted timely, the dispute is closed without further action.

If a provider has multiple disputes addressing the same issue, they may file a single dispute by including a list of each claim associated with the issue, along with all other information required for filing multiple disputes.

GCHP will acknowledge the dispute within 15 working days of receipt. GCHP will send a written resolution to the dispute within 45 working days from the date the dispute was received. For assistance in filing a dispute, please call GCHP's Provider Services at 1-888-301-1228.

Provider Grievance

Provider Grievance is the final step in the administrative process and a method for GCHP providers to resolve claim issues related to their provider dispute outcome. The request should be submitted only after a Provider Dispute Resolution Process has been submitted and the resolution of the dispute does not meet the provider's satisfaction. Grievances related to claim dispute decisions must be submitted within 180 calendar days from the date of the provider dispute resolution letter. The request for review must be submitted by completing the Provider Claim Reconsideration Form to initiate the process. Failure to submit the request within the timeframe specified will result in the request being denied for past timely to submit. GCHP reviews each case individually using the documents presented by the provider to render a fair decision depending on the nature of the grievance. All grievances must be acknowledged within five calendar days of receipt and resolved within 30 calendar days of receipt.

All grievances received will be promptly acknowledged, reviewed, and researched by GCHP's Grievance and Appeals team. Research may require the participation of staff from other relevant GCHP departments. Grievances related to medical-necessity decision disputes will be reviewed as an Appeal, only if they are submitted timely within 60 calendar days from the date of the Notice of Action (NOA) letter.

A provider grievance can be filed by completing the **Provider Reconsideration Request Form** and submitting the form as follows:

- By mail: Gold Coast Health Plan Attn: Provider Grievance and Appeals P.O. Box 9176 Oxnard, CA 93031
- By fax: GCHP's Grievance and Appeal Department 1-805-512-8599
- By email: Grievances@goldchp.org

Provider Responsibilities

When a member brings a complaint to your attention, you must investigate and try to resolve the complaint in a fair and equitable manner. In addition, providers must cooperate with GCHP in identifying, processing and resolving all member complaints. Cooperation includes, but is not limited to, completing a provider response form, providing pertinent information related to the complaint, and/or speaking with GCHP Grievance and Appeals representatives to assist with resolving the complaint in a reasonable manner. When responding, it is imperative that your response is on the provider's letterhead and not submitted on a blank word document or in the body of an email. Responses received in the body of an email will not be accepted. If you are assisting the member with their complaint, the forms are available in English and Spanish.

Member Grievances

The member, an authorized representative, or a provider acting on behalf of the member may file a grievance at any time. The grievance can be submitted in writing, in person, or orally by contacting Member Services:

- Via phone, by calling GCHP Member Services at 1-888-301-1228 (TTY: 711).
- In writing, by completing a member grievance form and/or written correspondence mailed to: Gold Coast Health Plan Attn: Member Grievance and Appeals P.O. Box 9176 Oxnard, CA 93031
- In person, by meeting with a Member Services representative at GCHP's offices Monday through Friday from 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. Gold Coast Health Plan 711 E. Daily Drive, Suite #106 Camarillo, CA 93010

GCHP will send a written acknowledgement letter to the member within five calendar days of the receipt date of the grievance. The acknowledgement letter states that the grievance has been received, the date of receipt, and includes the provider's name, telephone number and address of the Grievance and Appeals representative that may be contacted regarding the grievance.

GCHP will research and resolve standard grievances within 30 calendar days from the grievance receipt date. The written resolution will contain a clear explanation of GCHP's decision.

A member can request an expedited grievance for cases that may involve an imminent and serious threat to their health, including, but not limited to, severe pain or potential loss of life, limb or major bodily function that does not involve the appeal of an Adverse Benefit Determination yet are urgent or expedited in nature. GCHP will resolve these cases that meet the expedited criteria within 72 hours of receipt of the request.

Member Discrimination Grievances

GCHP is required by the state Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) to investigate grievances alleging any action that would be prohibited by, or out of compliance with, federal or state nondiscrimination laws. GCHP has implemented procedures to provide for the prompt equitable resolution of discrimination-related grievances. The discrimination grievances might include – without limitation – sex, race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, ethnic group identification, age, mental disability,

physical disability, medical condition, genetic information, marital status, gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, creed, health status, or identification with any other persons or groups defined in Penal Code section 422.56. This requirement includes language access complaints and complaints alleging failure to make reasonable accommodations under the Americans Disability Act (ADA).

GCHP is required to report all discrimination cases to the DHCS Office of Civil Rights within 10 calendar days of mailing the discrimination grievance resolution letter to the member. GCHP is required to submit detailed information regarding the discrimination grievance, including the provider's or other accused party's response to the grievance and/or any corrective action taken.

Member Rights in the GCHP Grievance Process

- The member may authorize a friend or family member to act on their behalf in the grievance process.
- If the member does not speak English fluently, they have the right to interpreter services by phone via Member Services at 1-888-301-1228 (TTY: 711).
- The member has the right to obtain representation by an advocate or legal counsel to assist them in resolving the grievance.

The state Office of the Ombudsman will help Medi-Cal members who are having problems with GCHP. The member may call 1-888-452-8609 (TTY: 1-800-735-2922) and request assistance.

Member Appeals

The member can request an appeal within 60 calendar days from the date on the Notice of Action (NOA). The member, an authorized representative or a provider acting on behalf of a member and with the member's written consent, may file a Member Appeal in writing or orally, by contacting the Member Service Department. GCHP's member service representatives are trained to initiate and assist with documenting the appeal request for the member. Unless the member is requesting an expedited appeal, an oral request for an appeal must be followed by a written and signed appeal that can be either faxed or mailed directly to GCHP's Grievance and Appeals Department. The member can contact Member Services to get assistance in preparing a written appeal or be directed to the GCHP website to obtain a form, which can be either faxed or mailed to the department. The date of the oral request will be used as the appeal notification date.

- By phone, by contacting GCHP Member Services: Call 1-888-301-1228 (TTY: 711).
- In writing, by completing a Member Appeal form and/or written correspondence mailed to: Gold Coast Health Plan Attn: Grievance and Appeals P.O. Box 9176 Oxnard, CA 93031
- Via fax to GCHP's Grievance and Appeals Department: 1-805-512-8599

A GCHP Grievance and Appeals representative will send an acknowledgement letter within five calendar days from the date the appeal is received. The acknowledgement letter shall advise the member that the appeal has been received, the date of receipt, and provide the name, telephone number and address of the Grievance and Appeals representative that may be contacted regarding the appeal. GCHP will provide a response to the member as expeditiously as the member's health condition requires, but no later than 30 calendar days from the day GCHP receives the appeal.

The member can request a timeframe extension for additional time to provide more documentation. GCHP will make reasonable efforts to accommodate the member's request. If GCHP is unable to resolve the appeal in the specified timeframe, the member will be given information on the right to file a Member Grievance for the delay.

Deemed Exhaustion

In the event GCHP fails to adhere to the state and federal notice and timeframe requirements for either an NOA or NAR, including the failure to provide a fully translated notice, the member is deemed to have exhausted GCHP's internal appeal process and may initiate a State Hearing.

Expedited Review

An expedited review of an appeal can be requested in certain cases. This request can be made by the member, an authorized representative or by the provider on behalf of the member. GCHP supports a process to resolve appeals in an expedited manner when a delay in a decision may seriously jeopardize the member's life, health, or the ability to attain, maintain or regain maximum function. The expedited appeal would need to be filed orally and followed up with a written request.

During the Expedited Appeal process, GCHP will ensure the member is informed of the limited timeframe for an Expedited Appeal. GCHP will provide a member notice as quickly as the member's health condition requires, or within 72 hours from the time and date the request is received. If the request for an Expedited Appeal does not meet criteria, the appeal will be handled as a standard appeal and be subjected to the timeframes for a Standard Appeal.

GCHP will provide the member with a Notice of Appeal Resolution (NAR) letter, which will include the resolution. The NAR letter will include the member's right to request a State Hearing, how to request the continuation of benefits, and the requirements to file a continuation within 10 calendar days of when the NAR was sent, or before the intended effective date of the proposed action.

If GCHP makes the decision to overturn the appeal, GCHP will authorize or provide the disputed services as promptly as the member's health condition requires, but no later than 72 hours from the decision date.

State Hearing

GCHP offers members only one level of appeal. Members must exhaust GCHP's internal process prior to proceeding to a State Hearing. Members may request a State Hearing after receiving a NAR stating that their member appeal is denied, or if they have exhausted the appeals process due to GCHP failing to adhere to the defined appeal notice and timing requirements. Members may request a State Hearing up to 120 calendar days from the date of the NAR.

The member request for a State Hearing will be considered as a standard hearing and the State Hearing unit will reach a decision within 90 calendar days of the date of the request. However, if the member requests an Expedited Hearing, the State Hearing unit will reach a decision within three working days from the date of the request. For any overturned decision, GCHP shall authorize or provide the disputed services as promptly as the member's health condition requires, but no later than 72 hours from the date of the notice reversing the determination.

You can ask for a State Hearing:

- By phone, by calling 1-800-952-5253. This number can be frequently busy. You may get a message to call back later. If you use a TTY, please call 1-800-952-8349.
- In writing, by filling out a State Hearing form or sending a letter to: California Department of Social Services State Hearings Division P.O. Box 944243, Mail Station 9-17-37 Sacramento, CA 94244-2430
- Online: www.cdss.ca.gov
- Fax: (916) 309-3487 or toll-free at 1-833-281-0903

A State Hearing Form or the request letter should include the member's name, address, telephone number, Social Security Number (SSN) and/or CIN number, and the reason for the requesting a State Hearing. If someone is helping the member request a State Hearing, add their name, address, and telephone number to the form or letter. If the member needs an interpreter, tell the State Hearings Division what language they speak. The member will not have to pay for an interpreter. The State Hearings Division will provide one. If the member has a disability, the State Hearings Division can provide special accommodations free of charge to help the member participate in the hearing. Please include information about the disability and the accommodation required.

Section 21: Fraud, Waste and Abuse Identification Policy and Procedures

Purpose:

To establish a formalized organizational process for detecting, investigating, documenting and reporting suspected fraud, waste or abuse of any Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP) program by a member, provider, employee, or any other person, in accordance with GCHP's contract with the state Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) and federal and state regulations.

Policy:

- A. GCHP maintains a zero-tolerance policy toward fraud, waste and abuse.
- B. GCHP complies with applicable statutory, regulatory and other governmental requirements, and contractual obligations or commitments related to the delivery of GCHP covered benefits, which include, but are not limited to, federal and state False Claims Acts, Anti-Kickback statutes, prohibitions on inducements to beneficiaries, Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA), and other applicable statutes.
- C. All GCHP employees, contractors, temporary staff, vendors, providers and practitioners are responsible for reporting any suspected fraud, waste and abuse to GCHP. GCHP reports suspected fraud, waste or abuse to DHCS in accordance with its DHCS contract and this policy.
- D. GCHP maintains a policy of non-retaliation toward employees, contractors, providers and practitioners who make such reports in good faith. GCHP employees, contractors, temporary staff, vendors, providers and practitioners are protected from retaliation under Title 31, United States Code, Section 3730(h), for False Claims Act complaints, as well as any other anti-retaliation protections.
- E. GCHP provides a Compliance Program for complete investigation of all reported suspected fraud, waste and abuse allegations. GCHP Compliance staff, under the supervision of the GCHP compliance officer, is responsible for activities associated with the investigation and reporting of suspected fraud, waste and abuse. Compliance staff will compile supporting evidence for the investigation, consult with legal counsel as appropriate, and function as the liaison between GCHP, DHCS, the Medical Board, the State Board of Pharmacy, other licensing, law enforcement, and other relevant entities, as appropriate, and cooperate with those agencies related to any fraud, waste and abuse investigations or audits.
- F. GCHP's investigative processes ensure that appropriate confidentiality protocols are followed relating to any investigation of a suspected fraud, waste or abuse violation. GCHP's compliance officer will report the status and results of all suspected fraud, waste or abuse investigations to the GCHP Compliance Committee.
- G. GCHP's Compliance Program provides for regular training and information sessions for all GCHP employees, contractors, temporary staff, network providers and practitioners regarding GCHP's fraud, waste and abuse policies and procedures. GCHP members will also be informed via Evidence of Coverage, the GCHP Member Handbook and/or newsletters about how to report fraud, waste and abuse.

Definitions:

- A. Fraud: An intentional deception or misrepresentation made with the knowledge that the deception could result in some unauthorized benefit to himself or some other person. It includes any act that constitutes fraud under applicable federal or state law (Title 42 CFR 455.2; Welfare and Institutions Code 14043143.1(i)).
- B. Waste: Overutilization of services and/or misuse of resources not caused by a violation of law.
- C. Abuse: Provider practices that are inconsistent with sound fiscal, business, or medical practices, and result in an unnecessary cost to the Medicaid program or in reimbursement for services that

are not medically necessary or that fail to meet professionally recognized standards for health care. It also includes recipient practices that result in unnecessary cost to the Medicaid program (Title 42 CFR 455.2; Welfare and Institutions Code 14043.1(a)).

- D. Retaliation: Adverse punitive action taken against an employee who reports fraud, waste or abuse.
- E. Whistleblower: An employee, former employee, or member of an organization who reports misconduct, including, but not limited to, fraud, waste or abuse, to people or entities that have the power to take corrective action.

Procedures:

A. Training of GCHP Staff and Provider Network

Compliance staff will provide the training of new employees, contract employees and temporary employees. Providers are informed about fraud via the Provider Manual. In addition, contracts with providers have verbiage that is inclusive of fraud reporting. The trainings for staff are held on an annual basis. Trainings are held on a quarterly basis for all new associates to ensure new associates receive training.

The process for detecting suspected fraud, waste and abuse, the specific provisions regarding fraud, waste and abuse under the False Claims Act, the reporting process, and the protections afforded to those who report such concerns in good faith are all reviewed during the trainings. All trainings are documented with all attendees noted. GCHP employees, contractors and temporary staff receive a certificate of completion for attending fraud, waste and abuse training.

B. Identification of Fraud, Waste or Abuse

- 1. GCHP employees, contractors, temporary staff, vendors, members, providers and practitioners may detect fraud, waste or abuse perpetrated by a member in circumstances that include, but are not limited to, the following:
 - a. Using another individual's identity, Benefits Identification Card (BIC), GCHP Identification card, Medi-Cal number, or other documentation of Medi-Cal or GCHP program eligibility to obtain covered services, unless such person is an authorized representative who is presenting such document or information on behalf of a member to obtain covered services for that member.
 - b. Selling, loaning, or giving a member's identity, BIC, GCHP ID card, Medi-Cal number, or other documentation of Medi-Cal and GCHP program eligibility to another individual to obtain covered services, unless such person is an authorized representative who is obtaining services on behalf of a member.
 - c. Making an unsubstantiated declaration of eligibility.
 - d. Using a covered service for purposes other than the purposes for which it was prescribed or provided, including use of such covered service by an individual other than the member for whom the covered service was prescribed or provided. Soliciting or receiving a kickback, bribe, rebate or other financial incentive as an inducement to receive or not receive covered services.
- 2. GCHP employees, contractors, temporary staff, vendors, members, providers and practitioners may detect fraud, waste or abuse by a provider, provider group or practitioner in circumstances that include, but are not limited to, the following:
 - a. Unsubstantiated declaration of eligibility to participate in the Medi-Cal program or the GCHP program as a provider, provider group or practitioner.
 - b. Submission of a claim or a request for payment for:
 - i. Covered services that were not provided to the member for whom such covered services were claimed.
 - ii. Covered services substantially in excess of the quantity that is medically necessary for the member.

- iii. Covered services using a billing code that will result in greater payment than the billing code that reflects the covered services actually provided.
- c. Soliciting, offering, receiving, or paying a kickback, bribe or rebate as an inducement to refer, or fail to refer, a member.
- d. Failing to disclose any significant beneficial interest in any other provider to which the provider or practitioner may refer a member for the provision of covered services.
- e. False certification of medical necessity.
- f. Attributing a diagnosis code to a member that does not accurately reflect the member's medical condition for the purpose of obtaining higher reimbursement.
- g. Submitting files or reports that contain unsubstantiated data, data that is inconsistent with underlying clinical, encounter, or payment records or data that has been altered in a manner or for a purpose that is not consistent with GCHP's policies, contract, or applicable regulations and statutes.
- 3. GCHP providers' responsibilities for fraud prevention and detection include, but are not limited to, the following:
 - a. Training provider staff, contracting physicians and other affiliated or ancillary providers, and vendors on GCHP and provider's Fraud Prevention Program and fraud prevention activities at least annually.
 - b. Developing a fraud program, implementing fraud prevention activities and communicating such program and activities to contractors and subcontractors.
 - c. Communicating awareness, including identification of fraud schemes, detection methods and monitoring activities to contracted and subcontracted entities and to GCHP.
 - d. Notifying GCHP of suspected fraudulent behavior and asking for assistance in completing investigations.
 - e. Taking action against suspected or confirmed fraud, including referring such instances to law enforcement and reporting activity to GCHP.
 - f. Policing and/or monitoring activities and operations to detect and/or deter or prevent fraudulent behavior.
 - g. Cooperating with GCHP in fraud detection and awareness activities, including monitoring, reporting, etc., as well as cooperating with GCHP in fraud investigations to the extent permitted by law.

C. Reporting of Fraud, Waste or Abuse

GCHP provides for the reporting of suspected fraud, waste or abuse through various mechanisms, such as the GCHP website, FWA toll-free hotline, email, phone or in person to the Compliance Department. GCHP's Compliance Department tracks and analyzes data for suspected fraud, waste and abuse trends.

- 1. The Fraud Hotline, 1-866-672-2615, or the website <u>secure.ethicspoint.com</u> can be used to anonymously report a suspected fraud, waste or abuse incident. The hotline number is provided to employees, contractors, temporary staff, vendors, members, providers, and practitioners.
 - a. GCHP employees use the hotline provided by Navex at 1-866-672-2615, which provides a method to anonymously report suspected fraud, waste and abuse. Employees may also use the website. In the event an allegation is received via Navex relative to any employeerelated allegation that is not related to fraud, waste or abuse, the case will be referred to the executive director of Human Resources. If the report involves a Commission member, the compliance officer will contact general counsel immediately. In the event the report involves the CEO, the compliance officer will contact the Commission chair and general counsel.

D. Investigation and Research

GCHP treats the detection of suspected fraud, waste or abuse in a confidential manner by ensuring that Compliance staff adheres to GCHP's HIPAA confidentiality protocols in compiling only the

information needed for the investigation to determine if the suspected violation is valid and ensure that GCHP will not retaliate or make retribution against any GCHP employee, provider, practitioner, or member for such detection. Upon receiving a report of a suspected fraud, waste or abuse incident, Compliance staff will review and perform an initial triage of the case and will:

- 1. Determine whether the case relates to GCHP programs and is appropriate for investigation by GCHP. (For example, if the claim is regarding a Medicare issue or allegation, that type of case will be redirected.)
- 2. In the event the report is determined not to be subject to investigation by GCHP, an acknowledgement response via Navex will be available online. In addition, the reporter will also receive a report number, and the reporter can contact Navex 24 hours a day, seven days a week to request the status of their case.
- 3. Once it is determined the allegation is valid for GCHP to pursue, the compliance specialist(s) will:
 - a. Assign the case a unique tracking number established in the tracking software and establish a file to maintain documents, reports, evidence, and correspondence pertaining to the suspected fraud, waste or abuse, to include: the reported individual allegation or incident, the date, summary results of the investigation, resolution, and reports to/ correspondence with the appropriate agency.
 - b. Upon the receipt of a Suspected Fraud, Waste or Abuse Referral Form, GCHP's Compliance staff will transmit an acknowledgement notice to the party who submitted the form, including a request for additional documents (if needed) with a due date.
 - c. Involve the appropriate department(s) based upon the nature of the case to gather the appropriate documentation (e.g., member profiles, claims history, etc.). The department(s) notified will review the allegation and gather any additional information as deemed necessary for a comprehensive report.
 - d. The departments will return a written report of all necessary documents and information to Compliance within five business days of receiving the request.
 - e. If necessary and upon request, Compliance will coordinate the investigation independent of other GCHP departments, including procuring the services of contracted investigators, as/if needed.
 - f. In the event the allegation warrants merit, there is reason to believe that an incident of fraud and/or abuse has occurred based on preliminary findings, Compliance will utilize the material reviewed by the department(s) in preparation to report and notify DHCS Medi-Cal Managed Care Division / Member Rights / Program Integrity Unit of the suspected fraud, waste or abuse by submitting an MC609 form: Confidential Medi-Cal Complaint Form.
- 4. Compliance staff will conduct, complete, and report to DHCS the results of its preliminary investigation of the suspected fraud, waste and/or abuse within 10 business days of the conclusion of the date GCHP first becomes aware of, or is on notice of, such investigation activity.

E. Monitoring

GCHP's compliance officer will provide quarterly reports and annual summaries that identify any trends for review and discussion for possible corrective action plans, as appropriate, to the Compliance Committee and the GCHP governing body.

References:

GCHP Contract with the Department of Health Care Services. Title 42. Code of Federal Regulations (C.F.R) Section 455.2 42 C.F.R. §Title 42, Code of Federal Regulations (C.F.R) Section 438.608

Section 22: Forms and Resources

Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP) is continually posting forms to its website. If you require a form and it is not posted, please call GCHP's Provider Services Department at 1-888-301-1228. Below you will find a list of forms, along with a brief description of their intended use. To view or to download these or other GCHP-related business forms, please visit the **Provider Resources** section of the GCHP website.

Claims

- **CLAIM CORRECTION FORM** Use this form to accompany corrected claim(s). Any corrected claim received without the corresponding claim correction form will be rejected.
- **ELECTRONIC CLAIMS SUBMISSION** Electronic claims submission instruction process.
- PROVIDER CLAIM RECONSIDERATION FORM This form is to be used for disputes related to claim denials, overpayment and underpayment.

HEALTH SERVICES

Authorization and Referral Forms

Authorizations:

- **PRIOR AUTHORIZATION TREATMENT REQUEST FORM** This form is used by providers to request prior authorization from the Plan for certain specified services that require advance approval.
- NON-EMERGENCY MEDICAL TRANSPORTATION (NEMT) PRESCRIPTION / ATTESTATION OF MEDICAL NECESSITY – This form is used by PCPs and specialists to determine eligibility and medical necessity for a member to receive NEMT services.

Referrals:

- **DIRECT REFERRAL FORM** This form is used by Primary Care Providers (PCPs) and specialists to refer a member to another contracted provider located in Ventura County.
- CARE MANAGEMENT REFERRAL FORM This form is used to request assistance with a member with unique or special needs.

Member Services

- PRIMARY CARE PROVIDER (PCP) SELECTION FORM This form can be printed from GCHP's website and handed to members who would like to change their PCP. This form is available in English and Spanish.
- MEMBER GRIEVANCE AND APPEALS FORM This form can be printed out and handed to members who are interested in filing a complaint with GCHP's Member Services.

Provider Relations

- PROVIDER CLAIM RECONSIDERATION FORM This form is to be used for disputes related to claim denials, overpayment and underpayment.
- PROVIDER INFORMATION UPDATE FORM This form is used to update provider contact and practice information. Information includes the provider's address, phone number, contact information, payment address, and tax ID number.
- PROVIDER REQUEST FOR CONTRACT If you are interested in becoming a GCHP provider and joining GCHP's network, please submit a letter of interest by email to ProviderContracting@goldchp.org.
- <u>CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING</u> EXHIBIT D(F) ATT 1 AND 2 If payments to a provider under the GCHP services agreement total \$100,000 or more, the provider must submit the "Certification Regarding Lobbying" form to GCHP.

If you require a form not found on this list or on GCHP's website, please call the Provider Services Department for assistance at 1-888-301-1228 or email **ProviderRelations@goldchp.org**.

Quality Improvement

- Quality Improvement and Health Equity Transformation (QIHET) Program This outlines GCHP's process for continuous quality improvement of clinic care and services, patient safety, and member experience.
- Managed Care Accountability Set (MCAS) Quality Measures This webpage includes resources related to the MCAS measure specifications.
- Quality Reporting This webpage includes monthly dashboards and gap reports on MCAS measure performance.
- Potential Quality Issues (PQI) The PQI form to report a PQI. Please e-mail the completed form to PQIReporting@goldchp.org.
- Facility Site Reviews This webpage includes Provider Site Review tools and resources.
- Quality Incentive Pool and Program (QIPP) This webpage includes information on the QIPP.
- <u>Member Rewards Program</u> This webpage includes program details, resources, and forms.

Appendix 1: Functions of Committees and Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP) Staff Quality Improvement and Health Equity Committee (QIHEC)

The Quality Improvement and Health Equity Committee (QIHEC) is responsible for the monitoring and evaluation of the overall effectiveness of quality improvement and health equity activities at GHCP. The Quality Improvement and Health Equity Committee (QIHEC) is chaired by the chief medical officer (CMO) in collaboration with the executive director of health equity and is facilitated by the senior director of quality improvement. membership consists of chairs from the nine QIHEC subcommittees, GCHP management, licensed practitioners from GCHP's provider network, a behavioral health practitioner, and at least one Commissioner. The QIHEC meets six times per year and is responsible for advising GCHP's staff and commissioners on the Quality Improvement and Health Equity Transformation (QIHET) Program.

The QIHEC:

- Oversees annual review, analysis and evaluation of goals set forth by the QIHET Program, Quality Improvement and Health Equity Transformation Work Plan, as well as GCHP's quality improvement policies and procedures.
- Makes recommendations for implementation of QIHET Program interventions or corrective actions based on results of quality improvement and health equity metrics and activities.
- Facilitates data-driven indicator review and development for monitoring key quality management activities, including but not limited to: MCAS / HEDIS[®], Access / Availability, Performance Improvement Projects, Service / Clinical Quality measures, UM/CM metrics, Population Health metrics, Behavioral Health metrics, Credentialing performance, Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services, and Delegation Oversight. Analyzes and evaluates the results of QI and Health Equity activities, including the annual review of the results of performance measures, utilization data, consumer satisfaction surveys, and the findings and activities of other committees, such as the Community Advisory Committee.
- Institutes actions to address performance deficiencies, including policy recommendations.
- Ensures appropriate follow-up of identified performance deficiencies.
- Reviews reports from GCHP committees and departments, including quarterly dashboards, key
 activities and action plans and reports regarding monitoring of health plan functions and activities,
 and makes recommendations.

Utilization Management Committee (UMC)

The UMC is established as a standing sub-committee of the QIHEC of GCHP. The committee structures and processes are clearly defined in the Quality Improvement and Health Equity Transformation Program Description.

The UMC oversees the implementation of the program and promotes the optimum utilization of health care services, while protecting and acknowledging member rights and responsibilities, including their right to appeal denials of service. The UMC is multi-disciplinary and monitors continuity and coordination of care as well as under- and over-utilization of services. Any perceived or actual utilization management problems are reviewed by the UMC. The committee meets quarterly. The QIHEC and UMC work together on overlapping issues.

Pharmacy & Therapeutics (P&T) Committee

The Pharmacy and Therapeutics (P&T) committee is chaired by the Director of Pharmacy Services and comprised of local physicians and pharmacists. The committee meets quarterly with the primary responsibility of ensuring cost effective and quality drug management for GCHP members. The committee

will also discuss retrospective Drug Utilization Reviews (DURs), review the policies and procedures for Pharmacy Services, review and update the Physician Administered Drug (PAD) list covered under the Medical Drug Benefit and provide recommendations on educational materials and programs regarding drug products and appropriate utilization for Providers. P&T committee members are appointed by the CMO and/or the Director of Pharmacy Services. The P&T committee reports to the board through the CMO and the QIHEC.

Credentials / Peer Review Committee (C/PRC)

The Credentials / Peer Review Committee (C/PRC) oversees GCHP's credentialing and practitioner peer review process, including guidance and peer input. The C/PRC is chaired by the CMO and attended by GCHP management and licensed practitioners from GCHP's contracted provider network, which includes primary care and specialty practices.

The committee meets quarterly and supports GCHP's efforts to ensure its contracted providers deliver the highest quality of care to its members by:

- Providing guidance and comments on the credentialing process.
- Reviewing and making decisions for initial credentialing and recredentialing.
- Reviewing credentialing policies annually.
- Reviewing potential quality issues involving the quality of care and services.
- Determining corrective action when necessary.
- Reviewing and approving clinical practice and preventive health care guidelines and utilization management criteria.

At its discretion, the C/PRC may invite additional specialists to review case records, either in writing or in person. Participants are bound by confidentiality, non-discrimination, and conflict of interest rules.

Health Education, Cultural & Linguistics Committee (HECL Committee)

The HECL Committee is chaired by the senior health education director and staffed by the managers and leadership of QI, Member Services, Network Operations, Health Services, and others, as appropriate. The committee shall meet at least quarterly and reports to the QIHEC.

GCHP's HECL department includes interpretation and translation services, provider education and resources, and cultural competence training for GCHP and contracted staff. Committee objectives are to increase access to high quality care for all GCHP members, reduce health disparities among different cultural groups, and to improve communication among staff, providers and members.

Provider Advisory Committee (PAC)

Comprised of a broad spectrum of community providers, the PAC meets quarterly and offers input to the CMO, commission and management team regarding GCHP policies that involve provider activity and the integrity of the provider network. The GCHP commission appoints PAC members to a renewable one-year term. Recommendations for policy revisions and innovations, if adopted as resolutions by a majority of the appointed members of the PAC, are forwarded to the commission.

Chief Medical Officer (CMO)

The CMO is the principal GCHP position that provides oversight of the provider credentialing process, quality monitoring, evaluation, and improvement activities.

The CMO shall be responsible for the day-to-day guidance and direction of quality monitoring, improvement activities, and seeking input from specialists as needed to provide guidance in addressing quality issues relevant to a specific area of expertise.

Specific functions of the CMO include:

- 1. Fulfillment of and adherence to Quality Improvement and Health Equity Transformation (QIHET) Program goals and all regulatory agency and accreditation body requirements.
- 2. Fulfillment of and adherence to UM / CM Program goals and all regulatory agency and accreditation body requirements.
- 3. Development and coordination of the peer review process.
- 4. Serving as chair for the Credentials / Peer Review Committee and Quality Improvement and Health Equity Committee.
- 5. Consultation with the Health Services, UM, and Quality directors and other staff, as appropriate.
- Guiding and assisting in the development and revision of quality improvement criteria, practice guidelines, new technology assessments and performance standards, as appropriate, and the development and implementation of quality improvement strategies.
- 7. Presenting periodic updates on quality improvement, health equity, and utilization management activities to committee chairs and to the commission as appropriate.

Appendix 2: FAQs About Claims and Electronic Billing

1. Does Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP) follow the same timeliness guidelines as Medi-Cal?

Yes. GCHP requires providers to submit claims within 365 calendar days from the date of service unless the provider's contract specifies a different limitation. If the member has other health coverage, the claim must be received within 180 days from the date of the primary carrier's Explanation of Benefits.

2. What is GCHP's processing time for my claims?

GCHP is contractually bound to process 90% of clean claims within 30 working days of receipt of the claim and 99% of clean claims within 60 calendar days of receipt of the claim. Claims are processed daily, and payments are generated once a week. When a holiday falls on a check run day, checks will be processed on the next business day.

3. What is GCHP's capitation check schedule?

GCHP processes capitation checks to PCPs on the 10th of each month. When a holiday falls on a check run day, checks will be processed on the next business day.

4. Am I required to submit claims for capitated services for members linked to my practice?

Yes. GCHP requires and specifies in your provider contract that all capitated service encounters must be reported every month as "encounter claims" that are not paid.

5. Will GCHP accept electronic claims?

Yes. GCHP accepts and encourages electronic claims submission by network providers. If your practice or facility is interested in submitting claims electronically, please contact **<u>GCHPOnboardingRequests@edifecs.com</u>**. If you use a clearinghouse, please provide this information to your clearinghouse vendor.

6. When and how should I follow up on claims that I believe have not been processed by GCHP?

Please consider the date that the claim was submitted to estimate an appropriate follow-up / re-bill period. GCHP processes claims based on the date they are received. For most practices, the appropriate timeframe for follow up would be 45 calendar days after the claim was originally mailed or transmitted electronically. GCHP suggests that providers use the electronic claims tracking available through the Provider Web Portal or contact Provider Services at 1-888-301-1228 before resubmitting any claims.

7. What about the ability to view claims via the web?

Providers can use GCHP's Provider Web Portal to search for claims that were submitted by paper or electronically. If your office has not registered and is not using the Provider Web Portal, please contact the Provider Services Department at 1-888-301-1228 or email **ProviderRelations@goldchp.org**. Detailed instructions on how to use the Provider Web Portal can be located on the **GCHP Provider Portal** web page.

8. What form should I use to bill Child Health and Disability Prevention (CHDP) program claims?

CHDP services should be billed on a CMS-1500 claim form (formerly known as HCFA-1500) using standard CPT codes. GCHP is following the CHDP guidelines provided by the state. Please refer to the

Child Health Disability Prevention (CHDP) Claims Submission under section 10 of this provider manual for additional billing instructions.

9. How should claims for newborns be submitted?

Services rendered to a newborn may be billed with the mother's ID number for the month of birth and for the following month if the child has not received their own Medi-Cal ID number. After this time, the infant must have their own Medi-Cal ID number. If you are billing using the mother's ID number, please add her ID number and information in box 58 and box 60 of the UB form.

For the CMS-1500 form, use box 1a and box 4. Additionally, when billing for NICU newborns, the claim must be billed using the newborns Medi-Cal ID number.

10. How does GCHP handle claims for children eligible for California Children's Services (CCS)?

CCS services are not the financial responsibility of GCHP and should be billed directly to fee-for-service Medi-Cal. Original claims billed with a CCS diagnosis and/or CCS-eligible condition will be returned to you with a denial letter that includes CCS billing instructions. A denial will also appear on a subsequent Explanation of Payment (EOP). GCHP's review of potential CCS claims is based on the member's diagnosis. CCS-covered conditions that have been denied by Medi-Cal FFS due to services being rendered by a non-CCS paneled provider are not the financial responsibility of GCHP.

11. How should I handle share-of-cost (SOC) collection and billing?

SOC collection and billing is an important function for every provider. The Medi-Cal **website** will inform you of a member's outstanding SOC and allow you to clear the amount collected (or the amount that the patient is obligated to pay). Once the amount collected (or obligated) is cleared, the member will be a GCHP member (or, if there is a remaining SOC amount, the member will be closer to eligibility). It is important for all providers to collect and clear SOC each month to ensure a member's ability to obtain services from other providers later that month.

Once the SOC has been cleared, GCHP will determine the Medi-Cal allowance and subtract the amount already paid by the member. If the member's SOC payment exceeds the Medi-Cal allowance, the GCHP reimbursement will be \$0. If the member's SOC payment is less than the Medi-Cal allowance, then the net reimbursement will be the difference.

When using the CMS-1500 Claim Form: Enter the amount collected (or obligated) in box 10d or 19 of the CMS-1500 claim form. The amount collected (or obligated) should also be entered in box 29 and should be subtracted from the total balance due (box 30). Further explanation and samples can be found in the SOC tutorial section of the Medi-Cal website.

When using the UB-04 Claim Form: Enter code "23" and the amount of the patient's SOC in box 30. In box 55 enter the difference between "Total Charges" (box 47) and SOC collected. Further explanation and samples can be found in the SOC tutorial section of the Medi-Cal website.

When using the UB-04 Claim Form for Long-Term Care Billing: Enter one of the approved value codes RL, 23, 02, 31 or FC. When using these value codes, the monetary amount submitted should only be the net for the claims statement period being billed.

12. How are refunds or reversals / take backs processed?

GCHP's Recovery Department assesses and identifies overpayments on claims. Research is completed to identify overpayments related to over-utilization of procedures, claims billed incorrectly, duplicate

payments, overpayments due to lack of coordination of benefits with members' primary health care insurance policy (such as private health insurance, Medicare coverage, or an open case with CCS).

Typically, the overpaid amount is recovered by the provider issuing a lump-sum check payable to GCHP and mailed to:

Gold Coast Health Plan Attn: Claims Department P.O. Box 9152 Oxnard, CA 93031

Alternatively, an overpayment may be reversed from monies due to the provider on the same NPI until the recovery is completed. This will only be done as a last resort if the provider does not respond in writing to the notification from GCHP that there is an overpayment that must be reconciled or if the provider asks GCHP to offset the overpaid amount.

When an overpayment is identified by GCHP, the provider will be notified with a letter explaining the overpayment and a request for a refund check in the amount of the overpayment. If the provider does not remit the overpayment, GCHP will notify the provider of its intent to offset the overpayment from future claim payments.

If a provider is not expected to receive money in future payments or does not have a large volume paid out for a particular NPI number from GCHP to recoup the overpayment, the offset(s) must be completed by using the same NPI that was initially paid incorrectly.

Example: A claim was paid for services rendered to John Doe. GCHP discovers that Mr. Doe is not your patient and takes back the payment. The initial payment was paid to NPI #1234567890; therefore, GCHP should be able to recoup the monies owed (excluding any issue beyond GCHP's control) from any following payment made to that NPI. The Claims Department will mail, fax, or e-mail an "Identification of Overpayment" request if offsets are not viable. Payments are expected within 30 days from receipt of this notice.

If you have additional questions or concerns, please contact the Claims Department at 1-888-301-1228.

13. What do I do if I disagree with how a claim was paid or denied?

Claims are processed using Medi-Cal and standard National Correct Coding Initiatives (NCCI) guidelines. If a provider disagrees with either how a claim was priced / paid or whether or not it was denied appropriately, the provider should submit a Provider Claim Reconsideration Form.

For further information, please see the dispute resolution process section of this Provider Manual.

14. When can I bill a GCHP member for an unpaid service?

You may not bill a GCHP member for any un-reimbursed amount, including a deductible / co-insurance or co-pay amount, unless one of the following exceptions applies:

- The member has an unmet monthly Medi-Cal SOC amount.
- The member does not disclose their GCHP / Medi-Cal coverage.
- The member consents to receive services that are not covered by GCHP.
- The member chooses to see a physician / provider who does not accept Medi-Cal or is not a Medi-Cal provider.

- The member waives their Medi-Cal benefits.
- The member does not obtain or access primary insurance benefits correctly.

A member may be charged when they do not obtain primary insurance benefits correctly. Please note that unless you have provided benefits to the member according to the primary insurance authorization / benefit requirements, you may not charge the GCHP member for the service.

Appendix 3: Financial Disclosure and Reporting

By the terms of its contract with the state, Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP) is required to monitor the financial viability of its contracted providers and Plan partners. The purpose is to establish that they are financially solvent and that their financial status is not deteriorating over time. The requirements for contracted providers are different from those of GCHP partners.

GCHP will exercise discretion to only collect financial information from contracted providers if and when there is a clear need to do so in order to fulfill its obligations to the state. For example, PCPs who have only a small or limited number of members on their panel will not have to comply with these provisions, nor will tertiary care out-of-area providers that rarely treat GCHP's members or providers that are compensated on a straight fee-for-service rate schedule or case rate basis.

GCHP partners must submit financial statements annually for the first three quarters of the fiscal year to GCHP's Compliance Department no later than 45 calendar days after the close of each applicable quarter for the fiscal year. For the purpose of this section, the quarterly financial statements will consist of the balance sheet, income statement, statement of change in net worth and cash flow statement.

The provider's financial statements should be prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). Financial statements shall be in the same format and have the same content as the Quarterly Financial Reporting Forms (previously "Orange Blank") that are submitted to the state Department of Managed Health Care (DMHC).

On an annual basis, GCHP partners shall submit to GCHP's Compliance Department financial statements audited by an independent Certified Public Accounting firm. Audited annual financial statements must be filed within 120 days of the end of each fiscal year and will be in the same format and content as the Annual Financial Reporting Form (previously "Orange Blank") submitted to DMHC.

GCHP will review the financial statement(s) to determine if the selected providers and partners meet the minimum acceptable liquidity, profitability, efficiency, and stop-loss protection levels.

The financial viability of each selected contracting provider and all GCHP partners will be determined based on established criteria and DMHC-required grading criteria. For example, the following information will be calculated and analyzed:

Liquidity:

- Current and quick ratios to be equal to or greater than 1.0.
- Acid test ratio of liquid assets (cash) to current payables to be equal to or greater than 0.50 (DMHCrequired grading criteria).
- A positive working capital of 1.0 or above (DMHC-required grading criteria).
- A positive tangible net equity (TNE) or net worth of 1.0 or above (DMHC-required grading criteria).

In addition, GCHP partners shall estimate and document, on a monthly basis, the organization's liability for incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims using a lag study, an actuarial estimate, or other reasonable method.

¹ GCHP reserves the right to request more frequent submissions.

On a discretionary basis, the GCHP Compliance Department will have the right to periodically schedule audits to ensure compliance with the above requirements. Since the financial solvency standards apply to the entity as a whole, the audits will be conducted for all books of business, not only for the lines of businesses contracted with GCHP. Representatives of the contracted providers and GCHP partners shall facilitate access to the records necessary to complete the audit.

Appendix 4: FAQs for Member Grievances and/or Appeals

NOTE: This guide is provided to give basic assistance to provider offices in dealing with questions received from Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP) members related to grievances. For more complicated matters, please refer members to GCHP at 1-888-301-1228 (TTY: 711).

1. What is the GCHP grievance and/or appeal process?

GCHP has a process for evaluation of grievances and appeals. It provides a method for the member to voice their grievances or settle any concerns they may have about the services they receive as GCHP members.

2. What is a grievance?

A grievance is an expression of dissatisfaction about any matter other than an Adverse Benefit Determination. A grievance may include, but is not limited to, the quality of care or services provided, interpersonal relationships such as rudeness of a provider or employee, and the member's right to dispute an extension of time proposed by GCHP to make an authorization decision.

3. When can a member file a grievance?

A member can file a grievance at any time.

Some examples of grievances include, but are not limited to, the following:

- Member experiences a problem getting services they feel are needed, such as medication, medical
 equipment, or an appointment with a doctor.
- Member is unhappy with the services received from a health care provider.
- Member is unhappy with their health care treatment.

In most cases, filing of complaint / grievance must be done within 180 days of the event that caused dissatisfaction. If a complaint is filed because GCHP has denied or modified a request for Prior Authorization, an appeal must be filed within 60 days of GCHP's Notice of Action.

4. What is an appeal?

An appeal is review of GCHP's Adverse Benefit Determination, which means the denial, deferral or limited authorization of a requested covered service, including:

- Determinations on the level of service.
- Denials of medical necessity.
- Reduction, suspension, or termination of a previously authorized service.
- The denial, in whole or part, of payment for a service.
- Failure to provide timely services as defined by the state, for a resident in a rural area.
- The denial of a member's ability to exercise the right to obtain services out of GCHP's Network.
- The denial of a member's request to dispute a financial liability including cost sharing, deductibles, and other financial liabilities.

5. When can a member file an appeal?

A member can file an appeal within 60 calendar days from the notice of action.

6. Who can file a grievance and/or an appeal?

- Member
- Authorized representative
- Provider on behalf of the member

7. How can the grievance or appeal be submitted?

- Phone: 1-888-301-1228
- Mail: GCHP Grievances & Appeals P.O. Box 9176 Oxnard, CA 93031
- **In-person:** Gold Coast Health Plan 711 Daily Dr., Suite 106 Camarillo, CA 93010
- Email: <u>Grievances@goldchp.org</u>
- Fax: 1-805-512-8599

Index

Pag	je
-----	----

24-Hour Advice Nurse Line	63
Access to and Copies of Records Additional Requirements: California Children's Services (CCS),	49
Comprehensive Perinatal Services Program (CPSP), HIV/AIDS	24
Administrative Members	46
Administrative vs. Regular Member	37
Appealing Adverse Decisions by the Credentials / Peer Review Committee (C/PRC)	25
Assistance with Referral Consultation Requests	77
Authorization Requests for Ancillary Services	72
Benefits	39
Breastfeeding Support	95
California Children's Services (CCS)	28
Carved-Out Services and Limited Benefits	
CALIFORNIA STATE PROGRAMS	28
CARE MANAGEMENT PROGRAM	61
Categories of Medi-Cal Eligibility: Aid Codes	
Chief Medical Officer (CMO)	
Claim Forms Used by Different Types of Providers	
CLAIMS AND BILLING	
Claim Submission by FAX	
Comprehensive Perinatal Services Program (CPSP)	
Confidentiality of Information	
Continuity of Care	
COORDINATION OF BENEFITS.	
Council for Affordable Quality Healtheore (CAQH)	
Council for Affordable Quality Healthcare (CAQH) Credentials / Peer Review Committee (C/PRC)	
Credentialing for Organizational Providers.	
CULTURAL AND LINGUISTIC SERVICES.	
Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility or Voluntary Exclusion	25
Deferrals and Denials	
Diabetes Education	
Dual Coverage by Medicare and Medi-Cal (Medi / Medi)	
Electronic Data Interchange (EDI)	78
Eligibility, Enrollment and Member Identification (ID) Cards	
Emergency and Urgent Admissions Do Not Require Prior Authorization	
Examples of Share of Cost (SOC): Medi-Cal and Medicare	
Expedited / Urgent Requests	
Facility Site Review (FSR) for Primary Care office locations	24
FAQs about Claims	
FAQs for Member Grievances and/or Appeals	

Financial Disclosure and Reporting	
FORMS AND RESOURCES.	
Fraud, Waste and Abuse Identification Policy and Procedures	
Full-Scope Medi-Cal Functions of Committees and Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP) Staff	
Functions of committees and Gold Coast Realth Plan (GCRP) Stan	113
GCHP Members with Veterans Benefits	86
Gemini Diversified Services (GDS)	
GLOSSARY OF TERMS	10
HEALTH EDUCATION	
Health Education Contract Requirements for Plan Providers	
Health Promotion and Disease-Prevention Programs	
Health Promotion Materials	
Health Services Forms	
Hospice	
Hospital Inpatient Services.	
How a Medicare / Medi-Cal Crossover Claim is Processed	
How Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP) Claims are Processed	
How to Submit a Request for Prior Authorization How to Verify Eligibility	
Index to Contents	126
Initial Application Process; Credentialing and Recredentialing Information	23
Initial Health Appointment (IHA)	44
Interpreter Services	89
INTRODUCTION	9
Laboratory by Code and Description	101
Lab Tests Performed in the Provider's Office	
Long-Term Care (LTC) Facilities	74
Materials on Other Topics or in Different Languages	
MEDI-CAL ELIGIBILITY	
Medical Records	
Medical Services Requiring Prior Authorization	
Member Grievances	
Member Identification (ID) card	
Member Procedures / Rights for Emergency Care	
Member Rights in the Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP) Grievance Process	
Member Grievance Form	
MEMBER SERVICES	
Members with Developmental Disabilities or Developmental Delay	
Mission Statement	
No Authorization is Required for Family Planning and Sensitive Services	69
Non-Emergency Medical Transportation (NEMT)	72
Notification About Adverse Actions	25
Nursing Facility Authorizations	74

Obtaining a Second Opinion	
Organization of the Provider Manual	
Other Resources on Gold Coast Health Plan's (GCHP) Website	
Out-of-Area and Out-of-Plan Referrals	
Out-of-Area Medi-Cal Beneficiaries	
OUTPATIENT CLINICAL LABORATORY AND OUTPATIENT IMAGING SERVICES	
Outpatient Imaging Centers	100
Paper Claim Submission	
Provider Dispute Resolution (PDR) Process	
PHARMACY	
Pharmacy and Therapeutics (P&T) Committee	
Population Health Management	
Post-Service Retroactive Authorization Requests	
Preventive Care	
Provider Request for Member Reassignment	
Primary Care Provider (PCP) Responsibilities	
Provider Advisory Committee (PAC)	116
PROVIDER APPLICATION, CREDENTIALING AND CONTRACTING	
Provider Relations Forms	113
Provider Responsibilities	105
Provider Web Portal	9
QUALITY IMPROVEMENT	53
Quality Improvement and Health Equity Committee (QIHEC)	
Referrals to Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP) Care Management	63
Reporting Encounter Data	
RESOLUTION OF DISPUTES AND GRIEVANCES	
RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PRIMARY CARE PROVIDER (PCP)	42
Restricted Scope or Restricted Medi-Cal	
·	
Selection of a Primary Care Provider and Specialist Provider (SPC)	37
Self-Referral: No Authorization Required	68
Serious and Complex Medical Conditions	76
SERVICES REQUIRING PRIOR AUTHORIZATION	67
Share of Cost (SOC)	
Specialist Referrals	71
Standing Referrals to an HIV/AIDS Specialist	76
Status of Authorization Requests	
Tobacco Cessation	0F
Transportation from Provider Office to Hospital	
Types of Medi-Cal: Levels of Benefits	
Vision Services	
Weight Management and Physical Activity	
Welcome to Gold Coast Health Plan (GCHP)	
Women's Health	
Website	9

Page left intentionally blank.

Page left intentionally blank.

Page left intentionally blank.





For more information, call Gold Coast Health Plan at 1-888-301-1228. If you use a TTY, call 711.

www.goldcoasthealthplan.org